
176 FEDERAL STREET 3wzp 
BOSTON, MASSACH iO-22;23-’ 

TELEPHONE (617) 482-1360 

FAX (61 -t, ”22 1: 53 
Eric .I. Krathwohl, Esq. 
Direct Line- (617) 556-3857 
Email- ekrath wohl@richmaylaw.com 

April 5,2000 

BY FEDERAL EXPRESS 

Arizona Corporation Commission 
Docket Control Center 
1200 West Washington 
Phoenix, AZ 85007-2996 

DOCKET NO. T -  0 3 8 3 2 A -  0 0 - 0 2 2 0  

Re: Application and Petition for Certificate of Convenience and Necessity to 
Provide Local Exchange Services (Form A) and Interexchange Services 
[Form B) as a Reseller in the State of Arizona for essential.com, inc. 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

We respectfully file herewith on behalf of essential.com, inc.  essential^'), an 
original and ten copies (1 0) copies of the above-referenced Applications, along with a 
Docket Control Cover Sheet for each Application. In order to help expedite the process, 
we have also included copies of Essential’s Certificate of Incorporation and Certificate of 
Good Standing from the State of Delaware and a copy of Essential’s Application for 
Authority to Transact Business in Arizona, which has been approved. 

Please acknowledge receipt of this filing by returning the duplicate copy of this 
letter in the enclosed self-addressed envelope. 

If any questions arise or further information is needed, please do not hesitate to 
contact me or Ted Madden of my office at (617) 556-3838. Thank you. 

Eric J. dathwohl 

Enclosures 

cc: Basil Pallone, Treasurer, Director of Finance and Controller (w/o enclosures) 
Peter Mills, Manager of Regulatory Affairs (w/ enclosures) 

mailto:wohl@richmaylaw.com
http://essential.com
http://essential.com
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Office of the Secretary of State 

I, EDWARD Z. -EL, SECRETARY OF STATE ,OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTrFY TKE ATWACmD IS X TRUE AND CORRECT 

COPY OF TiE CERTIFICATE OF INCORPOW+TION OF %TI.LZTY. coM, INc. f t ,  

FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON TKE TKIRTIETK DAY OF OCTOBER, A.D. 1998, 

AT 12:3O O'CLOCK P . M .  

A FILED COPY OF THXS CERTIFZCATE HAS =EN FORHAROED 520 THE 

&W CASTLE COUNTY RECORDER O F - D E E D S .  

. .  

. .  
I 

I .  

2954480 8100 

.' 981419716 

. .  . .  

- *  

. Edward 1. Fred, Sccrctary ujState 

9381753 
AUTHENTICATION: 

. .  .10-30-98 DA'E 



. .  

m, 
SECOND, , The address of t he  re@st;testdOffice oftbe Corporation& the State of 

Delaware is 1209 Orange Street, in tbc City of Wihhgton, New Castle Cow+, 

Dclawbe 19801. T h e  name of its registad agent at such address is The Corpqation T ~ s t  

Thename ofthe corporation is etility.com, inc. (the "Corporation"). 

campany. . .  

TE€lRD. 'The nature of thc business or purposes t o  be conducted or pmkokd by the 

Corpor+on is t o  &gage in any lawful ac; or activity for which corporations maybe 5 

under the Genera1 CorporationbAw ofthe State ofDelaware. 

o r g u  . 

* ,  mmm mct6MpmiIcrofsharts ofall class? ofcapital stockwhich f i e  

' Corporation shall have authority to issuc iS 7,000,000 sharres, Gomisting of 5,000,000 s h m  of . .  1. * 

Common Stock with apar d u o  of One Cent (%.Ol)per share (thc"C0mmon Stock") a d  

3,,000,000 shares of Prcfcrrzd Stock with a$uvaluc of One Cmt (s.01) per share (&e "Prcfcrred 

Common Stock WIG a~ follows: -.. 

,ThePrefcrred Stack may be issucd in one or more series at suih time or times and 

- . - .  a -  .). . a , . -  

* .  

. .  

. .  
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* .  

sham of all other scrics and classcs. Exccpt as othmis'c provided inrhis Certificate of 
ZncorporHtion, different series ofhcfmed Stock shall notbc construed to constitute diffcrcnt 

classes O f s h ~  for thc p q o s c s  ofvoting by classes. 
' 

ThcBomd of Directors is expressly authorized to  provide for the issuancc of all 01 

any shares of t&c Preferred Mock in one or more series, each with such designations, psefcrences, 

. vohg powcrs (or no v o b g  powers), relative, participahg, optional or other qecial rights and 

privilcgcs ad such qualifidm, limilatioas or reskktions thcreof as shallbe stated in &e 

. 

rcsolutionor resolu~ons doptcd by the Board of Pirccron to create such k t s ,  and acertificate 

of raid resolution or Tqotutions shall be filcd h accordancc With thc Gnsetal Corporalion Law of 

the  Statc of Delawlre. The authority a f h c  Board of Diretors with rcspect to each such series . . . . 
shall mcIudc, withaut IinSiUtion of the forcgobg, t hc  right to provide  at the sham of each such 

scries may: (i) have such distinctive designdon and 'Mnsist of such number of shares; (ii) be 
n 

subject to rcdcmption at such time or t imes ktd at such price or pries; (iii) be entitled to the 

benefit of a retircrucnt or s&g fund for the redemption of such sed, on &h tenas and in 
such amounts; (iv) bc cntitled to receive dividends (which may be cmuiative or non-cumdative) 

zfsuch ales, on such conditions, and at such t imes,  and payable in prek-mcc to, or in such 

relation to, the dividends payable an any other class or classes or any otha series of stock; (v) be . 
entitled t o  such rights upon &e voluntary or involuntary liqui&tiq dissolutiori or winding up of 

thc affairs, or upon any distribution of t h e  assets of thc Corporation in prefcrcnco to, or in such 

* 

. . ,  

. 

.' rcfationb, any other class oc classes or any other scries of stock; (vi) be convertiblt into, or. ' 

cxchangeablc for, shares of any othcr class or classes or any othm stria of stock at such price or 

p k s  or at such rates of exchange and with such adjusimmts, if any; (Gi) be &titled to  the 

benefit of such conditions, Xmibkions or rcstn'ctio_nf, ifaij, on the creation of indebtcdqess, the 

issuance of additional s3ares of such serics or sham of any other series of Preferred Stock, 

arnmdmcnt of this Certification of Jncorporation or the Cotpontiods By-hG, the payment of 

dividends or h e  makin; of other distrib&ons on1 or the purchase,'redcmptioa or other 

quisiGon by thc Corporation of, any other class or classes or series of stock, or any other . 

. 

,. F.  



corporate action; or (Viii) be entitlal to such other preferences, power% qualific&.ons, sghts ad 
privileges, dl as txC Board of Dkcctors may deem advisable and as arc not inconsistent with law 

and &e provisions of this Ccrtifrcate of inco$aatio~ 

€3, ,cOMMO h' STOCK 

1. ,Ptlntivd3gbt s of Preferred Stock and Comma n Stock, All 

prcfmccs,  voting POWCIS, relative, participating, oprional or other spccidl rights and privilegcs, 

a d  qualifications, limtatiob, or r h c r i o n s  of the Common Stock are cxpressly madc subject 

and subordinate to those that may be fixdvii@ reipect t o  any shwts'of thc'prcf&ed Stock. . 

* . .  

n 

2. Vatin gJ&.&i, Except as othervrise rcquircd by law or.this Ccrtificatt of 

. .  Tncorporation, each holder of Common Stock shall bave onc vote in respect of each share of 

stock heId by him of record on thebooks of the Corporation for the election of directors and on 

all matters mbmitted t o  a vote of stockholders oftht Corporation. 

t h e  holders of shares of Common Stock shallbt,mtitStd to reccivc, when and ifhcclmd by the 

Board of Erectors, out of the w e t s  of the Corporation which rrrc by law avaihblc therefor, 

dividends payable eifher ip cash, in property or in sharcs of capital stock. 

. .  
3, DiPidcnds. Subject to the preferential rights oftheReferr4 Stock, If any, 

, 4.. ~ u t i o ~ o  n arPlipdin~u~'IntbeeGcntofany 

dissolution, liquidation or winding L$ of thc affairs of the Corpoxation, after distributionin full 

of the preferential &ounts, if  any, to be dismiutad to the hold& of &arcs of tho Prefmed 

Stock, holdeis of Corhmon Stock shall bc intitled, unless otherwise providedby law or this I 

certificate of'lncorporation, t o  rcccive 

ldnd available for dhtribufion to stctclcholders ratably in proportion to tho nynljn. ofsbares of 

ofthe remaiaing assets ofthe C q a i t i o n  ofwbatcvk 

- .  Common Stockheld by thcmrcspectivcly. 

m. n i c  Corporatianis to  have pcrpeh;al existam, 

. .  

?cJu16/3/1.649199.1 
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S m .  

the State ofDelaware: 

Xn frntherancc and nof h limitation ofthe powers conferred by the laws of 

A * The Board of Ditectots of the Caporation is expressly authorized t o  do l t ,  amend 

or repeal thcBy-Laws ofthe Corporation, 

B, Elcdons of directors nccd not be by written ballot unlcss thtBy-Larr/s of the - 
Corporation shall so provide. e ' .  

. .  
C, .The books of thc Corporationmay be kept at such place within or without the 

State of Delaware as the By-Laws ofthe Coqoratioa may provide or ss may be designatbd 

.from t b c  t o ' b a  by the Board of &ors of thc Corporation. - .  
SEKEHJX The Corporation e l i d n a b  the perxraal'liability of each mmbccoffts 

Board of Directors t o  the Corporation or its stocfiolden for monetary damages for breach of 

fidudarj, duty as a direct&, provided, however, thag to the txtcncprovjdcdby applicable law, the 

foregoing shall not eliminate the  liabiliv of a dkcctor (i) for aay breah of such dkcctor's dm 

of loyalty to tht Corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not ia good faith or 

.wXeh involve jntentional misconduct or a knowing violation of Law, (ii) \m&r Scctioa 174 of 

Title 8 of thc Delaware Code, or'@) for any tr'ahsactionkorn which &h director derived an 

improp tr p monal 6 one fi t , 

. . * 

, .i 

+l. 

If t h e  Delawarc General Corpordon Law is sniended in the future to authorize corporate 

action further eliminating or.bmihg theimond liability ordimtors, then &e liability of a 

director of the Corpontion shdl be eliminated OT limitca to the fillet e x t a t  pamittcd by tho 

belawsc Gmad CorporationLaw, as so a c n d c d  fim time to t imc, 

Any repal  or moditIcation of this Article SEVENIX shdllnot increasc'thc personal 

liability of any director of tbis Corpmt io~ for any ad_qr occuacnce tdkiag place prior to such 

rcpcal or modification, or othuwisc advcrscly afcect any right o r p t c c t i o a  of a director of the ' 

Corporation existing at the t i m e  of such repeal or modification J 

-. 



EIGRZB. The Corporation rfscnwi thc right to &ma orrepul any provision 

contain& in taiS Ccaificatc of hcorpontion, in the manner now orhereafter prescribed by 

statute, and al1 rights canfcrrcd upon a stockholdcr hcnin arc granted subject to this rtscrvafion. 

NTKCH. ?he name and mailing addnss of &a sole ~ C O T ~ O G ~ O T  is BS follows: 

Name 

J O ~ Z ~  R Pitfield, Esq. Testa, &tie &: ?hibcault, ILP 
. Righ Street Towtr 

125HighStmt 
Boston, MA 021 10 

. .  TENTH. Whenever a compromise or arrangement is proposed behvccn this 
Coqopion  and its creditors or any class of them andlor bctwtca this Corporation d its 

stodcholders or any class of them, any court of quitablc jurisdiction wiUthe State of 

Delaware may, on the application in a summary way ofthis Colporation or &any ctcditor or 

stocaoldcr thereof or on the application of any Aeiver or Teceives app’ointed fo; this 

Corporationunder fhe provisions of S&on 291 of Title 8 of the Delaware Code or 011th 

app\idation of t g c c s  in dissolution or of any nieivcr or receivers appointed for this 

Corpor;itionuoder thc pro3sions of Swtion 279 of Title 8 of the D ’ e l m  Code, order a 

. mcctkrg of &c creditors orclass of qcditors, andor of& stockholdm’or class of stockholders 

o f  this Corpora~ion, as the case may be, to bc summoned in such manner as the said court directs, 

ifamajority innmiber reFes&g three-founbsin value of ;he creditos or class dfcrcditors, 

mUor of t he  stockholders or class of stocltholdm of this Corporation, as the castmay bc, agree 

to any ympromise or arrangcmcn.t and to  any reorganization’ofthis Corporation as conscqucnce 

of such compromise or amgement, the Faid compromise or aaangtrnent and the said 

reorglnization shall, if sanctioned by the court to which&c said applicatiou has btcn made, be 

bhdlng on aU the crcditors or class of creditors, anuor on a l l  the stockholdas or class of 

stockholders, of this &QOratiOn, as the cascmay be, and also oaW CorpoFcon. 

- .  
. .  
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PAGE 1 
State’of Delaware 

Ofice of the Secretary of State 

I ,  EDWARD J. F R E E L ,  SECRETARY O F  STATE O F  THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE , DO HEREBY C E R T I F Y  “ESSENTIAL.  COM, I N C .  ’‘ I S  DULY 

INCORPORATED UNDER THE L A W S  O F  THE STATE O F  DELAW- AND I S  I N  

RECORDS O F  T H I S  O F F I C E  SHOW, AS OF THE FOURTH DAY O F  JANUARY, 

A . D .  2000. 

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER C E R T I F Y  THAT THE A”uAL REPORTS H A .  

BEEN F I L E D  TO DATE. 

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE FRANCHISE TAXES 

HAVE BEEN P A I D  TO DATE. 

Edwnrd &?&d J. EreeZ, Secretn y of St@f7 83 
2,954480 8300 

001003855 AUTHENTICATION. 01-04-00 

DATE: 



AZ. CORR COMMISSION 
' ;  DELIVERED 

EXPEDITED 
AZ C O W  COMMISSION 

DELIVERED 

APPLICATION FOR AUTHORITY 
TO TRANSACT BUSINESS 

OCT 0 5 1999 
OC?. 2 7 1999 

FILED BY 3- 
TERM 
DATE ,/a /> 7 / 9 7  

I .  FILED 
IN ARIZONA TERM 

DATE -&f 72 3 27 --D 
The name of the corporation ixEssential - Inc 

A ( ~ )  Delaware Corporation 
(State, Province or Country) 

5 We are a foreign corporation applying for authority to transact business in the State of Arizona 

- We are a foreign corporation currently authorized to transact business in Arizona and must now file this 
Application for New Authority pursuant to A.R.S. 9 10-1504 because we have changed the following in our 
domicile jurisdiction: 
0 Our actual corporate name (or the name under which we originally obtained authority in Arizona). 
0 The period of our duration. 
0 The state, province or country of our incorporation. 

1. The exact name of the foreign corporation is 

Essential.com, Inc. 

lfthe exact name ofthe foreign corporation is not available for use in this state, then the fictitious name 
adopted for use by the corporation in Arizona is: 

i%Qdk/.C&k ,ZA/C. - yo UY &Pf4 Y ( OMhUWJ:C*r7 bus &@sfWQ (FN). 

2. The name ofthe state, province or country in which the foreign corporation is incorporated is: 

Delaware 

4. The street address of the principal office of the foreign corporation in the state, province or country of its 
incorporation is: 

1209 Oranue Street 

Wilmington, Delaware 09801 

5 .  The name and street address of the statutory agent for the foreign'corporation in Arizona is: 
C T Corporation System 

3225 North Central Avenue 

Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

CF: 0024 
Rev: 9/97 

- - I _ -  ,--, 

http://Essential.com


5.a. The street address of the known place of business of the foreign corporation in Arizona IF 
DIFFERENT &om the street address of the statutory.agent is: 

The A inual Report and general correspondence should be mailed to the address specified above in section 
4 . \ A I o r  5a 

6 .  The purpose of the corporation is to engage in any and all lawkl business in which corporations may 
engage in the state, province or country under whose law the foreign corporation is incorporated, with the 
following limitations, if any: (Tfnone, so state.) 

none 

7. The names and usual business addresses of the current directors and officers of the foreign corporation are: 
(%&agh &$itigpIlhyp& ngcpssary .) 

[title] directors and officers 

[title] 

[title] 

9 [title] 

8. The foreign corporation is authorized to issue 2 8 , 6 0 4 , 0 4 4  shares, itemized as follows: 

(Attach additional sheets if necessary.) 
Common 

19,166,451 shares of (No series) [class or series] stock at 

no par value or par value of $ 0 - 01 per share. 

Preferred 
2 , 830 ,726  

shares of A [class or seriesl'stock at ' 

per share. no par value or par value of $ 0 - O1 

shares ofPref erred 

no par value or par value of $ 
[class or series] stock at 6 , 6 0 6  , 867 

O s o 1  I pershare. 



Appendix to Arizona 
Application for Authority to Transact Business in Arizona 

Directors and Officers of 
Essential.com, Inc. 

1. 

2 .  

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Akhil Garland, President and Director 
3 Burlington Woods Drive 
Burlington, Massachusetts 01803 

Patrick J. Moran, Vice President, Treasurer & Assistant Secretary 
and Director 
3 Burlington Woods Drive 
Burlington, Massachusetts 01803 

Linda DeRenzo, Secretary 
Testa, Hurwitz L Thibeault, LLP, 125 High Street 
Boston, Massachusetts 02110 

Scott Ungerer, Director 
EnterTech Capital, 435 Devon Park Drive, 700 Building 
Wayne, Pennsylvania 19087 

R o b  Soni, Director 
Bessemer Venture Partners, 83 Walnut Street 
Wellesley Hills, Massachusetts 02481 

Christopher Kirchen, Director 
Brand Equity Ventures, Three Pickwick'Plaza 
Greenwich, Connecticut 06830 

Page 1 

, 

http://Essential.com


Appendix to Arizona 
Application for Authority to Transact Business in Arizona 

Purpose Clause of 
Essential.com, Inc. 

To sell local and long distance telecommunications services, 
services and other services all in accordance with state and federal law. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the purpose of the corporation is to 
engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be 
organized to do business under the laws of Arizona. 

energy home 

Page 1 
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shares, itemized as follows: 12,075,705 9. The foreign corporation has issued 

(Attach additional sheets ifnecessary.) 
Common 

4 , 4 8 2 , 8 0 2  shares of (No s e r i e s )  

no par value or par value of $ 

[class or series] stock at 

per share. 0.01 

Pre fe r r ed  
2 , 8 3 0 , 7 2 6  sharaof 7\ [class or series] stock at 

-110 par value or par value of$ 0 * 0 1  

4 , 7 6 2 , 1 7 7  sharesof B [class or series] stock at 

-no par value or par value of $ 

per share. 
P re fe r r ed  

0.01 
per share. 

IO. The character ofbusiness the foreign corporation initially intends to conduct in Arizona is: 

See attached purpose c l a u s e  

This application, is accompanied by: 

A Certificate of Disclosure containing the information set forth in Arizona Revised Statutes Section 10-202.D. 

A certified copy of our articles of incorporation, all amendments (A2 Const Art. XIV,s 8) and a certificate of 
existence or document of similar import duly authenticated by the official having custody of corporate records 
in the state, province dr country under whose laws we are incorporated (A.R.S. § 10-1503.B). 

The filing fee(s) (U.S.)’made payable to the Arizona Corporation Commission, 

Essent ia l .com, Inc. 

Executed By 

Akhil Garland, Pres ident  
[print name] [title] 

PHONE FAX 
[optional] [optional] 

ACCEPTANCE OF APPOINTMENT BY STATUTORY AGENT 

The undersigned hereby acknowledges and accepts the appointment as statutory agent of this corporation 

effective t h i s . k ~ d a y  of-,, w. 

. _ .  

http://Essential.com


. .  .- 

:f you have t h e  responsibility of collecting, accounting for; and 
over payroll taxes withheld horn the wages and salar ies of corporate 

'employees, read on. 

b 

. 
-.I 

A prfncipal benefit of incorporation is 'limiting an o-cvnerts liability t o  
le amount of hisher capital inves-tmexit- T h i s  limited Eabiliv may not 

apply in all &cumstances. 

ection 6672 of the Internal Revenue Code Sta tes  that the liibility for 
taxes withheld from t he  wages and salaries of corporate employees 

nay be assessed against the corporate officer(s) or employee(s) found 
to  be xesponsible for their collection and payment. The personal 
liability of the responsible officer or employee is not limited to  the 

amount  of capital inves-tment. 
. .  

'here are other ad and criminal penalties in the law regarding filing, 
paying, depositingof employment taxes. 
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' * .  ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 
CORPOKATIONS DIVISION 

phoenix Address: 1300 West Washington Tucson Address: 400 West Congress 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007-2929 Tucson, Arizona 85701-1347 

IFICATE OF DISCLOSURE 
A.R.S . 9 10-202.D 

ANSWER "C" 

Essential.com. Inc. 
EXACT CORPORATE NAME 

THE UNDERSIGNED CERTIFY THAT: 
A. No persons sewing either by elections or appointment as officers, directors, trustees, incorporators and persons coiitrolling or holding over 10% of the 

issued and outstanding coininon shares or 10% of any other proprietaiy, beneficial or membership interest in the corporation: 

1. Have been convicted of a felony involving a transaction in securities, consumer fraud or antittitrust in any state or federal jurisdiction within the 
seven-year period iminediately preceding the execution of this Certificate. 

2. Have been convicted of a felony, the essential elements of which consisted of fraud, misrepresentation, theft by false pretenses, or restraint of trade 
or monopoly in any state or federal jurisdiction within the seven-year period immediately preceding the execution of this Certificate. 

3. Have been or are subject to an injunction, judgment, decree or permanent order of any state or federal court entered within the seven-year period 
immediately preceding the execution of this Certificate wherein such injunction, judgment, decree or peimanent ordel: 
(a) Involved the violatioii of fraud or registration provisions of the securities laws of that jurisdiction; or 
(b) Iiivolved the violatioii of the consumer fraud laws of that jurisdiction; or 
(c) Involved the violation of the antitrust or restraint of trade laws of that jurisdiction. 

B. For any person or persons who have been or are subject to one or inore of the statements in Items A. 1 tlu'ougli A.3 above, 
0 -ST'>e-: 

1. Full name, prior name(s) and aliases, if used. 6.  Social Security number. 
2. Full biitli name. 7. The nature and description of each conviction or judicial action, 
3. Present home address. date and location, the court and public agency involved and file or 
4. Prior addresses (for immediate preceding 7-year period). cause number of case. 
5. Date and location of birth. 

C. Has any person serving as an officer, director, trustee or incorporator of the coiporation served in any such capacity or held or controlled over 20% of the 
issued and outstanding common shares, or 20% of any other proprietaiy, beneficial or membership interest in any corporation which has been 
placed in bankruptcy, receivership or had its charter revoked, or administratively or judicially dissolved by any state or jurisdiction? 

X Yes -No - 
IF YOUR ANSWER TO THE ABOVE QUESTION IS "YES", YOU MUST A'ITACH THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FOR EACH 
CORPORATION : 

1. Name and address of the corporation. 3. State@) in which the corporation: 
2. Full name (including aliases) and address of each person involved. (a) Was incorporated. (b) Has transacted business. 

4. Dates of corporate operation. 
5 .  Date and case number of Bankruptcy or date of 

revocationladministrative dissolution. 
D. The fiscal year end adopted by the corporation is December 31 . 

Under penalties of law, the undersigned incorporator(s)/officer(s) declare (s) that I (we) have examined this Ceitificate, including any attachments, and to 
the best of my (our) knowledge and belief it is d complete. THE SIGNATURE(S) MUST BE DATED WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF 
THE DELIVERY DATE. 1 

Y BY 
I -, k-' 

BY 

PRINT NAME &hi1 Garland PRINT NAME 

TITLE President DATE .d/7/qs. TITLE DATE 

DOMESTIC CORPORATIONS: ALL INCORPORATORS MUST SIGN THE INITIAL CERTIFICATE OF DISCLOSURE. If within sixty days, any 
person becomes an officer, director, trustee or person controlling or holding over 10% of the issued and outstanding shares or 10% of any other proprietary, 
beueficial, or membership interest in the corporation and the person was not included in this disclosure, the corporation must file an AMENDED.certificate 
signed by at least one duly authorized officer of tlE corporation. 

FOREIGN CORPORATIONS: MUST BE SIGNED BY AT LEAST ONE DULY AUTHORIZED OFFICER OF THE CORPORATION. 

C/F: 0022-Business Corporations 

(ARIZ. - 7 3  - 1 0 / 1 7 / 9 6 )  C T W * ~  
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COVER SHEET 
ARIZONA CORPORA TION COMMISSION 

DOCKET CONTROL CENTER 

<'.\Sf:/COMPANY NAME: DOCKET NO. 
__- 

t .<< rltldi corn, inc. 
_- - 

O/H/. \  or RESPONDENT: 

01 

x 
- 

- 02 

NATURE OF ACTlON OR DESCRIPTJON OF DOCUMENT 
Please marl, thc itcm that dcwibcz the ii.ituic of thc cawfiling 

UTILITIES - NEW APPLICATIONS 

NEW CC&N 
RATES 
INTERIM RATES 
CANCELLATION OF CCBN 
DELETION OF CC&N (TERRITORY) 
EXTENSION OF CC&N (TERRITORY) 
TARIFF - NEW (NEXT OPEN MEETIYG) 
REQUEST FOR ARBITRATION - 
(Telecommunication Act) 
FULLY OR PARTIALLY AT&BITRATED 
INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENT 
(Tclecoin. Act.) 
VOLUNTARY INTERCONNECTION 
AGREEMENT (Telecom. Act) 

MAIN EXTENSION 
CONTRACT/AGREEMENTS 
COMPLAINT (Formal) 
RULE VARIANCEiWAlVER REQUEST 
SITING COMMITTEE CASE 

SALE OF ASSETS & TRANSFER OF OU'NERSHIP 
SALE OF ASSETS & CANCELLATION OF CC&N 
FUEL ADJUSTEWPGA 
MERGER 
FINANCING 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Specify 

SMALL WATER COMPANY -SURCHARGE (Senate U ~ l l  1252) 

UTILITIES - REVISIONS/AMENDMENTS TO 
PENDING OR APPROVED MATTERS 

TARIFF -- APPLIC'ATION 
PROMOTIONAL COMPANY 

DOCKET NO. DECISION NO 
DOC'KLf NO. 
COM P L 1 AN C E 
DtcISlON NO. 
DOCKET NO 

- 

- 

SECURITIES or MISCELLANEOUS FlLlNGS 

AFFIDAVIT - 29 STIPULATION 
EXCE PTlONS 
REQLIEST FOR INTERVENTION 

OPPOSITION 
COMPLIANCE lTEM FOR APPROVAL 
TESTIMONI' Specify 
Cob1 MENTS 

3s NOTICE OF INTENT 

43 PETITION 

- 
(Only iiotilication 01 f'uturc actiowno action neccssar) I 

REQUEST FOR HEARING - 
40 NOTICE OF LIMITED APPEARANCE 

3 k) 
- 

OTHER - 

April 5, 2000 Eric J Krahtwohl, Esquire 

Date Print Name of Applicant/Cornpany/Contact penon/Respondent/.4ft~. 

Phone 
(61 7) 482-1 360 

PLEASE SEE NOTICE ON REVERSE SIDE 

(Revwon dare 4 23'98) 



FORM A 

ARIZONA CORPORATION COiVIMISSION 

Application and Petition for Certificate of Convenience and Necessity to Provide 
Local Exchange Services as a Reseller 

Mail on& plus 10 copies of completed application to: I For Docket Control Only 
I (Please Stamp Here) 

Docket Control Center I 
Arizona Corporation Conmission I 
1200 West Washington Street I 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007-2927 I 

I 
If you have current applications pmdmg in Arizona as I 
an Interexcliange reseller, AOS provider, or as the I 
provider of other telecommunication seivices. 

I 
Type of Service: I 

I 
Type of Service: I 

1 

Docket No. : Date: I Docket No. 

Docket No.: Date: (Docket No. 

I1 A. Company and TelecoinmLtnications Sei-vice Information 

(A-1) Tlie name, address, and telephone number (including area code) of the applicant(conipany): 

essentiat.com, inc. 

Three Burlington Woods Drive, 4th Floor, Burlington, MA 01803 

Telephone (781) 229-9599; Fax (781) 229-9499 

(A-2) I f  doing business ( d h h )  under a name other than the applicant (company) name listed above, specify: 

Essential.com, lnc. - Your Energy & Communications Superstore 

(A-3) The name, address, telephone number, facsimile number and Einail address of the management contact. 

Basil Pallone, Director of FinanceiControfler, Treasurer 

Three Burlington Woods Drive, 4th Floor, Burlington, MA 0'1803 

Telephone (781) 229-9599; Fax (781) 229-9499; E-mail bpalone~~ssential.com 

http://essentiat.com
http://Essential.com


r 

A-4) 
epresenting the applicant: 

The namc, address. telephone number. facsimile number and email address of the Attorney, if any, 

Eric J. Krathwohl, Esq. 
Rich, May, Bilodeau & Flaherty, P.C., 176 Federal Street, Boston, MA 021 10 

Telephone (61 7j  482-1360; Fax (617) 556-3890; E-mail ekrathwohI@richmayiaw.com 

A-5) What type of legal entity IS thc applicant? 

Sole propnetorship 

Partnership: -limited, -general, - Anzona. - roreign 

Limited liability company 

-0, - non-profit, - Arizona, - Foreign X Corporation: - - S O ,  - 
Other, specify: 

'A-6) lnclude .Attachment A: Attachment .4 must list names of ilII owners, partners, limited liability company 
managers, or corporation officers and directors (specify). and indicatc pcrcentagcs of owncrship. 

A-7) 1. Is your company currently offering any telecommunication services in Arizona? If yes, list each service 
offered and providc the date that you bcgan offering each such scnrice in Arizona. 

No. 

2. If the answer to 1. is "no", when docs your company plan to begin reselling serviccs in Arizona? 
by the fourth quarter of 2000 

[A-8) Include *Attachment B: Attachment B, your proposed tariff, must include proposed rates and charges 

state other terms and conditions, including deposits, that will apply to provision of the service(s) by you 
company. 

for each service to bc provided. State the tariff (nlaxiruumlta tc as well as the D ~ C  e to be c w  1 and 

The Arizona Corporation Conmission provides pricing flexibility by allowing competitive 
telecommunications service companies to price their services at levels equal to or below the tariff 
(maximum) rates. The prices to be charged by the company arc filed with the Coinmission in the f o m  of 
price lists. 
Note: Pricc list rate changes that result in rates that are lower than the tariff rate are effectivc upon 
concurrent notice to the Commission (See Rule R14-2-1109 (D)(2)). See Rule R14-2-1 I IO for procedures t( 
iliakc price list changes that result in rates that are higher than the tariff rate. 

(A-9)  The geographic market to be scrvctl is: 

other, describe and provide a inap depicting the area. 

USWest  service territory 

mailto:ekrathwohI@richmayiaw.com


A-10) List the states in which you currently offer, or have been approved to offer, services similar to those you 
intend to rcsell in Arizona. 

Essential currently offers local and intrastate toll service in Massachusetts and New York. 

Essential is currently certified to provide local andior instrastate toll service in Pennsylvania, Vermo 

New Hampshire, Rhode Island. New Jersey, Maryland, Delaware, the District of Columbia, Ohio. 

Wisconsin, Florida, Texas. Colorado, Washington, California. 

A-I 1)  

lell Atiantic- District of Columbia, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, New York, Rhode Island, and Vermi 
Vest Virginia, Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Maine, Maryland, and Delaware 
1SWest- Colorado, Iowa, Idaho, Minnesota, Montana, South Dakota, Oregon, Washington, Wyoming 
;SC- Texas Arneritech- Indiana 
'ell South- all nine states in southeastern United States 
'acific Tel- California and Nevada 
NET- Connecticut 

:A-12) 

List the cornpanics with which you have signed resale agreements, along with the states in which tlicy 
were approved. 

lnclude Attachment C. (All Applications must include a resale agreement or contract). Attachment C is a 
copy of the resale agreement or contmct bctwecn your company and an applicable local cxchangc service 
provider. 

~ 

'A- 13) Providc the namc. address, and telephone number of the companys complaint contact person. 

David Wheeler, Director of Customer Service 
Three Burlington Woods Drive, 4th Floor, Burlington, MA 01803 
Telephone (781) 229-9599; Fax (781) 229-9499; E-mail dwheeler@essential.com 

:A-14) Provide a list of states in which you have sought authority to resell telecommunicatioiis services and in 
which the state granted the authority 1~ not r t your  
application for those services. For each state listed, provide a copy of the Commissions decision 
modifying or denying your application for authority to provide telecommunications services. 

None. 

(A-15) Hac thc company hccn granted authonty to probidc or resell tclccommuiucations services III any state 
where subsequently the 
Commission's decision revohing its authority 

B U S  revom ) If "yes", providc copies of the State Regulatory 

No. 

mailto:dwheeler@essential.com


A-16) Has the company been or is the company currently involved in any formal complaint proceedings before 
any State or  Federal Regulatory Commission? If "yes", in which states is thc company mvolvcd in such 
proceedings and what is the substance of these complainrs. Also, provide copies of Commission orders 
that have resolved any of these complaints 

No. 

(A-17) Has the applicant been involvcd in any civil or criminal iiivcstigations relatcd to the dciivcry of 
telecommunicarions services fitthin rhe List five years' 1f"yes". in nhich states has the applicant been 
in\,olved in investigations and why is the applicant bang  invcstigatcd' 

No. 

(A-18) Has the applicant had judgment cntcrcd against it in any civil inattcr or been convictcd of criminal acts 
related to the dclivery of telecommunications scrvices within the last five years'! If yes, list the states 
where judgment or conviction was entered and provide a copy ofthe court order. 

No. 

~~ ~ 

B. Technical Information 

CB-1) Providc the namc of thc company or companies wliose serviccs you resell 

Applicant intends to reseil USWest services in Arizona. 

(B-2) Explain what actions thc applicant has takcn to ensure that basic exchange service to applicant- 
customers will not be intermptcd in thc event the applicant ceases to do business. 

The Applicant will comply with all Commission laws and regulations regarding t he  

termination of service. In the unlikely event that the Applicant ceases to do business, adequate 
notice will be provided to customers and customers could revert to service from the ILEC. 
The Applicant would work with affected customers and the ILEC to ensure the sinooth transition 
of service. 

C. Financial Information 

(C-l ) Include "Attachment E" Attachment E must include a copy of your Company's balance sheet. income 
statement. audit report (if audited) and all ielatcd notcs to thesc financial statements for thc two most reccnt ycars 
your Company has been in business 



(C-2) If your Company does not have financial statements for the two most recent years. please give the date your 
Company began operations. 

October 30, 1998 

(C-3) If the b d h W  sheets you subrnir do not have retained earning~~iccounts. please provide this dccount 
information on a separate sheet 

( C - 3 )  If your Company i s  a subsidiary. please pro\ ide )our Parent Company's financial statements, in addition to 
your Company's financial statements 

Essential is riot a subsidiary 

(C-5) If your Company intends to rely on the financial resources of its Parent Company. plcase provide a written 
statement from your Parent Company attesting that it will provide complete financial backing if your Company 
experiences a net loss or a business failure and that it will guarantee re-payment ofcustomers; advanccs. 
prepayments or deposits held by your Company if, for sonic reason, your Company cannot provide service or 
repay the deposits. 

Not applicable. 

YES- (If  yes. provide an explanation of how and when these customer advances prepayments or 
eposih will be applied or reference the terms and coiiditions section of your Company's tariffs with this 
xplarxttion. If this information is not explained in the tariff of this application, please provide i t  on ii separate 

NO (Note: If at a later date, your Coinpaiiy decides it wants to offer or require custoiner advances, 
repayments or deposits. i t  must submit financial st;iternents as p;m of the tariff amendment process.) 



I certify that if the applicant is an Arizona corporation, a current copy of the Articles of 
Incorporation is on !le with the Arizona Corporation Commission and the applicant holds a Certificate of 
Good Standing from the Commission. If the company is a foreign corporation or partnershp, I certify that 
the company has authority to transact business in Arizona. I certify that all appropriate city, county andor 
State agency approvals have been obtained. Upon signing of this application, I attest that I have read the 
Commissions rules and regulations relating to the regulations of telecommunications services (A.A.C. Title 
14, Chapter 2, Article 11) and that the company will abide by Arizona State Law includmg the Arizona 
Corporation Commission Rules and Regulations. I agree that the Commissions rules apply in the event 
there is a conflict between those rules and the companys tariff, unless otherwise ordered by the 
Commission. I certify that to the best of my knowledge the information provided in this Application and 
Petition is true and correct. 

r 

(Signature of Authorized Representative) 

1 /L/o 0 
(Date) 

Basil Pallone 

(Print Name of Authorized Representative) 

Director of Finance/Controlier, Treasurer 

(Title) 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this:),[ ‘(h day ofsQ))(jl \h, , B...-67 
3 

/0/20/99 



ATTACHMENT A 

List of Corporation Officers and Directors 

Biographies of Management 

Mr. Akhil Garland, Chairman and CEO 
Mr. Garland has managed MIS departments for the State of Massachusetts and an 
international health care company. He is an entrepreneur, having founded and sold a 
multimedia company. Mr. Garland brings to Essential a long-range vision as well as a 
capacity to manage growth through innovative and leading edge information systems. He 
earned a B.A. in Computer Science and Mathematics from Connecticut College. 

Mr. John Duffy, Senior Vice President, Business Development 
Mr. Duffy comes to Essential from Metromedia International Telecommunications where 
he served as Vice President of Paging Operations. In that capacity, he managed 13 
paging joint ventures located in Eastern Europe, Russia, and Central Asia. Mr. Duffy 
was directly involved in strategic relationships between Metromedia and vendors, 
including Motorola, NEC, and Philips. Previously, he was with Metrocall, Inc. for five 
years in several senior management positions, including Director of Carrier Relations, 
where he oversaw the ongoing relationship between large carriers and resellers 
throughout the country. Mr. Duffy holds a B.A. in Economics from LaSalle University. 

Ms. Libby Curtis, Director of Web Development * 
Prior to joining Essential, Libby Curtis was Director, Web Development for Cendant 
Corporation, where she managed a sixteen-person web development group. Ms. Curtis 
managed the development of several complex sites including Ramada, Days Inn, and 
Century 2 1. Prior to Cendant, Ms. Curtis was Human Factors Designer for The 
NetMarket Company where she designed and integrated user interfaces for several web 
projects including NetMarket, an on-line shopping service. Ms. Curtis received her BS in 
Marketing from Plymouth State College. 

Mr. Ivar Wold, Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer 
Mr. Wold brings over 30 years of experience in engineering, and is one of the Web’s 
leading innovators in eCommerce technology. Prior to joining Essential, Mr. Wold was a 
Senior Vice President at Fidelity Investments Retail Electronic Commerce where he was 
responsible for the Architecture and Development of Fidelity’s Retail Online products. 
Fidelity‘s retail Website is one of the busiest in the financial services industry, with more 
than 2.5 million on-line accounts. Earlier in his career, Mr. Wold worked at leading 
corporations, such as Inprise (previously Borland International), Lotus Development and 
Microsoft. He also held senior positions at Analog Devices. Mr. Wold received a B.Sc 
(Eng) in Aeronautics and Astronautics from Southampton University in England where 
he graduated with First Class Honors. He is the holder of multiple patents, and his 
inventions have been manufactured and sold commercially around the world. 



Mr. Basil Pallone, Director of Finance and Controller, Treasurer 
Mr. Pallone has 19 years of financial experience in a diverse group of energy related 
companies, including start up ventures and publicly held electric utilities. Before joining 
Essential, Mr. Pallone was CFO o f  Energy Vision, a start up retail marketer of energy and 
energy services which was acquired by Williams Energy. Prior to Energy Vision, he 
served as Executive Vice President for EUA Cogenex Corporation, a $75 million revenue 
energy management company. Mr. Pallone also spent three years as Assistant Treasurer 
at Eastern Utilities Associates where he was in charge of preparing annual and quarterly 
reports to shareholders and SEC filings. Mr. Pallone spent the first ten years of his career 
in various financial positions at Boston Edison Company. 

Mr. Patrick Moran, Vice President, Secretary 
Mr. Moran earned a B.S. in Mass Communications from Emerson College, where he 
focussed on media communications and computer technologies. He has been involved in 
entrepreneurial activities since graduating from Emerson and is currently responsible for 
back office administration at Essential. 

Mr. Ronan Winter, Vice President, Strategic Marketing Alliances 
Mr. Winter was formerly Director of Business Development for Lycos, Inc., where he 
was responsible for the creation for many e-commerce partnerships. During his tenure 
from 1997 through 1999, Mr. Winter negotiated sixteen strategic alliances approved at a 
CEO and Board level, resulting in significant recurring annual revenue. Prior to joining 
Lycos, Mr. Winter served as Manager, Business Development with iChat from 1996 to 
1997, providing communication software to the Internet community. Mr. Winter holds 
an impressive 1 0-year track record in business development and sales and marketing with 
previous employers such as IBM, 1989-91 and Stream International, 1991-96. A 
graduate of Trinity College, Dublin, Ireland, Mr. Winter was professionally trained in 
sales and marketing management by The Chartered Institute of Marketing, London. 

Mr. David Wheeler, Vice President, Operations 
Mr. Wheeler serves as Essential’s Vice President of Operations. Mr. Wheeler has over 
20 years of experience in managing large customer fulfillment and customer service 
functions. Prior to joining Essential, Mr. Wheeler served as the general manager for Sky 
Subscriber Services, Ltd., a division of Sky Television, the leading satellite television 
broadcaster in the U.K. from 1989 to 1998. In this role, he was responsible for the 
management of over 3.5 million subscribers, collection of revenues exceeding $1.5 
billion, and over 2,500 employees. From 1975 to 1989, Mr. Wheeler was with Book 
Club Associates in U.K. where he was responsible for the design and implementation of 
their customer management computer systems and eventually had general management 
responsibility for all matters relating to customer service. 

Mr. Rajan Kulkarni, Chief Architect 
Mr. Kulkarni brings 18 years experience in engineering, and is one of the web’s leading 
architects. Prior to joining Essential, Mr. Kulkarni was Principal Technical Architect at 
Fidelity Investments. Mr. Kulkarni helped build Fidelity.com into one of the most 

http://Fidelity.com


heavily trafficked sites on the Internet. During his tenure with Fidelity.com, the site 
generated millions of web transactions and web hits each day. Mr. Kulkarni received his 
Engineering Degree from Bombay University, India and his postgraduate certificate in 
software technology from National Center for Software Development, India. 

Mr. Christopher Kallaher - Vice President and General Counsel 
Christopher Kallaher joined Essential as our Vice President and General Counsel in 
February, 2000. Mr. Kallaher comes to Essential from Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, 
Glovsky and Popeo, P.C. where, from 1999 to 2000, he was an associate working on 
regulatory and corporate matters for various clients in the utility sector. Prior to joining 
Mintz, Levin, Mr. Kallaher served as senior counsel at the Massachusetts Department of 
Telecommunications and Energy (DTE) where he presided over major cases in electric 
utility and telecommunications restructuring. Before the DTE, Mr. Kallaher was an 
attorney practicing utility law in Wisconsin where he represented a number of investor 
owned utilities over a nine-year period. Mr. Kallaher holds a J.D. from the University of 
Wisconsin at Madison and a B.S. in Civil Engineering from Stanford University. 

http://Fidelity.com


Officers of 
essential.com, inc. 

Akhil Garland, President 
103 Revolutionary Rd. 
Concord, MA 01742 

Patrick J. Moran, Vice President, Secretary 
75 Downey St. 
Hopkinton, MA 01748 

Basil Pallone, Treasurer 
112 Thunder Rd. 
Sudbury, MA 01776 

Linda DeRenzo, Assistant Secretary 
238 Kendrick St. 
Newton, MA 02458 

Mary J. Seldin, Assistant Secretary 
59 Prospect St. 
Newburyport, MA 01950 

http://essential.com


essenti3com W 

essential.com, inc 
Board of Directors 

Akhil Garland 
Essential. com 
3 Burlington Wood Drive 
Burlington, MA 01803 
Telephone: 78 1-229-9599 
Fax: 78 1-229-9499 

Patrick Moran 
Essential.com 
3 Burlington Woods Drive 
Burlington, MA 0 1803 
Telephone: 781-229-9599 
Fax: 78 1-229-9499 

Scott Ungerer 
EnerTech Capital 
435 Devon Park Drive 
700 Building 
Wayne, PA 19087 
Telephone: 6 10-254-4 14 1 
Fax: 610-254-4188 

Rob Soni 
Bessemer Venture Partners 
83 Walnut Street 
Wellesley Hills, MA 0248 1 
Telephone: 78 1-237-6050 
Fax: 781-237-7576 

William Meurer 
Brand Equity Ventures 
Three Pickwick Plaza 
Greenwich, Connecticut 06830 
Telephone: 203-862-5500 
Fax: 203-629-2019 

Rev. 04/04/00 
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Michael Kolowich 
. 116 Monument Street 

Concord, MA 0 1742 
888-635-7758 - phone 
Michael .Kolowich@newsedge. corn 

Paul O'Brien 
The O'Brien Group, Inc. 
70 Franklin Street, 3rd Floor 
Boston, MA 02 1 10 
617-737-2255 - phone 
617-737-3399 - fax 

Rev. 04/04/00 



ATTACHMENT B 

Proposed Tariff 



essential.com, inc. A.C.C. Tariff No. 1 
Original Title Sheet 

TARIFF APPLICABLE TO 
COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

WITHIN THE STATE OF ARIZONA 

essential.com, inc. 

3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4’ floor 
Burlington Massachusetts 01 803 

781.229.9599 

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations and rates applicable to the furnishing of 
telecommunications services provided by essential.com, inc. (“Es~ential.com’~) within the State 
of Arizona. This tariff is on file with the Arizona Corporation Commission (“Commission”). 
Copies may be inspected during normal business hours at the Company’s principal place of 
business: 3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4‘h floor, Burlington MA, 01803. 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4’ floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
78 1.229.9599 

http://essential.com
http://essential.com
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essential.com, inc A.C.C. TariffNo. 1 
Orivinal Sheet No. 1 

CHECK SHEET 

The Title Sheet and Sheets 1 through 63 inclusive of this tariff are effective as of the date shown at the 
bottom of the respective sheet(s). 

SHEET REVISION SHEET REVISION 

Title 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 

Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 
52 
53 
54 
55 

Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Director of FinanceKontroller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington M A  01 803 
78 1.229.9599 



essential.com, inc A.C.C. Tariff No. 1 
Original Sheet No. 2 

CHECK SHEET, Continued 

SHEET REVISION 

56 
57 
58 
59 
60 
61 
62 
63 

Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Director of Finance/Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4' floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
781.229.9599 
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essential.com, inc A.C.C. Tariff No . 1 
Original Sheet No . 3 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Title Sheet .......................................................................................................... Title 

Check Sheet ............................................................................................................. 1 

Table of Contents .................................................................................................... 3 

Explanation of Symbols .......................................................................................... 5 

Tariff Format ........................................................................................................... 6 

Application of Tariff ............................................................................................... 7 

Section 1 . Technical Terms and Abbreviations ..................................................... 8 

Section 2 . Rules and Regulations ......................................................................... 22 
2.1 Undertaking of Company ............................................................................... 23 
2.2 Limitations ...................................................................................................... 23 
2.3 Use .................................................................................................................. 24 

2.5 Equipment and Facilities ................................................................................ 30 

. . .  

2.4 Liabilities of the Company ............................................................................. 25 

2.6 Customer Responsibilities .............................................................................. 30 
2.7 Interruption of Service .................................................................................... 31 
2.8 Restoration of Service .................................................................................... 32 
2.9 Minimum Service Period ................................................................................ 32 
2.10 Access to Customer Premises ....................................................................... 33 
2.1 1 Payment and Billing ..................................................................................... 33 
2.12 Cancellation by Customer ............................................................................ 35 
2.13 Cancellation by Company ............................................................................ 36 
2.14 Advanced Payment and Deposits ................................................................. 37 
2.1 5 Interconnection ............................................................................................. 38 
2.16 Full Force and Effect .................................................................................... 38 

2.18 Governmental Authorizations 39 
2.19 Promotions 39 

0 

. .  

2.17 Marketing ..................................................................................................... 39 

2.20 Effective Date 40 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Director of FinanceKontroller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive. 4h floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
78 1.229.9599 
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essential.com, inc A.C.C. Tariff No. 1 
Original Sheet No. 4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Section 3 
3.1 
3.2 

3.3 

3.4 

General Description Of Services 
Business Local Exchange Service 
3.2.1 Generally 
3.2.2 Flat Rate Service 
3.2.3 Measured Monthlv Service 
3.2.4 Additional Charges 
3.2.5 Other Charges 
3.2.6 Order Charges 
3.2.7 Premises Visit Charge 
3.2.8 Vertical Features 
3.2.9 Package Plans (Two Features) 
3.2.10 Package Plans (Three Features) 
3.2.1 1 Package Plans (Four Features) 
3.2.12 Package Plans Plans (Five Features) 
3.2.13 Per Use Features 
Residential Local Services 
3.3.1 Generally 
3.3.2 Flat Rate Service 
3.3.3 Message Service 
3.3.4 Additional Charges 
3.3.5 Order Charges 
3.3.6 Premises Visit 
3.3.7 Vertical Features 
3.3.8 Per Use Features 
Intrastate IntraLATA Message Toll Service 
3.4.1 Business MTS 

3.4.1.1 Dial Station 
3.4.1.2 Calling Card 

3.4.2.1 Dial Station 
3.4.2.2 Calling Card 

3.4.2 Residential MTS 

3.4.3 Surcharges 

Section 4 - Directory Listings 
4.1 
4.2 Business Listing 
4.3 Residential Listing 
4.4 Non-Published Listing 
4.5 Non-Listed Listings 
4.6 Additional Listngs 
4.7 Miscellaneous Listing 

Regulations ADDlicable to Directon, Listings 

41 
42 
42 
43 
43 
43 
44 
44 
44 
44 
46 
47 
48 
48 
48 
49 
49 
49 
49 
49 
50 
50 
51 
51 
52 
52 
52 
52 
52 
52 
52 
52 

53 
53 
54 
55 
55 
57 
58 
61 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Director of Finance/ControIler 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4" floor 

Burlington MA 0 1803 
78 1.229.9599 
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essential.com, inc A.C.C. Tariff No. 1 
Original Sheet No. 5 

CONCURRING CARRIERS 

None 

CONNECTING CARRIERS 

None 

OTHER PARTICIPATING CARRIERS 

None 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Director of Finance/Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 0 1803 
78 1.229.9599 
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essential.com, inc A.C.C. Tariff No. 1 
Original Sheet No. 6 

EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS 

(C) 

(D) 

(I) 

(M) 

(N) 

(R) 

(T) 

To signify changed condition or regulation 

To signify deleted or discontinued rate, regulation or condition 

To signify a change resulting in an increase to a Customer's bill 

To signify that material has been moved from another tariff location 

To signify a new rate, regulation condition or sheet 

To signify a change resulting in a reduction to a Customer's bill 

To signify a change in text but no change to rate or charge 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Director of Finance/Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 0 1 803 
781.229.9599 
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essential.com, inc A.C.C. Tariff No. 1 
Original Sheet No. 7 

TARIFF FORMAT 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

Sheet Numbering - Sheet numbers appear in the upper right corner of the sheet. Sheets are 
numbered sequentially. However, occasionally, when a new sheet is added between sheets 
already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new sheet added between sheets 14 and 15 
would be 14.1. 

Sheet Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each sheet. 
These numbers are used to determine the most current sheet version on file with the 
Commission. For example, the 4th revised Sheet 14 cancels the 3rd Revised Sheet 14. Because 
of various suspension periods, deferrals, etc. the Commission follows in their tariff approval 
process, the most current sheet number on file with the Commission is not always the sheet in 
effect. Consult the Check Sheet for the sheet currently in effect. 

Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level of 
code is subservient to its next higher level: 

2. 
2.1. 
2.1.1. 
2.1.1 .A. 
2.1.1 .A.l. 
2.1.1 .A. 1 .(a). 
2.1.1.A.l.(a).I. 
2.1.1.A.l.(a).I.(i). 
2.l.l.A.l.(a).I.(i).(l). 

Check Sheets - When a tariff filing is made with the Commission, an updated Check Sheet 
accompanies the tariff filing. The Check Sheet lists the sheets contained in the tariff with a cross 
reference to the current revision number. When new sheets are added, the Check Sheet is 
changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated by and 
asterisk (*). There will be no other symbols used on this sheet if these are the only changes 
made to it &e., the format, etc., remains the same, just revised revision levels on some sheets). 
The tariff user should refer to the latest Check Sheet to find if a particular sheet is the most 
current on file with the Commission. 
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APPLICATION OF TARIFF 

This tariff contains the rates applicable to the provision of intrastate communications services by virtue 
of one-way and/or two-way information transmission between points within the State of Arizona. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

Agency 

For 91 1 or E91 1 service, the government agency(s) designated as having responsibility for the 
control and staffing of the emergency report center. 

Alternate Routing (“AR’’) 

Allows E91 1 calls to be routed to a designated alternate location if: (1) all E91 1 exchange 
lines to the primary PSAP (See definition of PSAP below.) are busy; or (2) the primary PSAP 
closes down for a period (night service). 

Authorized User 

A person, corporation or other entity who is authorized by the Company’s Customer to utilize 
service provided by the Company to the Customer. The Customer is responsible for all 
charges incurred by an Authorized User. 

Automatic Location Identification (“ALI”) 

The name and address associated with the calling party’s telephone number (identified by ANI 
as defined below) is forwarded to the PSAP for display. Additional telephones with the same 
number as the calling party’s (secondary locations, off premises, etc.) will be identified with 
the address of the telephone number at the main location. 

Automatic Number Identification (“ANI”) 

A system whereby the calling party’s telephone number is identified and sent forward with the 
call record for routing and billing purposes. E91 1 Service makes use of this system. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Bu iness Service: 

A service which conforms to one (1) or more of the following criteria: 

A. Used primarily for a paid commercial, professional or institutional activity; or 

B. The service is situated in a commercial, professional or institutional location, or other 
location serving primarily or substantially as a site of an activity for pay; or 

C. The service number is listed as the principal or only number for a business in any 
telecommunications directory; or 

D. The service is used to conduct promotions, solicitations, or market research for which 
compensation or reimbursement is paid or provided. However, such use of service, 
without compensation or reimbursement, for a charitable or civic purpose will not 
constitute a business use of service unless other criteria apply. 

Called Station 

The terminating point of a call (i.e., the called number). 

Calling Card 

A card issued by Company containing such account numbers assigned to its Customer which 
enables the charges for calls made to be properly billed on a pre-arranged basis. 

Central Office 

An operating office of the Company where connections are made between telephone 
exchange lines. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Central Office Line 

A line providing direct or indirect access from a telephone or switchboard to a central office. 
Central office lines subject to PBX rate treatment are referred to as central office trunks. 

Change: 

Includes the rearrangement or reclassification of existing service at the same location. 

Channel 

A point-to-point bi-directional path for digital transmission. A channel may be furnished in 
such a manner as the Company may elect, whether by wire, fiber optics, radio or a 
combination thereof and whether or not by means of single physical facility or route. One 
1.544 Mbps Service is equivalent to 24 channels. 

Channel Conversion 

The termination of 1.544. Mbps Service at a Customer’s location with conversion of the 
digital signal to 24 analog voice grade circuits. Channel Conversion can be furnished by the 
Customer. 

Channel Service Unit (“CSU”) 

The equipment located at the Custcmer’s premises which terminates each 1.544 Mbps Digital 
Loop and performs such functions as proper termination of facilities, regeneration of signals, 
recognition and correction of signal format errors and provides remote loop-back capability. 

Commission 

Arizona Corporation Commission 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Communications Systems 

Channels and other facilities which are capable of two-way communications between 
subscriber-provided terminal equipment or telephone company stations, even when not 
connected to exchange and message toll communications service. 

Company 

essential.com, inc. 

Credit Card 

A valid bank or financial organization card, representing and account to which the costs of 
products and services purchased by the card holder may be charged for future payment. Such 
cards include those issued by VISA or Mastercard. 

Customer 

The person, firm, corporation or other entity which orders or uses service and is responsible 
for payment of charges and compliance with tariff regulation. 

Customer Premises Equipment (“CPE”) 

Equipment provided by the Customer for use with the Company’s services. CPE can include a 
station set, facsimile machine, key system, PBX or other communication system. 

Debit Card 

A valid bank or financial organization card, representing an account from which the costs of 
products and services purchased by the card holder may be charged. 

Dedicated Access 

Non-switched access between a Customer’s premises and the point of presence of the 
Company’s underlying carrier. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Default Routing (“DR’) 

When an incoming E911 call cannot be selectively routed due to an ANI failure, garbled 
digits or other causes, such incoming calls are routed from the E911 Control Office to a 
default PSAP. Each incoming E911 facility group to the Control Office is assigned to a 
designated default PSAP. 

Demarcation Point 

The physical dividing point between the Company’s network and the Customer. 

Digital 

A method of storing, processing and transmitting information through the use of distinct 
electronic or optical pulses that represent the binary digits (bits) 0 and 1. Digital 
transmissiodswitching technologies employ a sequence of discrete, individually distinct 
pulses to represent information, as opposed to the continuously variable signal of analog 
technologies. 

Direct Inward Dial (“DID”) 

A service attribute that routes incoming calls directly to%tations, by-passing a central answer 
point. 

Direct Outward Dial (“DOD’) 

A service attribute that allows individual station users to access and dial outside numbers 
directly. 

Disconnect or Disconnection 

The termination of a circuit connection between the originating station and the called station 
or the Company’s operator. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Dual Tone Multi-Frequency (“DTMF”) 

The pulse type employed by tone dial station sets (touch tone). 

Emergency Service Number (“ESN’) 

A unique code, assigned by the Company, used to define specific combinations of police, fire 
and/or ambulance jurisdictions, or any other authorized agency, which are designated by the 
Customer. 

E91 1 Customer 

A governmental agency that is the customer of record and is responsible for all negotiations, 
operations and payment of bills in connection with the provision of E91 1 service. 

E91 1 Service Area 

The geographic area in which the government agency will respond to all E91 1 calls and 
dispatch appropriate emergency assistance. 

Error 

A discrepancy or unintentional deviation by the Company from what is correct or true. An 
“error” can also be an omission in records. 

Exchange 

An area, consisting of one or more central office districts, within which a call between any 
two points is a local call. 

Exchange Access Line 

A central office line furnished for direct or indirect access to the exchange system. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Exchange Service 

The provision to the subscriber of access to the exchange system for the purpose of sending 
and receiving calls. This access is achieved through the provision of a central office line 
(exchange access line) between the central office and the subscriber's premises. 

Final Account 

A Customer whose service has been disconnected who has outstanding charges still owed to 
the Company. 

Flat Rate Service 

The type of exchange service provided at a monthly rate with an unlimited number of calls 
within a specified primary calling area. 

Ground Start 

Describes the signaling method between the PBX/key system interface and the Company's 
switch. It is the signal requesting service. 

Handicapped Person 

A person who is legally blind, visually handicapped or physically handicapped, under the 
following definitions from the Federal Register (Vol. 35 No. 126 dated June 30, 1970). 

Legally Blind - a person whose visual acuity is 201200 or less in the better eye with correcting 
glasses, or whose widest diameter of visual field subtends an angular distance no greater than 
20 degrees. 

Visually Handicapped - a person whose visual disability, with correction and regardless of 
optical measurement with respect to legal blindness, are certified as unable to read normal 
printed material. 

Physically Handicapped - a person who is certified by competent authority as unable to read 
or use ordinary printed materials as a result of physical limitation, or a person whose disabling 
condition causes difficulty with hand and finger coordination and use of a coin telephone. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Holidays: 

Holidays include New Year's Day (January l), Memorial Day (last Monday in May), 
Independence Day (July 4), Labor Day (the first Monday in September), Thanksgiving Day 
(the fourth Thursday in November), and Christmas Day (December 25). 

Hunting: 

Routes a call to an idle station line in a prearranged group when the called station is busy 

Incoming Service Group 

Two or more central office lines arranged so that a call to the first line is completed to a 
succeeding line in the group when the first line is in use. 

ISDN (Integrated Services Digital Network): 

ISDN provides integrated voice and/or data communications capability for transmission of 
voice and/or data and packet switched data signals on an incoming and outgoing basis over a 
single line. 

Interface 

That point on the premises of the subscriber at which provision is made for connection of 
facilities provided by someone other than the Company to facilities provided by the 
Company. 

Interoffice Mileage 

The segment of a line which extends between the central offices serving the originating and 
terminating points. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Interruption 

The inability to complete calls, either incoming or outgoing or both, due to Company facilities 
malfunction or human errors. 

LATA 

Local Access and Transport Area. The area within which the Company provides local and 
long distance (“intraLATA”) service. For call to numbers outside this area (“interLATA”) 
service is provided by long distance companies. 

Leased Channel 

A non-switched electrical path used for connection of equipment furnished by the subscriber 
to equipment furnished by the subscriber or the Company for a specific purpose. 

Link 

The physical facility from the network interface on an end-user’s or carrier’s premises to the 
point of interconnection on the main distribution frame of the Company’s central office. 

Local Call 

A call which, if placed by a Customer over the facilities of the Company, is not rated as a toll 
call. 

Local Calling Area 

The area, consisting of one or more central office districts, within which a subscriber for 
exchange service may make telephone calls without a toll charge. 

Local Service 

I Telephone exchange service within a local calling area. 

I 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Loop start 

Describes the signaling between the terminal equipment or PBX/key system interface and the 
Company’s switch. It is the signal requesting service. 

Loops 

Segments of a line which extend from the serving central office to the originating and to the 
terminating point. 

Kbps: 

Kilobits per second, denotes thousands of bits per second. 

Message Rate Service 

A type of exchange service provided at a monthly rate with an additional charge for local 
calling based on the usage of the local network. One completed call is equal to one message. 

Move 

The disconnection of existing equipment at one locayion and reconnection of the same 
equipment at a new location in the same buiIding or in a different building on the same 
premises. 

Multi-Frequency (“MF”) 

An inter-machine pulse-type used for signaling between telephone company switches, or 
between telephone company switches and PBX/key systems. 

Multiline Hunt 

A method of call signaling by which a call placed to one number is subsequently routed to 
one or more alternative numbers when the called number is busy. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Network Control Signaling 

The transmission of signals used in the telecommunications system which perform functions 
such as supervision (control, status and charging signals), address signaling (e.g. dialing), 
calling and called number identification, audible tone signals (call progress signals indicating 
re-order or busy conditions, alerting) to control the operation of switching machines in the 
telecommunications system. 

Network Control Signaling Unit 

The terminal equipment furnished, installed and maintained by the Telephone Company for 
the provision of network control signaling. 

Node 

PBX 

Port 

The location to which digital channels are routed and where access is provided to such lines 
and associated equipment for testing. 

A private branch exchange. 

A connection to the switching network with one or more voice grade communications 
channels, each with a unique network address (telephone number) dedicated to the Customer. 
A port connects a link to the public switched network. 

Premises 

The space occupied by a Customer or authorized user in a building or buildings or contiguous 
property not separated by a public right of way. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Private Branch Exchange Service 

Service providing facilities for connecting central office trunks and tie lines to PBX stations, 
and for interconnecting PBX station lines by means of a switchboard or dial apparatus. 

Public Safety Answering Point (“PSAP”) 

An answering location for E91 1 calls originating in a given area. A PSAP may be designated 
as primary or secondary, which refers to the order in which calls are directed for answering. 
Primary PSAPs respond first; secondary PSAPs receive calls on a transfer basis only and 
generally serve as a centralized answering location for a particular type of emergency call. 

Rate Center 

A geographic reference point with specific coordinates on a map used for determining 
mileage when calculating charges. 

Referral Periods 

The time frame during which calls to a number which has been changed will be sent to a 
recording which will inform the caller of the new number. 

Resale of Service 

The subscription to communications service and facilities by one entity and the reoffering of 
communications service to others (with or without “adding value”) for profit. 

Same Premises 

All space in the same building in which one subscriber has the right of occupancy, and all 
space in different buildings on contiguous property when occupied solely by the same 
subscriber. Foyers, hallways and other space for the common use of all occupants of a 
building are considered the premises of the operator of the building. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Selective Routing (“SR’) 

A feature that routes an E911 call from a Central Office to the designated primary PSAP 
based upon the identified number of the calling party. 

Serving Central Office 

The central office from which local service is furnished. 

Sharing 

An arrangement in which several users collectively use communications service and facilities 
provided by a carrier, with each user paying a pro-rata share of the communication related 
costs. 

Station 

Each telephone on gline and where no telephone associated with the line is provided on the 
same premises and in the same building, the first termination in station key equipment or a 
jack for use with a portable telephone. 

Subscriber: 

See “Customer” definition. 

Suspension 

Suspension of service for nonpayment is interruption of outgoing service only. Suspension of 
service at the subscriber’s request is interruption of both incoming and outgoing service. 

Toll Call 

Any call extending beyond the local exchange of the originating caller which is rated on a toll 
schedule by the Company. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Travel Card 

See definition of Calling Card. 

Two Way 

A service attribute that includes DOD for outbound calls and can also be used to carry 
inbound calls to a central point for processing. 
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2.1. 

2.1.1. 

2.1.2. 

2.1.3. 

2.1.4. 

2.2. 

2.2.1. 

2.2.2. 

2.2.3. 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS 

UNDERTAKING OF COMPANY 

Company’s services are furnished for telecommunications originating andor terminating in 
any area within the State of Arizona. 

Company offers resold and facilities-based telecommunications services to Customers for the 
direct transmission and reception of voice, data, and other types of communications. 

The Company’s services are provided on a monthly basis unless otherwise provided, and are 
available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week. 

Request for service under this tariff will authorize the Company to conduct a credit search on 
the Customer. The Company reserves the right to refise service on the basis of credit 
history, and to refuse further service due to late payment or nonpayment by the Customer. 

LIMITATIONS 

Service is offered subject to availability of the necessary facilities and/or service and subject 
to the provisions of this Tariff. 

The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its facilities 
when available, and will not be liable for errors in transmission or for failure to establish 
connections. 

The Customer obtains no property right or interest in the use of any specific type of facility, 
service, equipment, telephone number, process or code. All rights, titles and interests 
remain, at all times, solely with the Company. 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Director of Finance/Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
78 1.229.9599 

http://essential.com


essential.com, inc A.C.C. Tariff No. 1 
Original Sheet No. 24 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.2. 

2.2.4. 

2.2.5. 

2.2.6. 

2.3. 

2.3.1. 

2.3.2. 

2.3.3. 

2.3.4. 

LIMITATIONS, Continued 

Prior written permission from the Company is required before any assignment or transfer. 
All regulations and conditions contained in this Tariff shall apply to all such permitted 
assignees or transferees, as well as all conditions of service. 

The Company may, upon reasonable notice, make such tests and inspections as may be 
necessary to determine whether the terms and conditions of this Tariff are being complied 
with in the installation, operation or maintenance of the Customer’s or the Company’s 
facilities or equipment. 

The Company reserves the right to refuse an application for service by a present or former 
Customer who is indebted to the Company for service previously rendered pursuant to this 
Tariff until this indebtedness is satisfied. 

USE 

Service may be used for the transmission of communications by the Customer for any lawful 
purpose for which it is technically suited. 

Service may not be used for any unlawful purpose or for any purpose for which any payment 
or other compensation is received by the Customer, except when the Customer is a duly 
authorized and regulated common carrier. This provision does not prohibit an arrangement 
between the Customer, authorized user or joint user to share the cost of service. 

The name(s) of the Customer(s) desiring to use the service must be set forth in the 
application for service. 

The Company strictly prohibits use of the Company’s services without payment or an 
avoidance of payment by the Customer by fraudulent means or devices including providing 
falsified calling card numbers or invalid calling card numbers to the Company, providing 
falsified or invalid credit card numbers to the Company or in any way misrepresenting the 
identity of the Customer. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.3. 

2.3.5. 

2.3.6. 

2.3.7. 

2.3.8. 

2.4. 

2.4.1. 

USE, Continued 

Recording of telephone conversations of service provided by the Company under this Tariff 
is prohibited except as authorized by applicable federal, state and local laws. 

Service will not be used to call another person so frequently or at such times of day or in any 
other manner so as to annoy, abuse, threaten or harass the called party. 

Service will not be used in any manner which interferes with other persons in the use of their 
service, prevents other persons from using their service or otherwise impairs the quality of 
service to other Customers. 

The Company reserves the right to refuse an application for service made by a present or 
former Customer who is indebted to the Company for service previously rendered pursuant 
to this Tariff until the indebtedness is satisfied. 

LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY 

The liabilities of the Company for damages arising out of mistakes, omissions, interruptions, 
delays, errors or defects in transmission occurring in the course of furnishing service or other 
facilities and not caused by the negligence of the Customer, commences upon activation of 
service and in no event exceeds an amount equivalent to the proportionate charge to the 
Customer for the period of service during which such mistakes, omissions, interruptions, 
delays, errors, or defects in transmission occur. For the purpose of computing such amount a 
month is considered to have thirty (30) days. In no event will the Company be responsible 
for consequential damages for lost profits suffered by a customer or end user as the result of 
interrupted or unsatisfactory service. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.4. LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY, Continued 

2.4.2. Company is not liable for any act or omission of any other company or companies furnishing 
a portion of the service. 

2.4.3. Company shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Customer against: 

A. Claims for libel, slander, infringement of copyright or unauthorized use of any 
trademark, trade name or service mark arising out of the material, data, information or 
other content transmitted over Company’s facilities; and 

B. Claims for patent infringement arising from combining or connecting Company’s 
facilities with apparatus and systems of the Customer; and 

C. All other claims arising out of any act or omission of the Customer in connection with 
any service provided by Company. 

2.4.4. Company is not liaBle for any defacement of, or damage to, the equipment or premises of a . 
customer resulting from the h i s h i n g  of services when such defacement or damage is not 
the result of the Company’s negligence. 

2.4.5. Company shall not be liable for, and the Customer indemnifies and holds harmless from, any 
and all loss claims, demands, suits, or other action or liability whatsoever, whether suffered, 
instituted or asserted by the Customer or by any other party of person, for any personal injury 
to, death of any person or persons, and for any loss, damage, defacement or destruction of the 
premises of the Customer or any other property, whether owned by the Customer or by 
others, caused or claimed to have be caused directly or indirectly by the installation, 
operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, location or use of 
equipment or wiring provided by Company where such installation, operation, failure to 
operate, maintenance, condition, location or use is not the direct result of Company’s 
negligence. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.4. LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY, Continued 

2.4.6. No agents or employees of connecting, concurring or other participating carriers or 
companies shall be deemed agents or employees of the Company without written 
authorization. 

2.4.7. The Company is not liable for any failure of performance hereunder due to causes beyond its 
control, including, but not limited to, unavoidable interruption in the working of its circuits or 
those of another common carrier; acts of nature: storms, fire, flood, or other 
catastrophes; any law, order, regulation, direction, action, or request of the United States 
Government, or any other governmental entity having jurisdiction over the company or of 
any department, agency, Commission, bureau, corporation, or other instrumentality or any 
one or more of such instrumentality or any one of more of such governmental entities, or of 
any civil or military authority; national emergencies, insurrections, riots, rebellions, wars, 
strikes, lockouts, work stoppages, or other labor difficulties; or notwithstanding anything in 
this Tariff to the contrary, the unlawfd acts of the Company’s agents and employees, if 
committed beyond the scope of their employment. 

2.4.8. The Company shall not be liable for damages or adjustments, refunds, or cancellation of 
charges unless the Customer has notified the Company, in writing, of any dispute concerning 
charges, or the basis of any claim for damages, after the invoice is rendered by the company 
for the call giving rise to such dispute or claim, unless ordered by the Commission pursuant 
to Arizona law. Any such notice must set forth sufficient facts to provide the Company with 
a reasonable basis upon which to evaluate the Customer’s claim or demands. 

2.4.9. The Company shall not be liable for any damages, including usage charges, that the 
Customer may incur as a result of the unauthorized use of its communications equipment. 
The unauthorized use of the Customer’s communications equipment includes, but is not 
limited to, the placement of calls from the Customer’s premises and the placement of calls 
through Customer-controlled or Customer-provisioned equipment that are transmitted or 
carried over the Company’s network services without the authorization of the Customer. The 
Customer shall be fully liable for all such charges. 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Director of Finance/Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4’ floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
781.229.9599 

http://essential.com


essential.com, inc A.C.C. Tariff No. 1 
Original Sheet No. 28 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.4. LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY, Continued 

2.4.10. The Company shall not be liable for the Customer’s failure to fulfill its obligations to take all 
necessary steps, including obtaining, installing and maintaining all necessary equipment, 
materials and supplies for interconnecting the terminal equipment or communications system 
of the Customer, or any third party acting as the Customer’s agent, to the Company’s 
network. 

2.4.1 1. With respect to Emergency Number 91 1 Service: 

A. This service is offered solely as an aid in handling assistance calls in connection with 
fire, police and other emergencies. The Company is not responsible for any losses, 
claims, demands, suits or any liability whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted 
or asserted by the Customer, or by any other party or person, for any personal injury 
to or death of any person or persons, and for any loss, damage or destruction of any 
property, whether owned by the Customer or others, caused or claimed to have been 
caused by: (1) mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors or other defects in 
the provision of this service; or (2) installation, operation, failure to operate, 
maintenance, removal, presence, condition, location or use of any equipment and 
facilities furnishing this service. 

B. Neither is the Company responsible for any infringement or invasion of the right of 
privacy of any person or persons, caused or claimed to have been caused, directly or 
indirectly, by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, 
presence, condition, occasion or use of Emergency 91 1 Service features and the 
equipment associated therewith, or by any services furnished by the Company, 
including, but not limited to, the identification of the telephone number, address or 
name associated with the telephone used by the party or parties accessing Emergency 
911 Service, and which arises out of the negligence or other wrongful act of the 
Company, the Customer, its users, agencies or municipalities, or the employees or 
agents of any one of them. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.4. 

2.4.12. 

2.4.13. 

2.4.14. 

2.4.15. 

2.4.16. 

LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY, Continued 

In the absence of gross negligence or willful misconduct, no liability for damages arising 
from errors, mistakes in or omissions of directory listings, or errors, mistakes or omissions of 
listings obtainable from the directory assistance operator, including errors in the reporting 
thereof, will attach to the Company. 

The Company’s liability arising from errors or omissions in directory listings will be limited 
to the amount of actual impairment to the Customer’s service and in no event will exceed 
one-half (1/2) the amount of the fixed monthly charges applicable to exchange service 
affected during the period covered by the directory in which the error or omission occurs. 

As part of providing any private listing or semi-private listing services, the Company will not 
be liable for failure or rehsal to complete any call to such telephone when the call is not 
placed by dialing a number which includes the number of the party called. The Company 
will try to prevent the disclosure of unpublished listings, but will not be liable in any manner 
should such a number be divulged. 

When a Customer with a non-published telephone number places a call to the Emergency 
91 1 Service, the Company will release the name and address of the calling party, where such 
information can be determined, to the appropriate local governmental authority responsible 
for the Emergency 911 Service, upon request of such governmental authority. By 
subscribing to service under this Tariff, the Customer agrees to the release of such 
information under the above provision. 

The Company will use reasonable efforts to make available services to a Customer on or 
before a particular date, subject to the provisions of, and compliance by the Customer with, 
the regulations contained in this Tariff. The Company does not guarantee availability by any 
such date and will not be liable for any delays in commencing service to any Customer. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.5. EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES 

2.5.1. The Company will not be responsible for the installation, operation or maintenance of any 
Customer-provided communications equipment. Where Customer-provisioned equipment is 
connected to the facilities furnished under this Tariff, the responsibility of the Company will 
be limited to the furnishing of facilities offered pursuant to this Tariff. Beyond this 
responsibility, the Company will not be responsible for: 

A. the transmission of signals by Customer-provided equipment or for the quality of, or 
defects in, such transmission; or 

B. the reception of signals by Customer-provided equipment; or 

C. network control signaling when performed by Customer-provided network control 
signaling equipment. 

2.6. CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES 

2.6.1. The Customer is responsible for the payment of all charges for services furnished to the 
Customer and for all additional charges for calls the Customer elects to continue making. 

2.6.2. The Customer is responsible for compliance with applicable regulations set forth in this 
Tariff. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.6. CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES, Continued 

2.6.3. The Customer is responsible for establishing its identity as often as necessary'during the 
course of the call or when seeking credits from the Company. 

2.7. INTERRUPTION OF SERVICE 

2.7.1. Credit for Interruutions: When the use of service or facilities furnished by the Company is 
interrupted due to any cause other than the negligence or willful act of the Customer, or the 
operation or failure of the facilities or equipment provided by the Customer, a pro rata 
adjustment of the monthly Recurring Charges subject to interruption will be allowed for the 
service and facilities rendered useless and inoperative by reason of the interruption whenever 
said interruption continues for a period of 24 hours or more from the time the interruption is 
reported to or known to exist by the Company, except as otherwise specified in the Company's 
tariffs. If the Customer reports a service, facility or circuit to be inoperative but declines to 
release it for testing and repair, it is considered to be impaired, but not interrupted. Credit 
allowance for interruptions of service which are not due to Company's testing or adjusting, to 
the negligence of the Customer, or to the failure of channels, equipment and/or communications 
equipment provided by the Customer, are subject to the general liability provisions set forth in 
Section 2.4., herein. It shall be the obligation of the Customer to notify Company of any 
interruptions of service. Before giving such notice, the Customer shall ascertain that the trouble 
is not being caused by any action or omission of the Customer, not within the Customer's 
control. 

2.7.2. For purposes of credit computation, every month shall be considered to have 720 hours. No 
credit shall be allowed for an interruption of a continuous duration of less than two hours. 

2.7.3. The Customer shall be credited for an interruption of two hours or more at the rate of 1/720th of 
the monthly recurring charge for each hour or major fraction thereof that the interruption 
continues. 

Credit formula: Credit = (N720) X B 

A - outage time in hours 

B - total monthly charge for affected utility 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.8. 

2.8.1. 

2.8.2. 

2.9. 

2.9.1. 

2.9.2. 

2.9.3. 

RESTORATION OF SERVICE 

The use and restoration of service in emergencies shall be in accordance with part 64, 
Subpart D of the Federal Communications Commission’s Rules and Regulations on file with 
the Commission, which specifies the priority system for such activities. 

When a Customer’s service has been disconnected in accordance with this Tariff and the 
service has been terminated through the completion of a Company service order, service will 
be restored only upon the basis of application for new service. 

MINIMUM SERVICE PERIOD 

The minimum service period is one month (30 days). The Customer must pay the regular 
tariffed rate for the service they subscribe to for the minimum period of service. If a 
Customer disconnects service before the end of’the minimum service period, that Customer is 
responsible for paying the regular rates for the remainder of the minimum service period. 
When the service is moved within the same building, to another building on the same 
premises, or to a different premises entirely, the period of service at each location is 
accumulated to calculate if the Customer has met the minimum period of service obligation. 

If service is terminated before the end of the minimum period of service as a result of 
condemnation of property, damage to property requiring the premises to be abandoned, or by 
the death of the Customer, the Customer is not obligated to pay for service for the remainder 
of the minimum period. 

If service is switched over to a new Customer at the same premises after the first month’s 
service, the minimum period of service requirements are assigned to the new Customer if the 
new Customer agrees in writing to accept them. For facilities not taken over by the new 
Customer, the original Customer is responsible for the remaining payment for the minimum 
service period in accordance with the terms under which the service was originally furnished. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.10. 

2.11. 

2.11.1. 

2.1 I .2. 

2.1 1.3. 

2.1 1.4. 

2.11.5. 

ACCESS TO CUSTOMER’S PREMISES 

The Customer shall be responsible for making arrangements or obtaining permission for safe 
and reasonable access for Company employees or agents of the Company to enter the 
premises of the Customer or any joint user or Customer of the Customer at any reasonable 
hour for the purpose of inspecting, repairing, testing or removing any part of the Company’s 
facilities. 

PAYMENTS AND BILLING 

Charges for service are applied on a recurring basis. Service is provided and billed on a 
monthly (30 day) basis. The billing date is dependent on the billing cycle assigned to the 
Customer. Service continues to be provided until cancelled by the Customer on not less than 
thirty (30) days’ notice. 

The Customer is responsible for the payment of all charges for services furnished to the 
Customer. Charges are based on actual usage, and are billed monthly in arrears. Customer 
will be billed and is responsible for payment of applicable local, state and federal taxes 
assessed in connection with the services used. It is contemplated that payment be done 
electronically, with payment made by means of the Customer’s credit card, debit card, or 
other similar mechanism approved by the Company. In the sole discretion of the Company, 
payments may be made by check. 

Billing is payable upon receipt and past due thirty (30) days after issuance and posting of 
invoice. Late payment charges may be applied, pursuant to Arizona Corporation Commission 
Regulations, which provides that a maximum one and one-half (1.5) percent may be added to 
any unpaid balance brought forward from the previous billing date to cover the cost of 
collection and carrying accounts in arrears. 

Return check charges may be applied in an amount not to exceed that allowed by applicable 
state law, as contained in the Arizona Code. 

Customers should first seek to resolve billing disputes through the Company’s website, 
www.essential.com/, or by email to the address indicated on the Customer’s most recent 
invoice. Additionally, inquiries may be addressed to Company’s customer service 
organization by mail at Three Burlington Woods Drive Burlington, MA 01803-4543, or by 
telephone to 888.746.4983. Customer service representatives are available to address such 
inquiries and any inquiries outside of normal business hours will be answered on the next 
business day. In the event of an emergency which threatens Customer service, the Company 
will respond as promptly as possible. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.11. PAYMENTS AND BILLING 

2.1 1.6. In the case of a dispute between the Customer and the Company for service furnished to the 
Customer, which cannot be settled with mutual satisfaction, the Customer can take the 
following course of action: 

A. First, the customer may request, and the Company will perform, an in-depth review of 
the disputed amount. The undisputed portion and subsequent bills must be paid on a 
timely basis or the service may be subject to disconnection. 

Second, if there is still disagreement over the disputed amount after the investigation 
and review by a manager of the Company, the Customer may appeal to the Arizona 
Corporation Commission for its investigation and decision. 

The address and telephone number of the Commission are: 

Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

B. 

Telephone number: 602-542-41 43 
Toll-free: 1-800-222-7000 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.12. 

2.12.1. 

2.12.2. 

2.12.3. 

CANCELLATION BY CUSTOMER 

Customer may cancel service by providing written or oral notice to Company thirty (30) days 
prior to cancellation. 

Customer is responsible for all usage charges and other charges incurred in connection with 
the Company’s service(s) and the payment thereof, regardless of the Customer’s cancellation 
of some, or all of the services it takes from the Company from time to time. 

Any cost of Company expenditures shall be borne by the Customer if 

A. The Customer orders service requiring special facilities dedicated to the Customer’s 
use and then cancels the order before such service begins, before completion of the 
minimum period or before completion of some the period mutually agreed with the 
Customer; or 

B. Liabilities are incurred expressly on behalf of the Customer by Company and not 
fully reimbursed by installation and monthly charges; and 

C. If based on an order for service and construction has either begun or has been 
completed, but no service provided. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.13. CANCELLATION BY COMPANY 

~ 

2.13.1. Company reserves the right to immediately discontinue furnishing the service to customers 
without incurring liability: 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

In the event of a condition determined to be hazardous to the Customer, to other 
Customers of the Company, to the Company’s equipment, the public or to employees 
of the Company; or 

By reason of any order or decision of a court or any other governmental authority 
which prohibits the Company from furnishing such service; or 

If the Company deems such refusal necessary to protect itself or third parties against 
fraud or to otherwise protect its personnel, agents, facilities or services without 
notice; or 

For unlawful use of the service or use of the service for un1awfi.d purposes; or 

If the Customer provides false information to the Company regarding the Customer’s 
identity, address, credit-worthiness, past, current or planned use of Company’s 
services. 

e 

2.13.2. Company may discontinue service with five (5) day’s written notice in accordance with A.C.C. 
Rule R14-2-509(C), Termination of Service with Notice: 

A. For Customer violation of any of the Company’s tariffs filed with the Commission and/or 
violation of the Commission’s rules and regulations; or 

B. For failure of the customer to provide the Company reasonable access to its equipment 
and property; or 

C. For Customer breach of contract for service between the Company and Customer; or 

D. When necessary for the Company to comply with an order of any governmental agency 
having jurisdiction; or 

~ E. For the unauthorized resale of equipment or service. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.13. 

2.13.3. 

2.13.4. 

2.13.5. 

2.14. 

CANCELLATION BY COMPANY, Continued 

Prohibited, unlawful or improper use of the facilities or service includes, but is not limited to: 

A. The use of facilities or service of the Company without payment of tariff charges; or 

B. Calling or permitting others to call another person or persons so frequently or at such 
times of the day or in such manner as to harass, frighten, abuse or torment such other 
person or persons; or 

C. The use of profane or obscene language; or 

D. The use of the service in such a manner such that it interferes with the service of other 
customers or prevents them from making or receiving calls. 

The discontinuance of service(s) by the Company pursuant to this section does not relieve the 
Customer of any obligations to pay the Company for charges due and owing for service(s) 
furnished up to the time of discontinuance. The remedies available to the Company set forth 
herein shall not be exclusive and the Company shall at all times be entitled to all the rights 
available to it under law or equity. 

The Company may refuse to permit collect calling, calling card, third number billing which it 
determines to be fraudulent and/or may limit the use of these billing options or services. 

ADVANCED PAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 

The Company does not require an advanced payment or deposit from the Customer, but 
reserves the right to collect advanced payments and deposits, as necessary. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.15. 

2.15.1. 

2.15.2. 

2.15.3. 

2.16. 

2.17. 

INTERCONNECTION 

The Customer shall secure all licenses, permits, rights-of-way and other arrangements 
necessary for interconnection with the Company. In addition, the Customer shall ensure that 
its equipment and/or system or that of its agent is properly interfaced with the Company’s 
service and the signals emitted into the Company’s network are of the proper mode, band- 
width, power, data speed and signal level for the intended use of the Customer. If the 
Customer or its agent fails to properly maintain and operate its equipment andor system of 
that of its agent, the Company may, upon written request, require the use of protective 
equipment at the Customer’s expense. 

Service furnished by Company may be interconnected with services or facilities of other 
authorized communications common carriers and with private systems, subject to the 
technical limitations established by Company. Any special interface of equipment or 
facilities necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities of Company and other 
participating carriers shall be provided at the Customer’s expense. 

Interconnection between the facilities or services of other carriers shall be under the 
applicable terms and conditions of the other carriers’ tariffs. The Customer is responsible for 
taking all necessary legal steps for interconnecting Customer-provided terminal equipment or 
communications equipment with Company’s facilities. The Customer shall secure all 
licenses, permits, rights-of-way, and other such arrangements necessary for interconnection. 

FULL FORCE AND EFFECT 

Should any provision or portion of this tariff be held by a court or administrative agency of 
competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this 
tariff will remain in full force and effect. 

CREDIT LIMIT 

The Company may, at any time and at its sole discretion, set a credit limit for any Customer’s 
consumption of services for any monthly period. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.17. MARKETING 

As a telephone utility under the regulation of the Arizona Corporation Commission, the 
Company hereby asserts and affirms that as a reseller of intrastate telecommunications service, 
the Company will not indulge or participate in deceptive or misleading telecommunications 
marketing practices to the detriment of consumers in Arizona, and the Company will comply 
with those marketing procedures, if any, set forth by the Commission. The Company 
understands that violation of this provision could result in a rule to Show Cause as to the 
withdrawal of its certification to complete intrastate telecommunications traffic within the State 
of Arizona. 

2.18 GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORIZATIONS 

The provision of Company's Services is subject to, and contingent upon, Company obtaining 
and retaining such approvals, consents, governmental authorizations, licenses and permits, as 
may be required or be deemed necessary by the Company. Company shall use reasonable 
efforts to obtain and keep in effect all such approvals, consents, authorizations, licenses and 
permits that may be required to be obtained by it. Company shall be entitled to take, and shall 
have no liability whatsoever for, any action necessary to bring the Services into conformance 
with any rules, regulations, orders, decisions or directives imposed by the Federal 
Communications Commission or other applicable agency, and the Customer shall fully 
cooperate in and take such action as may be requested by Company to comply with any such 
rules, regulations, orders, decisions or directives. Company's obligation to provide Service 
hereunder will terminate if any required governmental authorization or grant is withdrawn, 
revoked or otherwise terminated. 

. 

2.19 PROMOTIONS 

Company may, from time to time, engage in special promotions of new or existing Service 
offerings of limited duration designed to attract new Customers or to increase existing 
Customer awareness of a particular offering. The promotional offerings are subject to the 
availability of the Services and may be limited to a specific geographical area, to a subset of a 
specific market group or to customers who sign up for such Service during a particular 
promotional period. Prior approval for promotional offerings will be obtained from the 
appropriate regulatory authority when required. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.20 EFFECTIVE DATE 

The terms and conditions of this Section 3.6, Rates and Charges, will apply to Customers 
whose service commences on or after the Effective date of this tariff. Customers whose 
Service commenced before the Effective date of this tariff may choose to receive Service 
under the Rates and Charges in this tariff upon request through Company’s customer care 
representatives. All other terms and conditions of this Tariff will apply to all Customers for 
all Service provided by Company on and after the Effective date of this Tariff, regardless of 
when Service commenced. 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE 

3.1. 

3.1.1. 

3.1.2. 

3.1.3. 

GENERAL 

Company provides Services through the local exchange carrier or alternative 
communications providers. Depending on the Customer's needs, they have a choice of 
features to which they can subscribe. Company also provides access to interexchange 
Service by resale of service from interexchange carriers. 

Local Exchange Service provides the Customer with touch tone, voice-grade 
telecommunications services that can be used to place or receive calls. The Customer may 
place calls to any local calling station in the local calling area. Additionally, subject to 
availability, the Customer may access certain features, including, operator services, directory 
assistance, enhanced 9 1 1 (where available to Company), custom calling features, including 
voice mail (where available) and telecommunications relay services. The Customer may also 
place calls to toll-free numbers where equipment allows. 

Toll Service allows the Customer to make direct-dial intrastate, and access to interstate and 
international calls, unless restricted by Company as allowed herein or as restricted by law. 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.2 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE 

3.2.1. Generally 

essential.com, inc. offers business customers a choice of either flat-rate or measured service. 
The measured service option does not include a monthly usage allowance. Its time-of-day 
schedule concurs with the standard time-of-day schedule. Also, measured service is not 
available for PBX trunks. All customers are subject to an Arizona Universal Service Fund 
(USF) surcharge per line/trunk. 

In addition, Essential.com offers two optional features, detail billing and Stand-By Line. 
Detail billing provides measured service customers with an itemization of all outgoing local 
calls. Stand-By Line allows customers to place and receive overflow calls while their regular 
lines/trunks are occupied. A monthly fee applies for each arrangement, as well as a fixed 
charge for each minute of incoming and/or outgoing usage diverted to the Stand-By Line. 

3.2.2 Flat Rate Service 
Monthly Recurring Non Recurring 

Charge Charge 

Individual Line 
Multiline Key 
PBX Trunk 

Direct Inward Dialing (DID) 
Block of 20 DID Numbers 
Individual DID Number 
DID Trunk Termination 

$22.65 
$22.65 
$49.66 

$3.90 
$0.75 
$55.00 

$69.00 
$69.00 
$69.00 

$26.00 
$ 1.30 
$69.00 
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DAY EVENING NIGHT 
First Min Add'l Min First Min Add'l Min First Min Add'l Min ' 

Band A (Intra- $0.0600 $0.0600 $0.0230 $0.0230 $0.0090 $0.0900 ~ 

Wire Center 
Band B (0-25 $0.0800 $0.0800 $0.0360 $0.0360 $0.0260 $0.0260 
Miles) 
Band C (26+ $0.0900 $0.0900 $0.0655 $0.0655 $0.0480 $0.0480 
Miles) 

SECTION 3 - BASIC LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.2 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.2.3 Measured Monthly Service 
Monthly Recurring Non Recurring 

Charge Charge 

Individual Line 
Multiline Key 

Measured Usage Charges 

$18.35 
$1 8.35 

$69.00 
$69.00 

3.2.4 Additional Charges 
Monthly Recurring 

Charge 

Hunting, Per Arrangement $3.90 
End User Common Line Charge (EUCL) 

Individual Line $4.00 
Multiline KeyPBX $9.93 

Directory Assistance 

Arizona USF Surcharge $0.01 1593 
After 1'' Call (Per Call) $0.97 

3.2.5 Other Charges 

Detail Billing (Measured Only) 
Per Account $0.00 
Per Call $0.04 

Non Recurring 
Charge 

$16.90 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$16.90 
$0.00 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.2 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.2.5 Other Charges, continued 
Monthly Recurring Non Recurring 

Charge Charge 
Stand-By Line 

Per Arrangement 
Per Minute of Usage 

3.2.6 Order Charges 

Service Order 
Each Add’l Line/Trunk 
Adds or Changes 

Record Order 

3.2.7 Premises Visit Charge 

. First 15 Minutes 
Add’l 15 Minutes 

3.2.8 Vertical Features 

Speed Calling 
8 Number 
30 Number 

Three-way Calling 
Call Forwarding 

Variable 
Busy Line (Expanded) 
Busy Line (External) 
Busy Line (Overflow) 
Busy Line (Programmable) 
Don’t Answer 
Don’t Answer (Expanded) 
Don’t Answer (Programmable) 
Don’t Answer (Overflow) 
Busy LineDon’t Answer 

$19.75 
$0.08 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$3.90 
$5.50 
$5.00 

$8.80 
$5.90 
$4.90 
$9.00 
$9.00 
$8.00 
$5.00 
$6.50 
$13.50 
$6.50 

$69.00 
$0.00 

$69.00 
$3 1.50 
$25.00 

$71 .OO 
$29.00 

$16.90 
$16.90 
$16.90 

$16.90 
$16.90 
$16.90 
$16.90 
$16.90 
$16.90 
$16.90 
$16.90 
$16.90 
$16.90 
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I 
I SECTION 3 - BASIC LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

I 3.2 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.2.8 Vertical Features, continued 

Call Manager Connection 
With Call Waiting 
With Call Waiting ID 

Call Rejection 
Call Waiting 
Abbreviated Access (One Digit) 

Each Shared List 
Each Line Arranged 

Each Shared List 
Each Line Arranged 

Caller ID 
Name and Number 
Number 
With Privacy 

Call Transfer 
Continuous Redial 
Dial Call Waiting 
Directed Call Pickup 
Directed Call Pickup w/ Barge-in 
Distinctive Alert 
Hot Line 
Last Call Return 

Remote Access Forwarding 
Selective Call Forwarding 
Do Not Disturb 
Dial Lock 
Scheduled Forwarding 
Receptionist 

Abbreviated Access (Two Digits) 

Priority Call 

With Name and Number 
With Number Only 
With Caller ID w/ Privacy 

Warm Line 
Wireless Extension 

Monthly Recurring 
Charge 
$25.95 
$25.95 
$25.95 
$5.50 
$8.50 

$26.00 
$0.08 

$33.00 
$0.15 

$9.95 
$9.50 
$12.95 
$9.00 
$4.50 
$3.15 
$2.00 
$2.00 
$2.00 
$2.50 
$3.90 
$4.50 
$8.75 
$5.50 
$5.95 
$5.95 
$9.75 

$15.45 
$15.00 
$1 8.45 
$2.50 
$4.95 

Issued: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Director of Finance/Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 
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Non Recurring 
Charge 
$16.90 
$16.90 
$16.90 
$16.90 
$16.90 

$16.90 
$16.90 

$16.90 
$16.90 

$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 

$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 

Effective Date: 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.2 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.2.8 Vertical Features, continued 
Monthly Recurring Non Recurring 

Charge Charge 

Custom Ringing 
First Add’l Number 
Second Add’l Number 
Third Add’l Number 

3.2.9 Package Plans (Two Features) 
Call Forwarding Variable & 
Call Waiting 

Call Waiting & Three-way 
Calling 

Call Forwarding Vbable  & 
Three-way Calling 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Call Waiting 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 30 Numbers 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Call Forwarding Variable 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Three-way Calling 

Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Call Waiting 

Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Call Forwarding Variable 

$9.45 
$6.25 
$6.25 

$12.00 

$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 

$16.00 

$10.50 $16.00 

$8:50 $16.00 

$9.50 $16.00 

$8.00 $16.00 

$8.50 $16.00 

$7.50 $16.00 

$10.90 $16.00 

$8.50 $16.00 

Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Three-way Calling $8.00 $16.00 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.2 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

I 3.2.10 Package Plans (Three Features) 
i Monthly Recurring Non Recurring 

Call Waiting & Three-way 
Calling & Call Forwarding Variable 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Call Forwarding Variable & 
Three-way Calling 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Call Waiting & Three-way Calling 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers 62 
Speed Calling 30 Numbers & Call Waiting 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Three-way Calling 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Call Forwarding Variable 

Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Call Forwarding Variable & Call Waiting 

Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Call Forwarding Variable & 
Three-way Calling 

Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Call Waiting & Three-way Calling 

Charge 

$1 1.50 

$13.60 

$13.50 

$14.00 

$14.00 

$14.00 

$15.50 

$13.60 

$14.00 

Charge 

$16.00 

$16.00 

$16.00 

$16.00 

$16.00 

$16.00 

$16.00 

$16.00 

$16.00 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.2 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.2.1 1 Package Plans (Four Features) 
Monthly Recurring Non Recurring 

Charge Charge 
Call Waiting & Three-way 
Calling & Call Forwarding Variable & 
Speed Calling 8 Numbers $17.50 $1 6.00 

Call Forwarding Variable & Three-way 
Calling & Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 8 Numbers $1 5.00 

Three-way Calling & Call Waiting 
Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 8 Numbers $1 7.00 

Call Waiting & Three-way 
Calling & Call Forwarding Variable & 
Speed Calling 30 Numbers $17.50 

3.2.12 Package Plans (Five Features) 

Call Waiting & Three-way 
Calling & Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 8 Numbers 

3.2.13 Per Use Feature 

Call Trace 
Continuous Redial 
Last Call Return 
Three-way Calling 

$20.00 

$3.00 
$1.75 
$1.75 
$1.75 

$16.00 

$16.00 

$16.00 

$1 6.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.3 RESIDENTIAL LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE 

3.3.1. Generally 

essential.com, inc. offers residential customers a choice of either flat-rate or Low Use 
(message) service. The Low-Use service option does not include a monthly usage allowance. 
All customers are subject to an Arizona Universal Service Fund (USF) surcharge per 
line/trunk. 

In addition, Essential.com offers a Home Business Line option. Although Essential.com 
classifies this service as business, its customer base may include business who operate from a 
residential location. Home Business Line may include the Custom Ringing feature, so that 
one line may accommodate two separate phone numbers. One of these phone numbers 
“home” number; the other is the “business” number. Essential.com provides a directory 
listing for both numbers at no additional charge. 

3.3.2 Flat Rate Service 
Monthly Recurring Non Recurring 

Charge Charge 

Individual Line 
Home Business Line 

$15.18 
$40.03 

$59.00 
$62.00 

3.2.3 Message Monthly Service 

Individual Line $9.50 $59.50 

3.3.4 Additional Charges 
Monthly Recurring Non Recurring 

Charge Charge 
End User Common Line Charge (EUCL) 

Primary Line $3.50 $0.00 
Additional Line $6.07 $0.00 

After 1’‘ Call (Per Call) $0.47 $0.00 
Arizona USF Surcharge $0.01 1593 $0.00 

Directory Assistance 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.3 

3.3.5 

3.3.6 

3.3.7 

RESIDENTIAL LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

Order Charges 

Service Order 
New or Add’l Line 
Adds of Changes 

Record Order 

Premises Visit Charge 

First 15 Minutes 
Add’l 15 Minutes 

Vertical Features 

Speed Calling 
8 Number 
30 Number 

Three-way Calling 
Call Forwarding 

Variable 
Busy Line (Expanded) 
Busy Line (Overflow) 
Busy Line (Programmable) 
Don’t Answer 
Don’t Answer (Expanded) 
Don’t Answer (Programmable) 
Busy Linemon’t Answer 

Monthly Recurring Non Recurring 
Charge Charge 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$4.00 
$5.50 
$5.50 

$5.00 
$1.00 
$0.50 
$3.85 
$1.50 
$1.50 
$3.60 
$6.50 

$0.00 
$13.00 

$9.50 

$65.00 
$28.00 

$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 

$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Director of Finance/Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
78 1.229.9599 

http://essential.com


essential.com, inc A.C.C. Tariff No. 1 
Original Sheet No. 51 

SECTION 3 - BASIC LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.3 RESIDENTIAL LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

3.3.7 Vertical Features, continued 
Monthly Recurring Non Recurring 

Charge Charge 

Call Rejection 
Call Waiting 
Abbreviated Access (One Digit) 
Abbreviated Access (Two Digits 

Each Line Arranged 
Caller ID 

Name and Number 
Number 
With Privacy 

Call Transfer 
Continuous Redial 
Dial Call Waiting 
Dial Lock 
Directed Call Pickup 
Directed Call Pickup w/ Barge-in 
Distinctive Alert 
Hot Line 
Last Call Return 
Priority Call 
Remote Access Forwarding 
Selective Call Forwarding 
Do Not Disturb 
Scheduled Forwarding 
Receptionist 

a 

With Name and Number 
With Number Only 
With Caller ID w/ Privacy 

Warm Line 
Wireless Extension 

$5.50 
$6.00 
$1 S O  
$1.50 
$0.55 

$6.95 
$6.50 
$1 1.95 
$8.00 
$4.50 
$4.15 
$5.95 
$1..50 
$1 S O  
$1.50 
$2.50 
$3.35 
$3.30 
$4.95 
$4.50 
$4.95 
$5.95 

$12.95 
$12.50 
$15.95 
$3.50 
$5.95 

$16.00 
$1 6.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 

$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$1 6.00 
$1  6.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 

$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 
$16.00 

3.3.8 Per Use Feature 
Call Trace $2.50 $0.00 
Continuous Redial $1.75 $0.00 
Last Call Return $1.75 $0.00 
Three-way Calling $1.75 $0.00 
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DAY EVENING 
1 'I Min I Add'l Min 1'' Min Add'l Min 
$0.3 394 I $0.3394 $0.2500 $0.2500 

SECTION 3 - BASIC LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

NIGHT 
1" Min Add'l Min 
$0.2500 $0.2500 

3.4 INTRASTATE INTRALATA MESSAGE TOLL SERVICE 

DAY EVENING 
1 'I Min Add'l Min 1'' Min Add'l Min 
$0.3394 $0.3394 $0.2500 $0.2500 

3.4.1 Business MTS 

NIGHT 
1'' Min Add'l Min 
$0.2500 $0.2500 

3.4.1.1 Dial Station 

3.4.1.2 Travel Card 

First Minute 
Additional Minute 

$0.2590 
$0.2590 

3.4.2 Residential MTS 

3.4.2.1 Dial Station 

3.4.2.2 Travel Card 

First Minute 
Additional Minute 

$0.2590 
$0.2590 

3.4.3 Surcharges Per Call 

Directory Assistance 
Private Phone 

Calling Card 
Fully Automated 
Semi- Automated 

Operator Assisted 
Person-to-Person 
Coin Sent-Paid 

$0.67 

$0.50 (from payphone) 
$1.85 
$2.30 
$4.50 
$2.30 
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: SECTION 4 - DIRECTORY LISTINGS 

3.1. 

4.1.1. General 

REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO DIRECTORY LISTINGS 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

1. 
2. 

F. 

G. 

The rates and regulations specified herein for directory listings apply only to the 
alphabetical section of the directory. Listings are intended solely for the purpose of 
identifying Customer’s telephone numbers and as an aid to the use of telephone 
service. 

The listings of Customers, either without charge or at the rate specified herein for 
other listings are arranged alphabetically and are not intended for special prominence 
of arrangement. In accepting listings as requested by Customers or prospective 
Customers, the Company will not be a party to controversies between Customers as a 
result of the publication of such listings in its directories. 

Listings must conform to the Company’s specifications with respect to its directories. 
The Company reserves the right to reject listings when, in its sole judgment, such 
listings would violate the integrity of company records and its directories, confuse 
individuals using the directory, or when the customer cannot provide satisfactory 
evidence that he is authorized to do business as requested. 

The Company reserves the right to limit the length of any listing to one ( 1 )  line in the 
directory by use of abbreviations when, in its judgment, the clearness of the listing 
and the identification of the Customer is not impaired thereby. 

One listing is furnished without extra charge as specified in the following: 

each basic local exchange line 
each PBX trunk 

The use of listings in excess of those described in E. preceding may be provided 
without charge when in the sole judgment of the Company they are needed for better 
identification of the Customer. 

Generally, the listed address is the location of the Customer’s place of business or 
residence. At the Customer’s request a partial address may be shown. An address 
may be:- a number(s) and/or letter(s) followed by the name of a street, a building, a 
shopping centedmall, apartment complex, industrial park, or similar facility 
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SECTION 4 - DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued 

4.1. 
4.1.1. General, Continued 

REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued 

- a name of a street, building, shopping centedmall, apartment complex, industrial park, or 

- any one of the above followed by a community and/or state name 
- a community name only 
- omitted at the Customer's request 

similar facility 

The listed address may not include P. 0. Box, or use of the word or abbreviation of suite, 
floor, or apartment before numbers used in the identification. An address other than the 
address where the service is located may be listed provided the Customer has a comparable 
class of service at the address requested. 

H. Liability of the Company due to directory errors and omissions is as specified in 
Section 2. of this tariff. 

I. A Secondary Service Charge applies when an order is issued solely to add or change 
a directory listing. 

4.2. BUSINESS LISTING 

4.2.1. General 

A. Generally, a business listing consists of a name or dual name, a designation 
descriptive of the Customer's business if not self-explanatory, the address, and the 
business telephone number. The main listing is ordinarily the name of the individual, 
firm or corporation which contracts for the service or the name under which a 
business is regularly conducted. 
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SECTION 4 - DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued 

4.3. RESIDENCE LISTING 

4.3.1. General 

Generally, residence listings consist of a surname, given name or dual name, and/or initials, 
the address, and the telephone number. When a single name listing is requested by the 
Customer, the Company may require satisfactory evidence as to the validity of the requested 
name. The main listing is ordinarily the name of the individual who subscribes for the 
service, but the listing may be in the name of a second party residing at the address where 
service is provided if so designated by the Customer. 

4.4. NON-PUBLISHED (PRIVATE) LISTING 

4.4.1. Genera 1 

A. A non-published listing is not listed in either the alphabetical section of the 
Company’s directory or directory assistance records and will not be furnished upon 
request of the calling party. However, when a call is placed from a telephone number 
associated with a non-published listing, the number and/or name may be disclosed if 
the called party has the necessary equipment for receiving and/or disclosing incoming 
telephone numbers and/or names. 

B. An incoming call to a Customer with a non-published listing will be completed by the 
Company only when the calling party places the call by number. The Company will 
adhere to this practice notwithstanding any claim of emergency the calling party may 
present. The acceptance by the Company of the Customer’s request to furnish a non- 
published telephone number does not create any relationship or obligation, direct or 
indirect, to any person other than the Customer. 

C. In the absence of gross negligence or willful misconduct, no liability for damages 
arising from publishing a non-published telephone number in the directory or 
disclosing said number to any person shall attach to the Company. Where a non- 
published listing is published in the directory, the Company’s liability shall be limited 
to and satisfied by a refund of any monthly charges which the Company may have 
made for such listing. Under these conditions, the Company will, at the Customer’s 
request, change the telephone number at no charge to the Customer. The Customer 
indemnifies and saves the Company harmless against any and all claims for damages 
caused or claimed to have been caused, directly or indirectly, by the publication of a 
non-published listing or the disclosing of said listing information to any person. 
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SECTION 4 - DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued 

4.4. NON-PUBLISHED (PRIVATE) LISTING, Continued 
4.4.1. General, Continued 

D. The telephone number, name and address of the calling party may be displayed at a 
Public Safety Answering Point (“PSAP”) located on the premises of a Customer 
subscribing to 91 1 Service, on a call-by-call basis only, for the purpose of responding 
to emergency calls from non-published numbers. The Customer forfeits his right to 
privacy upon making a call to 9 1 1 .  

E. For accounting purposes, the telephone number, name, and address of a Customer 
with a non-published listing will be provided to the Long Distance Carrier(s) which 
furnishes the Customer long distance message telecommunications service. 

F. Upon request, facilities permitting, Customers of Non-Published Listing service will 
be provided Calling Number Delivery Blocking - at no monthly recurring charge. 

4.4.2. Rate Application 
e 

A. Non-published listing 

1. Where charge applies 
Monthly 

Rate 

(a) Each $1.75 

2. Where charge does not apply 

(a) Each NR 

- Service used primarily by a certified hearingkpeech impaired person 
- Additional service furnished to the same Customer who has service listed in the directory at 
the same address. 

- Additional service furnished to the same Customer who has service listed in the directory in 
the same name at a different address provided the listed service is in the same local exchange. 

- Service to a Customer living in a hotel, hospital, retirement complex, apartment, boarding 
house or club if the Customer is listed under the telephone number of the PBX, Centrex Type 
Services or Semipublic Telephone Service fwnished to such establishments. 

- Temporary Service 
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I 
~ SECTION 4 - DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued 

4.5. NON-LISTED (SEMIPRIVATE) LISTING 

4.5.1. General 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

A non-listed listing is not contained in the alphabetical secti f the Company 
directory, but is maintained on directory assistance records and will be furnished 
upon the request of the calling party. 

The acceptance by the Company of the Customer’s request to furnish a non-listed 
listing does not create any relationship or obligation, direct or indirect, to any person 
other than the Customer. 

In the absence of gross negligence or willful misconduct, no liability for damages 
arising from publishing a non-listed telephone number in the directory shall attach to 
the Company. Where such a number is published in the directory, the Company’s 
liability shall be limited to and satisfied by a refund of any monthly charges which the 
Company may have made for such non-listed listing. The Customer indemnifies and 
holds the Company harmless against any and all claims for damages caused or 
claimed to have been caused, directly or indirectly, by the publication of a non-listed 
listing. 

The telephone number, name and address of the calling party may be displayed at a 
Public Safety Answering Point (“PSAP”), located on the premises of a Customer 
subscribing to 91 1 service on a call-by-call basis only for the purpose of responding 
to emergency calls from a non-listed number. 

Upon request, facilities permitting, Customers of Non-Listed (Semi-private) Listing 
service will be provided in Calling Number Delivery Blocking - Permanent at no 
monthly recurring charge. 
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SECTION 4 - DIRECTORY LISTINGS (Continued) 

4.6. ADDITIONAL LISTING 

4.6.1. Genera 1 

A. The Customer to the service assumes responsibility for all charges for additional 
listings associated with his service. Listing charges date from the day the directory 
assistance records are posted. 

B. Listing charges are automatically discontinued upon termination of the service or 
upon removal of the listing. 

4.6.2. Business Additional Listing 

A. A business additional listing may be furnished in other names when in the judgement 
of the Company the Customer’s service is not being resold. 

B. Rate Application 

Monthly 
Rate 

1. Business 

(a) Each 
(b) 800 service, each 

$1.20 
$1.20 

4.6.3. Residence Additional Listing 

A. A residence additional listing may be furnished in the names of relatives, including 
those by marriage, domestic employees of the Customer, or other persons residing in 
the Customer’s home who are recognized as a part of the Customer’s domestic 
establishment. 

B. Rate Application 

1. Residence 

(a) Each $1.20 
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SECTION 4 - DIRECTORY LISTINGS (Continued) 

4.7. MISCELLANEOUS LISTING 

4.7.1. Access Service Listing 

A. An interexchange carrier or a business or residence client of an in-xexchange carrier 
who subscribes to Feature Group A foreign exchange access service may be furnished 
a listing at the rate specified. 

B. Rate Application Monthly 
Rate 

1. Listing 

(a) Each $1.20 

4.7.2. Alternate Listing 

A. 

1. 

2. 

B. 

1. 

2. 

An alternate listing may be provided to the Customer for the purpose of directing 
calling parties to other telephone numbers subject to the following conditions: 

Names of individuals are not permitted 

Text may not exceed one line 

Examples: 
Nights, Sundays, and Holidays 
If No Answer 
If Extension Is Not Known 

Rate Application 

Business 
(a) Each 

Residence 
(a) Each 

$1.20 

$1.20 
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SECTION 4 - DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued 

4.7. MISCELLANEOUS LISTING, Continued 

4.7.6. Cross Reference Listing 

A. 

B. 

1. 

2. 

A cross reference listing may be furnished when it is necessary to refer the direcxy 
user to another directory listing. 

Rate application 

Business 
Monthly 

Rate 

(a) Each 

Residence 

(a) Each 

$1.20 

$1.20 

4.7.7. Dual Name Listing 

A. A dual name listing may be furnished to a business or a residence Customer as a main 
listing subject to the following: 

- an individual subscribing to business service when it is a personal name listing and the person 

- two individuals subscribing to residence service having the same surname and address, or an 
is also known by a nickname 

individual known by more than one name 
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SECTION 4 - DIRECTORY LISTINGS (Continued) 

4.7. MISCELLANEOUS LISTING, Continued 
4.7.7. Dual Name Listing, Continued 

B. 

C. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

D. 

A dual name listing may also be furnished as an additional listing at the Customer's 
request at the appropriate additional listing rate. 

A Secondary Service Charge applies for: 

Monthly 
Rate 

Changing of primary single name listing to a primary dual name directory listing 

(a) each $7.15 

Changing the primary or additional dual name directory listing once established 

(a) each $7.15 

Changing an additional dual name directory listing to a primary dual name listing 

(a) each $7.15 NA 

No nonrecurring charge applies when the dual name listing is established with the 
initial establishment of service or when a change in an existing listing is requested on 
an order for which service charges are otherwise applicable. 
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SECTION 4 - DIRECTORY LISTINGS (Continued) 

4.7. MISCELLANEOUS LISTING, Continued 

4.7.8. Emergency Service Listing (E91 1, B911, and SALI) 

A 91 1 telephone number must be listed along with a non-emergency telephone number for 
emergency agencies. No charge applies for either listing. 
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SECTION 4 - DIRECTORY LISTINGS (Continued) 

4.7. MISCELLANEOUS LISTING, Continued 

4.7.9. Foreign Listing 

A. A listing in the alphabetical section of Company directories utside the Customer’s 
local exchange may be furnished. This listing is subject to the rates and regulations 
applicable to the published directory in which the listing is to appear. 

B. Rate Application 

1. Foreign listing 

(a) Business, each 
(b) Residence, each 

Monthly 
Rate 

$1.20 
$1.20 

2. Foreign cross reference listing 

(a) Business, per line $1.20 
(b) Residence, per line $1.20 

3. Foreign alternate listing 

(a) Business, each 
(b) Residence, each 

$1.20 
$1.20 

4. Foreign Special Text 

(a) Business, each $1.20 

C. When in the sole judgment of the Company, in the case of service located in an 
exchange border area, a foreign listing is needed for better identification in order to 
facilitate the completion of calls, such listing may be provided without charge for the 
main listing only. 

1. Foreign Listing 

(a) Each NR 
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PRICE LIST 

1.1 

1.1.1 

BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

Service charges per account are based on the following schedules: 

Flat Rate Service 
Monthly Recurring 

Charge 

Individual Line $17.43 
Multiline Key $17.43 
PBX Trunk $38.20 

Direct Inward Dialing (DID) 
Block of 20 DID Number $3.00 
Individual DID Number $0.15 
DID Trunk Termination $45.00 

Non Recurring 
Charge 

$56.00 
$56.00 
$56.00 

$20.00 
$ 1.00 
$57.00 

I 
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DAY EVENING 
First Min Add’l First Min 

Min 
Band A (Intra- $0.0200 $0.0200 $0.0130 
Wire Center 
Band B (0-25 $0.0400 $0.0400 $0.0260 
Miles) 
Band C (26+ $0.0700 $0.0700 $0.0455 

PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.1 

1.1.2 Measured Monthly Service 

BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

Monthly Recurring Non Recurring 
Charge Charge 

Individual Line $15.35 $56.00 
Multiline Key $15.35 $56.00 

Measured Usage Charges 

NIGHT 
First Min Add’l Add’l 

Min Min 
$0.0130 $0.0080 $0.0800 

$0.0260 $0.0160 $0.0160 

$0.0455 $0.0280 $0.0280 

1.1.3 Additional Charges 
Monthly Recurring 
Charge 

Hunting, Per Arrangement $3 .OO 
End User Common Line Charge (EUCL) 

Individual Line $3.50 
Multiline KeyPBX $8.23 

After lst Call (Per Call) $0.47 
Directory Assistance 

Arizona USF Surcharge $0.02 

Non Recurring 
Charge 

$13.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.1 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 
Monthly Recurring 
Charge 

1.1.4 Other Charges 

Detail Billing (Measured Only) 
Per Account 
Per Call 

Per Arrangement 
Per Minute of Usage 

Stand-By Line 

1.1.4 Order Charges 

Service Order 
Each Add’l Line/Trunk 
Adds of Changes 

Record Order 

1.1.6 Premises Visit Charge 

First 15 Minutes 
Add’l 15 Minutes 

1.1.7 Vertical Features 

Speed Calling 
8 Number 
30 Number 

Three-way Calling 
Call Forwarding 

Variable 
Busy Line (Expanded) 
Busy Line (External) 
Busy Line (Overflow) 

$0.00 
$0.01 

$16.75 
$0.05 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$3.00 
$4.50 
$4.00 

$4.80 
$3.00 
$3.00 
$8.00 

Non Recurring 
Charge 

$13.50 
$0.00 

$56.00 
$0.00 

$56.00 
$27.50 
$22.00 

$60.00 
$25.00 

$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 

$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 Busy Line (Programmable) $8.00 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.1 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

1.1.7 Vertical Features, continued 
I Monthly Recurring 

Charge 
Don’t Answer $7.00 
Don’t Answer (Expanded) $4.00 
Don’t Answer (Programmable) $4.50 
Don’t Answer (Overflow) $1 1 S O  
Busy LineDon’t Answer $5.50 
Call Manager Connection $19.95 

With Call Waiting $19.95 
With Call Waiting ID $19.95 

Call Rejection $4.50 
Call Waiting $7.50 
Abbreviated Access (One Digit) 

Each Shared List $20.00 
Each Line h a n g e d  $0.05 

Each Shared List $30.00 
Each Line Arranged $0.05 

Name and Number $7.95 
Number $7.50 
With Privacy $10.95 

Call Transfer $6.00 
Continuous Redial $3.50 
Dial Call Waiting $2.15 
Directed Call Pickup $1.00 
Directed Call Pickup w/ Barge-in $1 .OO 
Distinctive Alert $1 .oo 
Hot Line $2.00 
Last Call Return $3.00 
Priority Call $3.50 
Remote Access Forwarding $7.75 
Selective Call Forwarding $3.50 
Do Not Disturb $3.95 

Abbreviated Accels (Two Digits) 

Caller ID 

Non Recurring 
Charge 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 

$13.00 
$13.00 

$13.00 
$13.00 

$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 
, 
I 1.1 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

1.1.7 Vertical Features, continued 

Dial Lock 
Scheduled Forwarding 
Receptionist 

With Name and Number 
With Number Only 
With Caller ID w/ Privacy 

Warm Line 
Wireless Extension 
Custom Ringing 

First Add’l Number 
Second Add’l Number 
Third Add’l Number 

1.1.8 Package Plans (Two Features) 
Call Forwarding Variable & 
Call Waiting 

Call Waiting & Three-way 
Calling 

Call Forwarding Variable & 
Three-way Calling 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Call Waiting 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 30 Numbers 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Call Forwarding Variable 

Monthly Recurring 
Charge 

$3.95 
$8.75 

$15.45 
$15.00 
$18.45 
$2.50 
$4.95 

$7.45 
$5.25 
$5.25 

$10.00 

$9.50 

$7.50 

$8.50 

$6.00 

$6.50 

Non Recurring 
Charge 

$13.00 
$13.00 

$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 

$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.1 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

1.1.8 Package Plans (Two Features), continued 
Monthly Recurring 

Charge 
Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Three-way Calling $5.50 

Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Call Waiting $9.50 

Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Call Forwarding Variable $7.50 

Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Three-way Calling $7.00 

1.1.9 Package Plans (Three Features) 

Call Waiting & Three-way 
Calling & Call Forwarding Variable $9.50 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Call Forwarding Variable & 
Three-way Calling $10.60 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Call Waiting & Three-way Calling $1 1 S O  

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 30 Numbers & Call Waiting $12.00 

Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Three-way Calling $12.00 

Non Recurring 
Charge 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.1 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

1.1.9 Package Plans (Three Features), continued 
Monthly Recurring 

Charge 
Speed Calling 8 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Call Forwarding Variable $12.00 

Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Call Forwarding Variable & Call Waiting $13.50 

Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Call Forwarding Variable & 
Three-way Calling $1 1.60 

Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Call Waiting & Three-way Calling $12.00 

3.2.10 Package Plans (Four Features) 

Call Waiting & Three-way 
Calling & Call Forwarding Variable & 
Speed Calling 8 Numbers $15.50 

Call Forwarding Variable & Three-way 
Calling & Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 8 Numbers $13.00 

Three-way Calling & Call Waiting 
Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 8 Numbers $15.00 

Call Waiting & Three-way 
Calling & Call Forwarding Variable & 
Speed Calling 30 Numbers $15.50 

Non Recurring 
Charge 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 

$13.00 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.1 BUSINESS LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

1.1.1 1 Package Plans (Five Features) 
Monthly Recurring 

Charge 

Call Waiting & Three-way 
Calling & Speed Calling 30 Numbers & 
Speed Calling 8 Numbers $19.00 

3.2.12 Per Use Feature 

Call Trace 
Continuous Redial 
Last Call Return 
Three-way Calling 

$2.00 
$0.75 
$0.75 
$0.75 

Non Recurring 
Charge 

$13.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.2 

1.2.1 

1.2.2 

1.2.3 

RESIDENTIAL LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE 

Flat Rate Service 
Monthly' Recurring 

Individual Line 
Home Business Line 

Message Monthly Service 

Individual Line 

Additional Charges 

End User Common Line Charge (EUCL) 
Primary Line 
Additional Line 

Directory Assistance 
After 1'' Call (Per Call) 

Arizona USF Surcharge 

a 

Charge 

$13.18 
$36.03 

$8.50 

$3.50 
$6.07 

$0.47 ' 

$0.02 

Non Recurring 
Charge 

$46.00 
$56.00 

$46.50 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.2 RESIDENTIAL LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

1.2.4 Order Charges 

Service Order 
New or Add’l Line 
Adds of Changes 

Record Order 

1.2.5 Premises Visit Charge 

First 15 Minutes 
Add’l 15 Minutes 

1.2.6 Vertical Features 

Speed Calling 
8 Number 
30 Number 

Three-way Calling 
Call Forwarding 

Variable 
Busy Line (Expanded) 
Busy Line (Overflow) 
Busy Line (Programmable) 
Don’t Answer 
Don’t Answer (Expanded) 
Don’t Answer (Programmable) 
Busy LineDon’t Answer 

Monthly Recurring 
Charge 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$2.00 
$3.50 
$3.50 

$3.00 
$0.30 
$0.30 
$1.85 
$0.90 
$0.90 
$2.60 
$5.50 

Non Recurring 
Charge 

$0.00 
$10.00 
$8.50 

$60.00 
$25.00 

$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 

$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.2 RESIDENTIAL LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 

1.2.6 Vertical Features, continued 
Monthly Recurring Non Recurring 

Call Rejection 
Call Waiting 
Abbreviated Access (One Digit) 
Abbreviated Access (Two Digits) 

Each Line Arranged 
Caller ID 

Name and Number 
Number 
With Privacy 

Call Transfer 
Continuous Redial 
Dial Call Waiting 
Dial Lock 
Directed Call Pickup 
Directed Call Pickup w/ Barge-in 
Distinctive Alert 
Hot Line 
Last Call Return 
Priority Call 
Remote Access Forwarding 
Selective Call Forwarding 
Do Not Disturb 
Scheduled Forwarding 
Receptionist 

With Name and Number 
With Number Only 
With Caller ID w/ Privacy 

Warm Line 
Wireless Extension 

Charge 

$4.50 
$5.00 
$0.50 
$0.50 
$0.05 

$5.95 
$5.50 
$9.95 
$6.00 
$2.50 
$2.15 
$3.95 
$1 .oo 
$1 .oo 
$1 .oo 
$2.00 
$2.95 
$2.50 
$3.95 
$3.50 
$3.95 
$4.95 

$10.95 
$10.50 
$14.95 
$2.50 
$4.95 

Charge 

$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 

$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 

$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
$13.00 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.2 RESIDENTIAL LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE, Continued 
Monthly Recurring 

Charge 

Call Trace $2.00 
Continuous Redial $0.75 
Last Call Return $0.75 
Three-way Calling $0.75 

1.2.7 Per Use Feature 

Non Recurring 
Charge 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

DAY 
1 " Min Add'l Min 
$0.2994 $0.2994 

1.3 INTRASTATE INTRALATA MESSAGE TOLL SERVICE 

EVENING NIGHT 
1" Min Add'l Min 1" Min Add'l Min 
$0.2200 $0.2200 $0.2200 $0.2200 

1.3.1 Business MTS 

DAY EVENING 
1 Min Add'l Min lst Min Add'l Min 
$0.2994 $0.2994 $0.2200 $0.2200 

1.3.1.1 Dial Station 

NIGHT 
lst Min Add'l Min 
$0.2200 $0.2200 

1.3.1.2 Calling Card 

First Minute 
Additional Minute 

$0.1990 
$0.1990 

1.3.2 Residential MTS 

1.3.2.1 Dial Station 

1.3.2.2 Calling Card 
First Minute 
Additional Minute 

$0.1990 
$0.1990 

1.3.3 Surcharges Per Call 

Private Phone $0.47 

Fully Automated $0.30 (from payphone) 
Semi- Automated $0.85 

Operator Assisted $1.30 
Person-to-Person $3.50 
Coin Sent-Paid $1.30 

Directory Assistance 

Calling Card 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 0 1 803 
781.229.9599 

http://essential.com


essential.com, inc A.C.C. Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet No. 14 

PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.4. DIRECTORY LISTINGS 

1.4.1. Rate Application 

A. Non-published listing 

1. Where charge applies 
Monthly 

Rate 

(a) Each $1.75 

2. Where charge does not apply 

(a) Each NR 

- Service used primarily by a certified hearingkpeech impaired person 
- Additional service-furnished to the same Customer who has service listed in the 
directory at the same address. 

- Additional service furnished to the same Customer who has service listed in the 
directory in the same name at a different address provided the listed service is in the 
same local exchange. 

- Service to a Customer living in a hotel, hospital, retirement complex, apartment, 
boarding house or club if the Customer is listed under the telephone number of the 
PBX, Centrex Type Services or Semipublic Telephone Service furnished to such 
establishments. 

- Temporary Service 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.4. DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued 

1.4.2. Business Additional Listing 

A. A business additional listing may be furnished in other names when in the 
judgement of the Company the Customer’s service is not being resold. 

B. Rate Application 

Monthly 
Rate 

1. Business 

(a) Each 
(b) 800 service, each 

$1.20 
$1.20 

1.4.3. Residence Additional Listing 

A. A residence additional listing may be furnished in the names of relatives, 
including those by marriage, domestic employees of the Customer, or other 
persons residing in the Customer’s home who are recognized as a part of the 
Customer’s domestic establishment. 

B. Rate Application 

1. Residence 

(a) Each $1.20 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
781.229.9599 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.4. DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued 

1.4.4. Access Service Listing 

A. An interexchange carrier or a business or residence client of an interexchange 
carrier who subscribes to Feature Group A foreign exchange access service 
may be furnished a listing at the rate specified. 

B. Rate Application Monthly 
Rate 

1. Listing 

(a) Each $1.20 

1.4.5. Alternate Listing 

A. An alternate listing may be provided to the Customer for the purpose of 
directing calling parties to other telephone numbers subject to the following 
conditions: 

Names of individuals are not permitted 

Text may not exceed one line 

Examples: 

1. 

2. 

Nights, Sundays, and Holidays 
If No Answer 
If Extension Is Not Known 

B. Rate Application 

1. Business 

2. Residence 
(a) Each $ 

(a) Each $1.20 
Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 0 1803 
781.229.9599 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 
I 

I 1.4. DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued 

1.4.7. Cross Reference Listing 

A. 

B. 

1. 

2. 

A cross reference listing may be furnished when it is necessary to refer the 
directory user to another directory listing. 

Rate application 

Business 
Monthly 

Rate 

(a) Each $1.20 

Residence 

(a) Each $1.20 

1.4.8. Dual Name Listing 

A. A dual name listing may be furnished to a business or a residence Customer as 
a main listing subject to the following: 

- an individual subscribing to business service when it is a personal name listing and the 
person is also known by a nickname 

- two individuals subscribing to residence service having the same surname and 
address, or an individual known by more than one name 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
78 1.229.9599 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

I 1.4. DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued I 

I 1.4.9 Dual Name Listing, Continued 

B. 

C. 

1. 
listing 

2. 
established 

A dual name listing may also be furnished as an additional listing at the 
Customer's request at the appropriate additional listing rate. 

A Secondary Service Charge applies for: 

Monthly 
Rate 

Changing of primary single name listing to a primary dual name directory 

(a) each $7.15 

Changing the primary or additional dual name directory listing once 

(a) each $7.15 

3. Changing an additional dual name directory listing to a primary dual name 
listing 

(a) each $7.15 NA 

D. No nonrecurring charge applies when the dual name listing is established with 
the initial establishment of service or when a change in an existing listing is 
requested on an order for which service charges are otherwise applicable. 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4' floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
78 1.229.9599 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

I .4. DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued 

1.4.10. Emergency Service Listing (E91 1 ,  B911, and SALI) 

A 911 telephone number must be listed along with a non-emergency telephone 
number for emergency agencies. No charge applies for either listing. 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
78 1.229.9599 
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PRICE LIST, Continued 

1.4. DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued 

1.4.1 1 Foreign Listing 

A. A listing in the alphabetical section of Company directories outside the 
Customer’s local exchange may be furnished. This listing is subject to the 
rates and regulations applicable to the published directory in which the listing 
is to appear. 

B. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

C. 

1 

Issued : 
Issued By: 

Rate Application 

Foreign listing 

(a) Business, each 
(b) Residence, each 

Foreign cross reference listing 

Monthly Rate 

$1.20 
$1.20 

(a) Business, per line $1.20 
(b) Residence, per line $1.20 

Foreign alternate listing 

(a) Business, each 
(b) Residence, each 

$1.20 
$1.20 

Foreign Special Text 

(a) Business, each $1.20 

When in the sole judgment of the Company, in the case of service located in 
an exchange border area, a foreign listing is needed for better identification in 
order to facilitate the completion of calls, such listing may be provided 
without charge for the main listing only. 

Foreign Listing 
(a) Each NR 

Effective Date: 
Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 0 1 803 
781.229.9599 
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ATTACHMENT C 

Interconnection Agreement 



u s WEST Communkations 
7800 E. orchard Road, suite 250 
Englewood, Colorado 80111 
(303) 7936605Phone 

kxmacne@uwest.com 

contract Administrator 

Contract Development 
and services 

Law DeDartment 

1303) 7936633-Fax 

K r l s t i M  B. UaWd 

February 16,2000 

HAND DELIVERED 

ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, A2 85007 

Subject: In the Matter of the Application of U S WEST Communications, Inc. for 
Approval of the Resale Agreement with essential.com, inc. dba 
essential.com, inc. - Your Energy & Communications superstore 

Enclosed for filing is the original and 10 Copies of the Application of U S WEST 
Communications, Inc. for Approval of the Resale Agreement with essential.com, inc. dba 
essential.com, inc. - Your Energy & communications Superstore 

Enclosures 

Proud Sponsor 
a6usc3M) 
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BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 

CARL J. KUNASEK 

Chairman 

JIM IRVIN 

Commissioner 

WILLIAM A. MUNDELL 

Commissioner 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION 

OF U S WEST COMMUNICATIONS, INC., 

FOR APPROVAL OF 

SERVICE RESALE AGREEMENT WITH 

ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 

DBA ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. - 
YOUR ENERGY & COMMUNICATIONS 

SUPERSTORE 

Docket No. T-Ol051A-00- 

U S WEST COMMUNICATIONS, 

INC.'S APPLICATION FOR 

APPROVAL OF 

SERVICE RESALE AGREEMENT 

WITH ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 

DBA ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. YOUR 

ENERGY & COMMUNICATIONS 

SUPERSTORE 

U S WEST Communications, Inc. (YUSW) hereby submits to the Ariiona Corporation 

Commission (the "Commission") this Application for approval of its Agreement for Service 

Resale with essential.com, inc., dba essential.com, inc. - Your Energy & Communications 

Superstore, ("essential.com") dated January 28, 2000 (referred to hereafter as the 

"Agreement"). In support of this Application, USW states as follows: 

I. 

USW is a Colorado corporation and incumbent local exchange carrier in Arizona. 

http://ESSENTIAL.COM
http://ESSENTIAL.COM
http://ESSENTIAL.COM
http://ESSENTIAL.COM
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11. 

essential.com has not applied for a certificate of convenience and necessity to provid 

competitive local telecommunications services as a reseller. 

Ill. 

On January 28, 2000, essential.com and USW entered into the Agreement which prov 

for essential.com to resell USW local exchange services in Arizona and additional stat 

agreed to by the parties. This Agreement was reached through voluntary negotiations 

without resort to mediation or arbitration and is submitted for approval pursuant to Sec 

252(e) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the "Act") and the requirements of A.A 

R14-2-1506. A copy of the Agreement is attached and incorporated as Exhibit A. 

IV. 

Section 252(e)(2) of the Act directs that a state commission may reject an agreement 

reached through volufiary negotiations only if the commission finds that: 

A. The agreement (or a portion thereof) discriminates against a 

telecommunications carrier not a party to the agreement; or 

B. The implementation of such agreement or portion is not consistent w 

the public interest, convenience and necessity. 

V. 

A.A.C. R14-2-1506(C)(l)(b) requires that the request for approval of an interconnectiol 

agreement summarize the main provisions of the agreement, set forth the party's posil 

as to why the agreement should be adopted, state why the agreement does not discrir 

against non-party telecommunications carriers, is consistent with the public interest, 

convenience, and necessity, and is consistent with applicable state law requirements. 

VI. 

Pursuant to these requirements, the main provisions of the Agreement are summarize 

follows: 

2 
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Part (A)3.2 provides that this Agreement shall become effective upon Commission approval 

and shall terminate on March 18,2002. 

Part (A)3.3 establishes procedures for service ordering and maintenance, including 

requirements for demonstrating "Proof of Authorization" to switch a customer, designation of 

Primary lnterexchange Carrier selections and restrictions on both parties' ability to use 

repair calls as the basis for internal referrals or to solicit end-users to market services. It 

also establishes a "Slamming Charge" of $100 that essential.com must pay if it has 

improperly switched a customer without proper authorization. 

Part (A)3.4 establishes procedures and due dates for billing and allow for a three-month 

billing cycle period for the parties to resolve disputed charges before penalty provisions 

would apply. 

Part (A)3.5 puts the primary responsibility for collection and payment of taxes on the party 

purchasing services. 

Part (A)3.9 restricts both parties' ability to use each others' patents, trademarks, or 

copyrighted information and, except in limited circumstances, prohibits both parties from 

using each others' brand name in verbal or written communications with end-user 

customers. Similarly, Part (A)3.24 restricts publicity and advertising by either party without 

obtaining prior written approval from the other party. 

Part (A)3.17 provides that this Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the terms 

of the Act and applicable state law. 

The Agreement provides that USW will make available for resale specified local exchange 

services within Arizona. The list of services available for resale and the applicable discount 

rates are referenced in Part B and Part E of the Agreement. USW basic residential line 

telecommunications service will be available for resale at a 12 percent discount and basic 

business line telecommunications service will be available at an 18 percent discount. For 
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these services, the discount rate will remain in effect until exhaustion of all appeals of the 

Commission final order in Docket Nos. U-3021-96-448, et al. No true-up of the rates will 

occur unless ordered as a part of the nonappealable administrative or judicial order, as 

provided in Part (B)3.1. In addition, certain services will be made available for resale but at 

no discount, as identified in Part E or in individual state tariffs. essential.com shall have 

their choice of obtaining USW provided intraLATA toll for resale at an 18 percent discount 

or, in Arizona, providing their own intralATA toll. 

Part (B)2.2 requires USW to provide service in accordance with applicable service quality 

standards and in the same manner it provides these services to others, including other 

Resellers and end users. 

Part (B)2.4 requires essential.com to obtain accurate customer listing information and to 

submit a forecast of services to be sold, among other requirements. 

Part (B)3.2 imposes a "Customer Transfer Charge," specified in Part E. 

Part (B)3.8 and (B)3.9 - discussed above - sets out the different scenarios when state 

commission ordered rates and charges may be incorporated into the Agreement. 

Part (C)2.1 provides that USW will accept one primary directory listing for each main 

telephone number of essential.com 's customers. 

Part (C)2.4 provides essential.com with options for dissemination of its customer listings to 

third parties. 

Part (D)2 explains that USW has developed its "Operational Support Systems" ("OSS"). 

The OSS interfaces have been developed to support Pre-ordering, Ordering and 

Provisioning, Maintenance and Repair. 
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VII. 

In accordance with Section 252(e) of the Act and A.A.C. R14-2-1506(C)(l)(b), USW 

submits that the Agreement provides no basis for finding of discrimination or contravention 

of the public interest. 

First, the Agreement does not discriminate against any other telecommunications carrier. 

USW is offering the same terms contained in the Agreement to all other interested carriers. 

Second, the Agreement is consistent with the public interest as identified in the pro- 

competitive policies of the Commission, the State of Ariiona, the FCC, and the U.S. 

Congress. The Agreement will enable essential.com to enter into the local exchange 

market and provide customers with increased choices among local exchange service areas 

in Arizona. 

USW submits that the Commission must approve the Agreement because it does not 

discriminate against any other telecommunications carrier and it is consistent with the public 

interest, convenience and necessity. 

VIII. 

The terms of the Agreement are consistent with applicable state law and the rules and 

sgulations of the Commission. 

IX. 

3ecause the Agreement was reached through voluntary negotiations, USW requests that 

he Commission issue its order summarily and without hearing at the earliest possible date. 
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X. 

All communications regarding this Application should be addressed to the following 

representatives: 

essential.com, inc. 

John Duffy 

3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4th Floor 

Burlington, MA 01803 

Phone: 781-229-9599, ext. 136 

U S WEST COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

Thomas M. Dethlefs 

Senior Attorney 

U S WEST, Inc. 

1801 California Street, Suite 51 00 

Denver, CO 80202 

and 

Timothy Berg 

Fennernore Craig 

3003 North Central Ave., Suite 2600 

Phoenix, AZ 85012 
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CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, U S WEST Communications, Inc. and essential.com, inc. 

respectfully requests that the Commission expeditiously process this matter without a 

hearing and issue an Order granting the Application in its entirety. 

DATED this/- /- day of February, 2000. 

Respectfully submitted, 

U S WEST COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

By: 6 47 DaJL 
Thomas M. Dethlefs 

Senior Attorney 

1801 California Street, Suite 5100 

Denver, CO 80202 

(303) 672-2948 

FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C. 

Timothy Berg 

3003 North Central Ave., Suite 2600 

Phoenix, AZ 85012 

(602) 916-5421 

Attorneys for U S WEST 

Communications, Inc. 
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3RIGINAL and 10 copies of the foregoing handdelivered for filing 

this day of February, 2000, to: 

Docket Control 

ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 

1200 West Washington 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 

COPY of the foregoing handdelivered this day of February, 2000 to: 

Christopher Kempley 

ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 

Legal Division 

1200 West Washington 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Ray Williamson, Acting Director 

ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 

Utilities Division 

1200 West Washington 

Phoenix, AZ 85007 

COPY of the foregoing mailed this day of February, 2000 to: 

essential.com, inc. 

John Duffy 

3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4th Floor 

Burlington, MA 01 803 
Phone: 781-229-9599, ext. 136 
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Part A 
General Terms 

PART A - GENERAL TERMS 
This Resale Agreement is between essential.com, inc. (d.b.a. essential.com, inc. - Your 

Energy & Communications Superstore) ("RESELLER"), a Delaware corporation, and U S WEST 
Communications, Inc. ("USW'), a Colorado corporation. 
(A)I.  SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

(A)l. 1 Pursuant to this negotiated Resale Agreement ("Agreement"), RESELLER and 
USW (collectively, "the Parties") will extend certain arrangements to one another 
within the geographical areas where USW is the incumbent Local Exchange 
Carrier within the state of Arizona for purposes of providing the resale of local 
Telecommunications Services. This Agreement or the portions of this Agreement 
relative to a particular state will be submitted to the Arizona Corporation 
Commission ("Commission") for approval. Notwithstanding this mutual 
commitment, however, the Parties enter into this Agreement without prejudice to 
any positions they have taken previously, or may take in the future in any 
legislative, regulatory, or other public forum addressing any matters, including 
matters related to the types of arrangements prescribed by this Agreement. 

(A)1.2 The provisions in this Agreement are based, in large part, on the existing state of 
the law, rules, regulations and interpretations thereof, as of the date hereof (the 
"Existing Rules"). Among the Existing Rules are or could be the results of 
arbitrated decisions by the Commission which are currently being challenged by 
USW. Among the Existing Rules are certain FCC rules and orders that are the 
subject of, or affected by, the opinion issued by the Supreme Court of the United 
States in AT&T Cop., et a/. v. lowa Utilities Board, et a/. on January 25, 1999. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall preclude or stop USW from taking any position in 
any forum concerning the proper interpretation or effect of the Existing Rules or 
concerning whether the Existing Rules should be changed, dismissed, stayed or 
modified. To the extent that the Existing Rules are changed, vacated, dismissed, 
stayed or modified, then the Parties shall amend this Agreement and all contracts 
adopting all or part of this Agreement pursuant to Section 252(i) of the Act, shall be 
amended to reflect such modification or change of the Existing Rules. Where the 
Parties fail to agree upon such an amendment, it shall be resolved in accordance 
with the Dispute Resolution provision of this Agreement. It is expressly 
understood that this Agreement will be corrected to reflect the outcome of generic 
pricing proceedings b; the Commission. This Section (A)1.2 shall be considered 
part of the rates, terms and conditions of each service resale arrangement 
contained in this Agreement, and this Section (A)1.*2 shall be considered 
legitimately related to the purchase of each service for resale arrangement 
contained in this Agreement. 

(A)1.3 This Agreement sets forth the terms, conditions and prices under which USW 
agrees to provide services for resale to RESELLER, all for the sole purpose of 
providing Telecommunications Services. 

January 17, 2000/cbd/essential.com, inc. - Your Energy 8 Communications Superstore 
CDS-0001117-0037/dp2.3resaleaz.doc 

Page 1 

http://essential.com
http://essential.com
http://2000/cbd/essential.com


Part A 
General Terms 

(A)1.4 In the performance of their obligations under this Agreement, the Parties shall act 
in good faith and consistently with the intent of the Act. Where notice, approval or 
similar action by a Party is permitted or required by any provision of this 
Agreement, (including, without limitation, the obligation of the Parties to further 
negotiate the resolution of new or open issues under this Agreement) such action 
shall not be unreasonably delayed, withheld or conditioned. 
USW may make services and features available to RESELLER for resale under 
this Agreement consistent with the way they are available to USW end users, 
without a formal amendment to this Agreement. Nothing herein prevents either 
Party from raising other issues through additional good faith negotiations. 

(A)1.6 This Agreement is structured in the following format: 
Part A - General Terms 
Part B - Resale 
Part C - Directory Services 
Part D - Miscellaneous Provisions 
Part E - Rates 
Part F - Signature 

(A)1.7 Prior to placing any orders for services under this Agreement, the Parties will 
jointly complee USWs "Reseller Questionnaire". This questionnaire will then be 
used to: 

Determine geographical requirements 
Identify RESELLER Ids 
Determine USW system requirements to support RESELLER specific activity 
Collect credit information 
Obtain billing information 
Create summary bills 
Establish input and output requirements 
Create and distribute USW and RESELLER contact lists 
Identify client hours and holidays 

(A)2. DEFINITIONS 

(A)2.1 "Act" means the Communications Act of 1934 (47 U.S.C. 151 et. seq.), as 
amended by the Telecommunications Act of 1996, and as from time to time 
interpreted in the duly authorized rules and regulations of the FCC or a 
Commission within its state of jurisdiction. 

(A)2.2 "Basic Exchange Features" are optional end user switched services that include, 
but are not necessarily limited to: Automatic Call Back; Call Trace; Caller ID and 
Related Blocking Features; Distinctive Ringing/Call Waiting; Selective Call 
Forward; and Selective Call Rejection. 

(A)2.3 "Basic Exchange Telecommunications Service" means a service offered to end 
users which provides the end user with a telephonic connection to, and a unique 
local telephone number address on the public switched telecommunications 

January 17,200O/cbd/essential.com, inc. - Your Energy 8 Communications Superstore 
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network, and which enables such end user to generally place calls to, or receive 
calls from, other stations on the public switched telecommunications network. 
Basic residence and business line services are Basic Exchange 
Telecommunications Services. As used solely in the context of this statement 
and unless otherwise agreed, Basic Exchange Telecommunications Service 
includes access to ancillary services such as 911, directory assistance and 
operator services. 

(A)2.4 "Commission" means the Corporation Commission in the state of 
Arizona. 

(A)2.5 "Enhanced Services" means any service offered over common carrier 
transmission facilities that employ computer processing applications that act on 
format, content, code, protocol or similar aspects of the subscriber's transmitted 
information; that provide the subscriber with additional, different or restructured 
information; or involve end user interaction with stored information. 

(A)2.6 "Interconnect & Resale Resource Guide" is a USW document that provides 
essential information needed to request services available under this Agreement. 
It is available on USWs Web site. 

(A)2.7 "lnterexchange Carrier" or "IXC" means a carrier that provides interlATA or 
IntraIATA Toll services. 

(A)2.8 "IntraLATA Toll" is defined in accordance with USWs current intraLATA toll 
serving areas, as determined by the Federal Communications Commission. 

(A)2.9"Local Exchange Carrier" or "LEC" means any person that is engaged in the 
provision of telephone exchange service or exchange access. Such term does 
not include a person insofar as such person is engaged in the provision of a 
commercial mobile service under Section 332(c) of the Act, except to the extent 
that the FCC finds that such service should be included in the definition of such 
term. 

(A)2.10 "Party" means either USW or RESELLER and "Parties" means USW and 
RESELLER. 

(A)2.11 "Reseller" is a category of local exchange service provider that obtains dial tone 
and associated Telecommunications Services from another provider through the 
purchase of finished services for resale to its end users. 

(A)2.12 "Tariff as used throughout this Agreement refers to USW interstate Tariffs and 
state Tariffs, price lists, price schedules and catalogs. 

(A)2.13 "Telecommunications Carrier" means any provider of Telecommunications 
Services, except that such term does not ,include aggregators of 
Telecommunications Services (as defined in Section 226 of the Act). A 
Telecommunications Carrier shall be treated as a common carrier under the Act 
only to the extent that it is engaged in providing Telecommunications Services, 
except that the Federal Communications Commission shall determine whether 
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the provision of fixed and mobile satellite service shall be treated as common 
carriage. 

(A)2.14 “Telecommunications Services” means the offering of telecommunications for a 
fee directly to the public, or to such classes of users as to be-effectively available 
directly to the public, regardless of the facilities used. 

(A)2.15 Terms not otherwise defined here, but defined in the Act shall have the meaning 
defined there. Where a term is defined in the regulations implementing the Act 
but not in this Agreement, the Parties do not necessarily intend to adopt the 
definition as set forth in said regulations. 

(A)3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
(A)3.1 General Provisions 

(A)3.1.1 

(A)3.1.2 

Each Party is solely responsible for the services it provides to its 
end users and to other Telecommunications Carriers. 

The Parties shall work cooperatively to minimize fraud associated 
with intra-LATA toll, third-number billed calls, and any other services 
related to this Agreement. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent either Party from seeking to 
recover the costs and expenses, if any, it may incur in (a) complying 
with and implementing its obligations under this Agreement, the Act, 
and the rules, regulations and orders of the FCC and the 
Commission, and (b) the development, modification, technical 
installation and maintenance of any systems or other infrastructure 
which it requires to comply with and to continue complying with its 
responsibilities and obligations under this Agreement. 

This Agreement shall become effective upon Commission approval, pursuant to 
Sections 251 and 252 of the Act, shall terminate on March 18, 2002, and shall be 
binding upon the Parties during that term, notwithstanding Section 252(i) of the 
Act. After the date specified above, this Agreement shall continue in force and 
effect until terminated by either Party providing one hundred sixty (160) days 
written notice of termination to the other Party. The day the notice is served will 
determine the starting point for a 160-day negatiation period (in accordance with 
252(b)1 of the Act. In the event of such termination, existing or pending service 
arrangements made available under this Agreement shall continue in total without 
interruption under either a) a new or adoption agreement executed by the Parties, 
or b) tariff terms and conditions generally available to all ,resellers. 
(A)3.2.1 If the Parties are unable to negotiate a new agreement during the 

negotiation period described above, the window of opportunity to file 
for arbitration to resolve outstanding contractual issues in 
accordance with the Act will occur between days 135 and 160 of the 
160 day notice period. 

(A)3.1.3 

(A)3.2 Term of Agreement 

January 17,2000/cbd/essential.com. inc. - Your Energy 8 Communications Superstore 
CDS-OOol 1 17-0037/dp2.3resakaz.doc 

Page 4 

http://17,2000/cbd/essential.com


Part A 
General Terms 

(A) 3.2.2 If the Parties are able to reach agreement, this Agreement shall 
continue for the brief period of time needed to secure the 
Commission's approval of an adoption agreement or a new resale 
agreement. In the case of Section (A)3.2.1, this Agreement will 
expire on the termination date specified in the one hundred sixty 
(160) day notice referenced above, unless a petition for arbitration 
has been filed, but if such a petition has been filed then this 
Agreement shall continue for the period necessary for the 
Commission to act and resolve the disputed issues so that the 
Parties will have an effective resale agreement. 

(A)3.3 Proof of Authorization 
Where so indicated in specific sections of this Agreement, each party shall be 
responsible for obtaining and having in its possession Proof of Authorization 
("POA'). POA shall consist of verification of the end user's selection and 
authorization adequate to document the end user's selection.. Such selection may 
be obtained in the following ways: 
(A)3.3.1 The end user's written Letter of Authorization. 
(A)3.3.2 The end user's electronic authorization by use of an 1-8XX number. 
(A)3.3.3 The end user's oral authorization verified by an independent third 

party (with third party verification as POA). 

The Parties shall make POAs available to each other upon request, in accordance 
with the applicable laws and rules. Unless prohibited by applicable laws or 
regulations, a. charge of $100.00 ("slamming charge") will be assessed if the POA 
cannot be provided supporting the change in service provider. If there is a conflict 
between the end user designation and the other Party's written evidence of its 
authority, the Parties shall honor the designation of the end user and change the 
end user back to the previous service provider. 

(A)3.4 Payment 
(A)3.4.1 Amounts payable under this Agreement are due and payable within 

thirty (30) calendar days after the date of USWs invoice, or within 
twenty (20) days after receipt of the invoice, whichever is later. If 
the payment due date is not a Business Day, the payment shall be 
made the next Business Day.. 

USW may discontinue processing orders for the failure by 
RESELLER to make full payment for the services provided under 
this Agreement within thirty (30) days of the due date on 
RESELLER's bill. 

USW may disconnect for the failure by RESELLER to make full 
payment for the services provided under this Agreement within 
sixty (60) days of the due date on RESELLER'S bill. RESELLER 
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will pay the Tariff charge required to reconnect each end user line 
disconnected pursuant to this paragraph. 

(A)3.4.2 Should RESELLER dispute, in good faith, any portion of the 
monthly billing under this Agreement, RESELLER will notify USW in 
writing within thirty (30) calendar days of the receipt of such billing, 
identifying the amount, reason and rationale of such dispute. 
RESELLER shall pay all amounts due. Both RESELLER and USW 
agree to expedite the investigation of any disputed amounts in an 
effort to resolve and settle the dispute prior to initiating any other 
rights or remedies. Should the dispute be resolved in RESELLER's 
favor and the resolved amount did not appear as a credit on 
RESELLER's next invoice from USW, USW will reimburse 
RESELLER the resolved amount plus interest from the date of 
payment. The amount of interest will be calculated using the late 
payment factor that would have applied to such amount had it not 
been paid on time. 
USW will determine RESELLER's credit status based on previous 
payment history with USW or credit reports such as Dun and 
Bradstreet. If RESELLER has not established satisfactory credit 
with USW or if RESELLER is repeatedly delinquent in making its 
payments, USW may require a deposit to be held as security for the 
payment of charges. "Repeatedly delinquent" means being thirty 
(30) calendar days or more delinquent for three (3) consecutive 
months. The deposit may not exceed the estimated total monthly 
charges for a two (2) month period. The deposit may be a surety 
bond, a letter of credit with terms and conditions acceptable to USW 
or some other form of mutually acceptable security such as a cash 
deposit. Required deposits are due and payable within ten ( I O )  
calendar days after demand in accordance with Commission 
requirements. 
interest will be paid on cash deposits at the rate applying to 
deposits under applicable Commission rules, regulations, or Tariffs. 
Cash deposits and accrued interest will be credited to RESELLER's 
account or refunded, as appropriate, upon the earlier of the 
termination of this Agreement or the establishment of satisfactory 
credit with USW, which will generally be one (1) full year of timely 
payments in full by RESELLER. The fact that a deposit has been 
made does not relieve RESELLER from any requirements of this 
Agreement. 
USW may review RESELLER's credit standing and modify the 
amount of deposit required. 

(A)3.4.3 

(A)3.4.4 

(A) 3.4.5 
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(A) 3.4.6 The late payment charge for amounts that are billed under this 
Agreement shall be in accordance with state Tariffs/Commissio 
Rules and Orders. 

(A)3.5 Taxes 
Each Party purchasing services hereunder shall pay or otherwise be responsible 
for all federal, state, or local sales, use, excise, gross receipts, transaction or 
similar taxes, fees or surcharges levied against or upon such purchasing Party (or 
the providing Party when such providing Party is permitted to pass along to the 
purchasing Party such taxes, fees or surcharges), except for any tax on either 
Party’s corporate existence, status or income. Whenever possible, these amounts 
shall be billed as a separate item on the invoice. To the extent a sale is claimed to 
be for resale tax exemption, the purchasing Party shall furnish the providing Party 
a proper resale tax exemption certificate as authorized or required by statute or 
regulation by the jurisdiction providing said resale tax exemption. Until such time 
as a resale tax exemption certificate is provided, no exemptions will be applied. 

Neither Party shall be liable for any delay or failure in performance of any part of 
this Agreement from any cause beyond its control and without its fault or 
negligence insluding, without limitation, acts of nature, acts of civil or military 
authority, government regulations, embargoes, epidemics, terrorist acts, riots, ‘ 

insurrections, fires, explosions, earthquakes, nuclear accidents, floods, work 
stoppages, equipment failure, power blackouts, volcanic action, other major 
environmental disturbances, unusually severe weather conditions, inability to 
secure products or services of other persons or transportation facilities or acts or 
omissions of transportation carriers (collectively, a “Force Majeure Event”). The 
Party affected by a Force Majeure Event shall give prompt notice to the other 
Party, shall be excused from performance of its obligations hereunder on a day to 
day basis to the extent those obligations are prevented by the Force Majeure 
Event, and shall use reasonable efforts to remove or mitigate the Force Majeure 
Event. In the event of a labor dispute or strike the Parties agree to provide service 
to each other at a level equivalent to the levei they provide themselves. 

(A)3.7.1 

(A)3.6 Force Majeure 

(A)3.7 Limitation of Liability 

Except for losses relating to or arising out of any act or omission in 
its performance of services or functions provided under this 
Agreement, each Party shall be liable to the other for direct 
damages for any loss, defect or equipment‘failure resulting from the 
causing Party’s conduct or the conduct of its agents or contractors 
in performing the obligations contained in’this Agreement. 
Neither Party shall be liable to the other for indirect, incidental, 
consequential, or special damages, including (without limitation) 
damages for lost profits, lost revenues, lost savings suffered by the 
other Party regardless of the form of action, whether in contract, 

(A)3.7.2 
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(A)3.8 Indemnity 

(A)3.8.1 

(A) 3.7.3 

(A)3.7.4 

(A)3.7.5 

(A)3.7.6 

warranty, strict liability, tort, including (without limitation) negligence 
of any kind and regardless of whether the Parties know the 
possibility that such damages could result. 
Except for indemnity obligations, each Party's liability to the other 
Party for any loss relating to or arising out of any act or omission in 
its performance of services or functions provided under this 
Agreement, whether in contract or in tort, shall be limited to the total 
amount that is or would have been charged to the other Party by 
such breaching Party for the setvice(s) or function(s) not performed 
or improperly performed. 
Nothing contained in this Section shall limit either Party's liability to 
the other for intentional, malicious misconduct. 
Nothing contained in this Section shall limit either Party's obligations 
of indemnification as specified in the Indemnity Section of this 
Agreement . 
Neither Party shall be liable to the other under any theory including 
indemnity on account of such Party's failure or neglect to have or 
maintain a system or systems that are Year 2000 compliant. As the 
Parties approach the Year 2000, date information associated with 
any interfaces between the Parties is expected to remain as it is. 

With respect to third party claims, the Parties agree to indemnify 
each other as follows: 

(A)3.8.1.1 Except for claims made by end users of one Party 
against the other Party, which claims are based on 
defective or faulty services provided by the other Party to 
the one Party, each of the Parties agree to release, 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other Party and 
each of its officers, directors, employees and agents 
(each an "Indemnitee") from and against and in respect 
of any loss, debt, liability, damage, obligation, claim, 
demand, judgment or settlement of any nature or kind, 
known or unknown, liquidated or unliquidated including, 
but not limited to, costs and attorneys' fees, whether 
suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by any other party 
or person, for invasion of privacy, personal injury to or 
death of any person or persons, or for loss, damage to, 
or destruction of property, whether or not owned by 
others, resulting from the indemnifying Party's 
performance, breach of applicable law, or status of its 
employees, agents and subcontractors; or for failure to 
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(A)3.8.2 

perform under this Agreement, regardless of the form of 
action. 

(A)3.8.1.2 Where the third party claim is made by (or through) an 
end user of one Party against the'other Party, which 
claim is based on defective or faulty services provided by 
the other Party to the one Party then there shall be no 
obligation of indemnity unless the act or omission giving 
rise to the defective or faulty services is shown to be 
intentional, malicious misconduct of the other Party. 

(A)3.8.1.3 If the claim is made by (or through) an end user and 
where a claim is in the nature of a claim for invasion of 
privacy, libel, slander, or other claim based on the 
content of a transmission, and it is made against a Party 
who is not the immediate provider of the 
Telecommunications Service to the end user (the 
indemnified provider), then in the absence of fault or 
neglect on the part of the indemnified provider, the Party 
who is the immediate seller of such Telecommunications 
Service shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 
indemnified provider from such claim. 

The indemnification provided herein shall be conditioned upon: 
(A)3.8.2.1 The indemnified Party shall promptly notify the 

indemnifying Party of any action taken against the 
indemnified Party relating to the indemnification. Failure 
to so notify the indemnifying Party shall not relieve the 
indemnifying Party of any liability that the indemnifying 
Party might have, except to the extent that such failure 
prejudices the indemnifying Party's ability to defend such 
claim. 

(A)3.8.2.2 The indemnifying Party shall have sole authority to 
defend any such action, including the selection of legal 
counsel, and the indemnified Party may engage 
separate legal counsel only at its sole cost and expense. 

(A)3.8.2.3 In no event shall the indemnifying Party settle or consent 
to any judgment pertaining to any such action without the 
prior written consent of the indemnified Party. 

(A)3.9 Intellectual Property 
(A)3.9.1 Each Party hereby grants to the other Party the limited, personal and 

nonexclusive right and license to use its patents, copyrights and trade 
secrets but only to the extent necessary to implement this Agreement 
or specifically required by the then applicable federal and state rules 
and regulations relating to Interconnection and access to 
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(A)3.9.2 

(A) 3.9.3 

(A)3.9.4 

(A) 3.9.5 

telecommunications facilities and services, and for no other purposes. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as the grant to the other 
Party of any rights or licenses to trademarks. 
The rights and licenses above are granted “AS- IS” and the other 
Party’s exercise of any such right and license shall be at the sole and 
exclusive risk of the other Party. Neither Party shall have any 
obligation to defend, indemnify or hold harmless, or acquire any 
license or right for the benefit of, or owe any other obligation or have 
any liability to, the other based on or arising from any claim, demand, 
or proceeding (hereinafter “claim“) by any third party alleging or 
asserting that the use of any circuit, apparatus, or system, or the use 
of any software, or the performance of any service or method, or the 
provision of any facilities by either Party under this Agreement 
constitutes infringement, or misuse or misappropriation of any patent, 
copyright, trade secret, or any other proprietary or intellectual 
property right of any third party. 
As a condition to the access or use of patents, copyrights, trade 
secrets and other intellectual property (including software) owned or 
controlled by a third party to the extent necessary to implement this 
Agreement or specifically required by the then applicable federal and 
state rules and regulations relating to Interconnection and access to 
telecommunications facilities and services, the Party providing access 
may require the other, upon written notice, from time to time, to obtain 
a license or permission for such access or use, make all payments in 
connection with obtaining such license, and provide evidence of such 
license. 
Except as expressly provided in this Intellectual Property Section, 
nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as the grant of a license, 
either express or implied, with respect to any patent, copyright, logo, 
trademark, trade name, trade secret or any other intellectual property 
right now or hereafter owned, controlled or licensable by either Party. 
Neither Party may use any patent, copyright, logo, trademark, trade 
name, trade secret or other intellectual property rights of the other 
Party or its affiliates without execution of a separate agreement 
between the Parties. 

Neither Party shall without the express writteo permission of the other 
Party, state or imply that: 1) it is connected, or in any way affiliated 
with the other or its affiliates, 2) it is part of a joint business 
association or any similar arrangement with the other or its affiliates, 
3) the other Party and its affiliates are in any way sponsoring, 
endorsing or certifying it and its goods and services, or 4) with 
respect to its advertising or promotional activities or materials, that 
the resold goods and services are in any way associated with or 
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originated from the other or any of its affiliates. Nothing in this 
paragraph shall prevent either Party from truthfully describing the 
network elements it uses to provide service to its end users, provided 
it does not represent the network elements as originating from the 
other Party or its affiliates. 
For purposes of resale only and notwithstanding the above, unless 
otherwise prohibited by USW pursuant to an applicable provision 
herein, RESELLER may use the phrase “RESELLER is a reseller of 
U S WEST Communications services” (the ”Authorized Phrase”) in 
RESELLER’s printed materials provided: 

(A)3.9.6 

(A)3.9.6.1 

(A)3.9.6.2 

(A)3.9.6.3 

(A) 3.9.6.4 

(A)3.9.6.5 

(A)3.9.6.6 

The Authorized Phrase is not used in connection with 
any goods or services other than USW services resold 
by RESELLER. 
RESELLER’s use of the Authorized Phrase does not 
cause end users to believe that RESELLER is USW. 

RESELLER may not use the U S WEST logo. The 
Authorized Phrase, when displayed, appears only in 
text form with all letters being the same font and point 
size. The point size of the Authorized Phrase shall be 
no greater than one fourth the point size of the smallest 
use of RESELLER’s name and in no event shall exceed 
8 point size. 
RESELLER shall provide all printed materials using the 
Authorized Phrase to USW for its prior written approval. 
If USW determines that RESELLER’s use of the 
Authorized Phrase causes end user confusion, USW 
may immediately terminate RESELLER’s right to use 
the Authorized Phrase. 
Upon termination of RESELLER’s right to use the 
Authorized Phrase or termination of this Agreement, all 
permission or right to use the Authorized Phrase shall 
immediately cease to exist and RESELLER shall 
immediately cease any and all such use of the 
Authorized Phrase. RESELLER shall either promptly 
return to USW or destroy all materials in its possession 
or control displaying the Authorized Phrase. 

(A)3.9.7 RESELLER acknowledges the value of the marks “U S WEST and 
“U S WEST Communications” (the “Marks”) and the goodwill 
associated therewith and acknowledges that such goodwill is a 
property right belonging to U S WEST, Inc. and USW respectively 
(the “Owners”). RESELLER recognizes that nothing contained in this 
Agreement is intended as an assignment or grant to RESELLER of 
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any right, title or interest in or to the Marks and that this Agreement 
does not confer any right or license to grant sublicenses or 
permission to third parties to use the Marks and is not assignable. 
RESELLER will do nothing inconsistent with the Owner’s ownership of 
the Marks, and all rights, if any, that may be acquired by use of the 
Marks shall inure to the benefit of the Owners. RESELLER will not 
adopt, use (other than as authorized herein), register or seek to 
register any mark anywhere in the world which is identical or 
confusingly similar to the Marks or which is so similar thereto as to 
constitute a deceptive colorable imitation thereof or to suggest or 
imply some association, sponsorship, or endorsement by the Owners. 
The Owners make no warranties regarding ownership of any rights in 
or the validity of the Marks. 

(A)3.10 Warranties 
NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT, THE 
PARTIES AGREE THAT NEITHER PARTY HAS MADE, AND THAT THERE 
DOES NOT EXIST, ANY WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT 
NOT LIMITED TO WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

(A)3.11 Assignmenf 
(A)3.11.1 Neither Party may assign or transfer (whether by operation of law or 

otherwise) this Agreement (or any rights or obligations hereunder) to 
a third party without the prior written consent of the other Party. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, either Party may assign or transfer 
this Agreement to a corporate affiliate or an entity under its common 
control; however, if RESELLER’s assignee or transferee has an 
interconnection agreement with USW, no assignment or transfer of 
this Agreement shall be effective without the prior written consent of 
USW. Such consent shall include appropriate resolutions of conflicts 
and discrepancies between the assignee’s or transferee’s 
interconnection agreement and this Agreement. Any attempted 
assignment or transfer that is not permitted is void ab initio. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, this Agreement shall be 
binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties’ respective 
successors and assigns. 

(A)3.11.2 Without limiting the generality of the foregoing subsection, any 
merger, dissolution, consolidation or other reorganization of 
RESELLER, or any sale, transfer, pledge or other disposition by 
RESELLER of securities representing more than 50% of the 
securities entitled to vote in an election of RESELLER’s board of 
directors or other similar governing body, or any sale, transfer, pledge 
or other disposition by RESELLER of subStantially all of its assets, 
shall be deemed a transfer of control. If any entity, other than 
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RESELLER, involved in such merger, dissolution, consolidation, 
reorganization, sale, transfer, pledge or other disposition of 
RESELLER has an interconnection agreement with USW, the Parties 
agree that only one agreement, either this Agreement or the 
interconnection agreement of the other entity, will remain valid. All 
other interconnection agreements will be terminated. The Parties 
agree to work together to determine which interconnection agreement 
should remain valid and which should terminate. In the event the 
Parties cannot reach agreement on this issue, the issue shall be 
resolved through the Dispute Resolution process contained in this 
Agreement. 

(A)3.12 Default 
If either Party defaults in the payment of any amount due hereunder, or if either 
Party violates any other material provision of this Agreement, and such default or 
violation shall continue for thirty (30) calendar days after written notice thereof, the 
other Party may seek relief in accordance with the Dispute Resolution provision of 
this Agreement. The failure of either Party to enforce any of the provisions of this 
Agreement or the waiver thereof in any instance shall not be construed as a 
general waiver or relinquishment on its part of any such provision, but the same 
shall, nevertheless, be and remain in full force and effect. 

Except for provisions herein expressly authorizing a Party to act for another, 
nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a Party as a legal representative or 
agent of the other Party, nor shall a Party have the right or authority to assume, 
create or incur any liability or any obligation of any kind, express or implied, 
against or in the name or on behalf of the other Party unless otherwise expressly 
permitted by such other Party. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
Agreement, no Party undertakes to perform any obligation of the other Party 
whether regulatory or contractual, or to assume any responsibility for the 
management of the other Party's business. 

(A)3.14 Nondisclosure 
(A)3.14.1 

(A)3.13 Disclaimer of Agency 

All information, including but not limited to specifications, microfilm, 
photocopies, magnetic disks, magnetic tapes, drawings, sketches, 
models, samples, tools, technical information, data, employee 
records, maps, financial reports, and market data, (i) furnished by one 
Party to the other Party dealing with end usei specific, facility specific, 
or usage specific information, other than end user information 
communicated for the purpose of providing directory assistance or 
publication of directory database, or (ii) in written, graphic, 
electromagnetic, or other tangible form and marked at the time of 
delivery as "Confidential" or "Proprietary", or (iii) communicated and 
declared to the receiving Party at the time of delivery, or by written 
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(A)3.14.2 

(A)3.14.3 

(A)3.14.4 

notice given to the receiving Party within ten (10) calendar days after 
delivery, to be “Confidential” or ”Proprietary” (collectively referred to 
as “Proprietary Information”), shall remain the property of the 
disclosing Party. A Party who receives Proprietary Information via an 
oral communication may request written confirmation that the material 
is Proprietary Information. A Party who delivers Proprietary 
Information via an oral communication may request written 
confirmation that the Party receiving the information understands that 
the material is Proprietary Information. 
Upon request by the disclosing Party, the receiving Party shall return 
all tangible copies of Proprietary information, whether written, graphic 
or otherwise, except that the receiving Party may retain one copy for 
archival purposes. 
Each Party shall keep all of the other Party’s Proprietary Information 
confidential and shall use the other Party’s Proprietary Information 
only in connection with this Agreement. Neither Party shall use the 
other Party’s Proprietary Information for any other purpose except 
upon such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon between the 
Parties in writing. 
Unless otherwise agreed, the obligations of confidentiality and non- 
use set forth in this Agreement do not apply to such Proprietary 
Information as: 
(A)3.14.4.1 

(A)3.14.4.2 

(A)3.14.4.3 

(A)3.14.4.4 

(A)3.14.4.5 

was at the time of receipt already known to the 
receiving Party free of any obligation to keep it 
confidential evidenced by written records prepared prior 
to delivery by the disclosing Party; or 
is or becomes publicly known through no wrongful act of 
the receiving Party; or 

is rightfully received from a third person having no direct 
or indirect secrecy or confidentiality obligation to the 
disclosing Party with respect to such information; or 

is independently developed by an employee, agent, or 
contractor of the receiving Party which individual is not 
involved in any manner with the provision of services 
pursuant to the Agreement and does not have ariy 
direct or indirect access to the Proprietary Information; 
or 
is disclosed to a third person by the disclosing Party 
without similar restrictions on such third person’s rights; 
or 
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(A)3.14.5 

(A)3.14.6 

(A)3.15 Survival 

(A)3.14.4.6 is approved for release by written authorization of the 
disclosing Party; or 

(A)3.14.4.7 is required to be made public by the receiving Party 
pursuant to applicable law or regulation provided that 
the receiving Party shall give sufficient notice of the 
requirement to the disclosing Party to enable the 
disclosing Party to seek protective orders. 

Nothing herein is intended to prohibit a Party from supplying factual 
information about its network and Telecommunications Services on or 
connected to its network to regulatory agencies including the Federal 
Communications Commission and the Commission so long as any 
confidential obligation is protected. 

Effective Date Of This Section. Notwithstanding any other provision 
of this Agreement, the Proprietary Information provisions of this 
Agreement shall apply to all information furnished by either Party to 
the other in furtherance of the purpose of this Agreement, even if 
furnished before the date of this Agreement. 

Any liabilities or obligations of a Party for acts or omissions prior to the cancellation 
or termination of this Agreement; any obligation of a Party under the provisions 
regarding indemnification, Confidential or Proprietary Information, limitations of 
liability, and any other provisions of this Agreement which, by their terms, are 
contemplated to survive (or to be performed after) termination of this Agreement, 
shall survive cancellation or termination hereof. 

(A)3.16 Dispute Resolution 
(A)3.16.1 

(A)3.16.2 

If any claim, controversy or dispute between the Parties, their agents, 
employees, officers, directors or affiliated agents should arise, and 
the Parties do not resolve it in the ordinary course of their dealings 
(the "Dispute"), then it shall be resolved in accordance with the 
dispute resolution process set forth in this Section. Each notice of 
default, unless cured within the applicable cure period, shall be 
resolved in accordance herewith. 

At the written request of either Party, and prior to any other formal 
dispute resolution proceedings, each Party shall designate an officer- 
level employee, at no less than the vice president level, to review, 
meet, and negotiate, in good faith, to resolve the Dispute. The 
Parties intend that these negotiations be 'conducted by non-lawyer, 
business representatives, and the locations, format, frequency, 
duration, and conclusions of these discussions shall be at the 
discretion of the representatives. By mutual agreement, the 
representatives may use other procedures, such as mediation, to 
assist in these negotiations. The discussions and correspondence 
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among the representatives for the purposes of these negotiations 
shall be treated as Confidential Information developed for purposes of 
settlement, and shall be exempt from discovery and production, and 
shall not be admissible in any subsequent arbitration or other 
proceedings without the concurrence of both of the Parties. 

(A)3.16.3 If the vice-presidential level representatives have not reached a 
resolution of the Dispute within thirty (30) calendar days after the 
matter is referred to them, then either Party may demand that the 
Dispute be settled by arbitration. Such an arbitration proceeding shall 
be conducted by a single arbitrator, knowledgeable about the 
telecommunications industry. The arbitration proceedings shall be 
conducted under the then current rules of the American Arbitration 
Association ("AAA"). The Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. Sections 
1-16, not state law, shall govern the arbitrability of the Dispute. The 
arbitrator shall not have authority to award punitive damages. All 
expedited procedures prescribed by the AAA rules shall apply. The 
arbitrator's award shall be final and binding and may be entered in 
any court having jurisdiction thereof. Each Party shall bear its own 
costs and attorneys' fees, and shall share equally in the fees and 
expenses of the arbitrator. The arbitration proceedings shall occur in 
the Denver, Colorado metropolitan area. It is acknowledged that the 
Parties, by mutual, written agreement, may change any of these 
arbitration practices for a particular, some, or all Dispute(s). 
Should it become necessary to resort to court proceedings to enforce 
a Party's compliance with the dispute resolution process set forth 
herein, and the court directs or otherwise requires compliance 
herewith, then all of the costs and expenses, including its reasonable 
attorney fees, incurred by the Party requesting such enforcement 
shall be reimbursed by the non-complying Party to the requesting 
Party. 
No Dispute, regardless of the form of action, arising out of this 
Agreement, may be brought by either Party more than two (2) years 
after the cause of action accrues. 

(A)3.16.4 

(A)3.16.5 

(A)3.17 Controlling Law 
This Agreement was negotiated by the Parties in accordance with the terms of the 
Act and the laws of the state where service is provide6 hereunder. It shall be 
interpreted solely in accordance with the terms of the Act and the applicable state 
law in the state where the service is provided. 

This Agreement is the joint work product of the Parties and has been negotiated by 
the Parties and their respective counsel and shall. be fairly interpreted in 

(A)3.18 Joint Work Product 

January 17.2000/cbd/essential.cm, inc. - Your Energy 8 Communications Superstore 
CDS-O001117-0037/dp2.3resaieaz.doc 

Page 16 



Part A 
General Terms 

accordance with its terms and, in the event of any ambiguities, no inferences shall 
be drawn against either Party. 

Neither Party shall be liable to the other for any costs whatsiever resulting from 
the presence or release of any environmental hazard that either Party did not 
introduce to the affected work location. Both Parties shall defend and hold 
harmless the other, its officers, directors and employees from and against any 
losses, damages, claims, demands, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties and expenses 
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees) that arise out of or result from (i) any 
environmental hazard that the indemnifying Party, its contractors or agents 
introduce to the work locations or (ii) the presence or release of any environmental 
hazard for which the indemnifying Party is responsible under applicable law. 

Any notices required by or concerning this Agreement shall be sent to the Parties 
at the addresses shown below: 
usw 
Director Interconnection Compliance 
1801 California, Room 2410 
Denver, CO 88202 
With copy to: 
U S WEST Law Department 
Attention: General Counsel, Interconnection 
1801 California Street, 51st Floor 
Denver, CO 80202 
RESELLER 
John Duffy 
Peter Mills 
3 Burlington Woods Drive 
4m Floor 
Burlington, MA 01 803 
Phone: 781-229-9599, ext. 136 

E-mail: jduffy@essential.com 

Each Party shall inform the other of any changes in the above addresses. 
(A)3.21 Responsibility of Each Party 

Each Party is an independent contractor, and has and ,hereby retains the right to 
exercise full control of and supervision over its own performance of its obligations 
under this Agreement and retains full control over the employment, direction, 
compensation and discharge of all employees assisting in the performance of such 
obligations. Each Party will be solely responsible for all matters relating to 
payment of such employees, including compliance with social security taxes, 

(A)3.19 Responsibility for Environmental Contamination 

(A)3.20 Notices 

Fax: 781 -229-9499 
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withh ldin taxes and all 0th regulations governin such matters. Each Party will 
be solely responsible for proper handling, storage, transport and disposal at its 
own expense of all (i) substances or materials that it or its contractors or agents 
bring to, create or assume control over at work locations or,-(ii) waste resulting 
therefrom or otherwise generated in connection with its or its contractors’ or 
agents’ activities at the work locations. Subject to the limitations on liability and 
except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each Party shall be responsible 
for (i) its own acts and performance of all obligations imposed by applicable law in 
connection with its activities, legal status and property, real or personal and, (ii) the 
acts of its own affiliates, employees, agents and contractors during the 
performance of that Party’s obligations hereunder. 

(A)3.22 No Third Party Beneficiaries 
This Agreement does not provide and shall not be construed to provide third 
parties with any remedy, claim, liability, reimbursement, cause of action, or other 
privilege. 

All references to Sections shall be deemed to be references to Sections of this 
Agreement unless the context shall otherwise require. Whenever any provision of 
this Agreement refers to a technical reference, technical publication, RESELLER 
practice, USW practice, any publication of telecommunications industry 
administrative or technical standards, or any other document specifically 
incorporated into this Agreement, it will be deemed to be a reference to the most 
recent version or edition (including any amendments, supplements, addenda, or 
successors) of such document that is in effect, and will include the most recent 
version or edition (including any amendments, supplements, addenda, or 
successors) of each document incorporated by reference in such a technical 
reference, technical publication, RESELLER practice, USW practice, or publication 
of industry standards. USW will not implement changes in the most recent version 
or edition in the documents described above when such changes are optional. 
The existing configuration of either Party’s network may not be in immediate 
compliance with the latest release of applicable referenced documents. 

Neither Party shall publish or use any publicity materials with respect to the 
execution and delivery or existence of this Agreement without the prior written 
approval of the other Party. 

RESELLER and USW may mutually agree to amend this Agreement in writing. 
Since it is possible that amendments to this Agreement may be needed to fully 
satisfy the purposes and objectives of this Agreement, the Parties agree to work 
cooperatively, promptly and in good faith to negotiate and implement any such 
additions, changes and corrections to this Agreement. 

(A)3.23 Referenced Documents 

(A)3.24 Publicity 

(A)3.25 Amendment 

‘ 
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(A)3.26 Executed in Counterparts 
This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original; but such counterparts shall together constitute one 
and the same instrument. 

(A)3.27 Headings of No Force or Effect 
The headings of Sections of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only, 
and shall in no way define, modify or restrict the meaning or interpretation of the 
terms or provisions of this Agreement 

The Parties understand and agree that this Agreement will be filed with the 
Commission for approval. In the event the Commission rejects any portion of this 
Agreement, renders it inoperable or creates an ambiguity that requires further 
amendment, the Parties agree to meet and negotiate in good faith to arrive at a 
mutually acceptable modification. 

Each Party shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules and 
regulations applicable to its performance under this Agreement. Without limiting 
the foregoing, USW and RESELLER agree to take all action necessary to keep 
and maintain in full force and effect all permits, licenses, certificates, insurance, 
and other authorities needed to perform their respective obligations hereunder. 

(A)3.30 Compliance with the Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act 

Each Party represents and warrants that any equipment, facilities or services 
provided to the other Party under this Agreement comply with CALEA. Each Party 
shall indemnify and hold the other Party harmless from any and all penalties 
imposed upon the other Party for such noncompliance and shall at the non- 
compliant Party’s sole cost and expense, modify or replace any equipment, 
facilities or services provided to the other Party under this Agreement to ensure 
that such equipment, facilities and services fully comply with CALEA. 

The Parties agree that this Agreement involves the provision of USW services in 
ways such services were not previously available and the introduction of new 
processes and procedures to provide and bill such services. Accordingly, the 
Parties agree to work jointly and cooperatively in testing and implementing 
processes for pre-ordering, ordering, maintenance, provisioning and billing and in 
reasonably resolving issues which result from such implementation on a timely 
basis. Electronic processes and procedures are addressed in Part D of this 
Agreement. 

(A)3.28 Regulatory Approval 

(A)3.29 Compliance 

of 1994 (“CALEA”) 

(A)3.31 Cooperation 
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(A)3.32 Availability of Other Agreements 

With regard to the availability of other agreements, the Parties agree that the 
provisions of Section 252(i) of the Act shall apply, including state and federal, 
Commission and court interpretive regulations and decisions in effect from time 
to time. 
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PART B - RESALE 
(B)I. Description 

(B)1.1 Pursuant to the Act and this Part B, USW shall offer for resale at wholesale 
rates any Telecommunications Services it provides to end users who are not 
Telecommunications Carriers including terms and conditions (except prices) in 
the USW Tariffs, where applicable. RESELLER may obtain intraLATA toll 
service from USW for resale or RESELLER has the option to self-provision 
intraLATA toll or to obtain intralATA toll for resale from another provider. 

The Parties agree that certain USW services are not available for resale under 
this Agreement and certain other USW services are available for resale but not 
at a discount, as identified in Part E or in individual state Tariffs. The 
availability of services and applicable discounts identified in Part E or in 
individual Tariffs are subject to change pursuant to the Rates and Charges 
sub-section of this Resale section. 

(B)1.2 

(B)2. Terms and Conditions 
(B)2.1 

(B)2.2 

(B)2.3 

(B)2.4 

Basic Exchange Telecommunications Service, Basic Exchange Features, 
Private Line Service, Frame Relay Service and intraLATA Toll may be resold 
only for their intended or disclosed use and only to the same class of end user 
to which USW sells such services (e.g., residence service may not be resold to 
business end users). Service provided directly to RESELLER for its own use, 
such as administrative services, must be identified by RESELLER and 
RESELLER must pay the full retail rates and prices for such services. 
USW shall provide to RESELLER Telecommunications Services for resale that 
are at least equal in quality, and in substantially the same time and manner 
that USW provides these services to others, including other Resellers and end 
users, and in accordance with any applicable Commission service quality 
standards, including standards the Commission may impose pursuant to 
Section 252 (e)(3) of the Act. 

In the event that there are existing agreements between RESELLER and USW 
for resale under USW retail Tariff discounts, RESELLER may elect to continue 
to obtain services for resale under the existing agreements and retail Tariff 
discounts or RESELLER may elect to terminate such existing agreements and 
obtain such services under this Agreement with the associated wholesale 
discount specified in Part E of this Agreement. 

In accordance with the Act, RESELLER will provide the date it will begin to 
offer Telecommunications Services to residential and business end users. 
RESELLER will provide a two (2) year forecast within ninety (90) calendar days 
of signing this Agreement The forecast shall be updated and provided to USW 
on a annual basis or as requested by USW. Each forecast will provide: 
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(B)2.5 

(B)2.6 

(B)2.7 

(B)2.8 

(B)2.9 

(B)2.10 

The date service will be offered (by city and/or state) 
The type and quantity of service(s) which will be offered 
RESELLER’s anticipated number of service orders 
Name of RESELLER’s key contact personnel 

The information provided pursuant to this paragraph shall be considered 
Proprietary Information under the Nondisclosure Section of this Agreement. 
RESELLER may not reserve blocks of USW telephone numbers, except as 
allowed by Tariffs. 

USW will accept at no charge one primary listing for each main telephone 
number belonging to RESELLER’s end user based on end user information 
provided to USW by RESELLER. USW will place RESELLER’s listings in 
USWs directory listing database for directory assistance purposes. Additional 
terms and conditions with respect to directory listings are described in Part C of 
this Agreement. 
USW shall provide to RESELLER, for RESELLER’s end users, E911/911 call 
routing to the appropriate Public Safety Answering Point (“PSAP). USW shall 
not be responsible for any failure of RESELLER to provide accurate end user 
information for listings in any databases in which USW is required to retain 
and/or maintain end user information.. USW shall provide and validate . 
RESELLER’s end user information to the Automatic Location 
Identification/Database Management System (“ALI/DMS”). USW shall use its 
standard process to update and maintain, on the same schedule that it uses 
for its end users, RESELLER’s end user service information in the ALVDMS 
used to support E91 1/91 1 services. USW assumes no liability for the accuracy 
of information provided by RESELLER. 
If USW provides and RESELLER accepts operator services, directory 
assistance, and intraLATA long distance as a part of the resold line, it will be 
offered with standard USW branding. RESELLER is not permitted to alter the 
branding of these services in any manner when the services are a part of the 
resold line without the prior written approval of USW. However, at the request 
of RESELLER and where technically feasible, USW will rebrand operator 
services and directory assistance in RESELLER’s name, provided the charges 
associated with such rebranding are paid by RESELLER. 

RESELLER shall designate the Primary lnterexchange Carrier (PIC) 
assignments on behalf of its end users for interLATA services and intraLATA 
services. 

When end users switch from USW to RESELLER, or to RESELLER from any 
other Reseller, and if they do not change their service address to an address 
served by a different Central Office, such end users shall be permitted to retain 
their current telephone numbers if they so desire. USW shall take no action to 
prevent RESELLER end users from retaining their current telephone numbers. 
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(B)2.11 RESELLER is liable for all fraud associated with service to its end-users and 
accounts. USW takes no responsibility, will not investigate, and will make no 
adjustments to RESELLER’s account in cases of fraud unless such fraud is the 
result of any intentional act or gross negligence of USW. Notwithstanding the 
above, if USW becomes aware of potential fraud with respect to RESELLER’s 
accounts, USW will promptly inform RESELLER and, at the direction of 
RESELLER, take reasonable action to mitigate the fraud where such action is 
possible. 
Resold services are available only where facilities currently exist and are 
capable of providing such services without construction of additional facilities or 
enhancement of existing facilities. However, if RESELLER requests that 
facilities be constructed or enhanced to provide resold services, USW will 
review such requests on a case-by-case basis and determine if it is 
economically feasible for USW to build or enhance facilities. If USW decides to 
build or enhance the requested facilities, USW will develop and provide to 
RESELLER a price quote for the construction. Construction charges 
associated with resold services will be applied in the same manner that 
construction charges apply to USWs retail end users. If the quote is accepted, 
RESELLER will be billed the quoted price and construction will commence after 
receipt of payment. 
In the event USW terminates the provisioning of any resold services to 
RESELLER for any reason, including RESELLER’s non-payment of charges, 
RESELLER shall be responsible for providing any and all necessary notice to 
its end users of the termination. In no case shall USW be responsible for 
providing such notice to RESELLER’s end users. USW will provide notice to 
RESELLER of USWs termination of a resold service on a timely basis 
consistent with Commission rules and notice requirements. 
The underlying network provider of a resold service shall be entitled to receive, 
from the purchaser of Switched Access, the appropriate access charges 
pursuant to its then effective Switched Access Tariff. 
Centrex terms and conditions related to calculation of charges for, and 
provisioning of common blocks, station lines, and optional features will be 
based on the Centrex definition of a system and a Reseller’s serving location. 

(8)2.12 

(B)2.13 

(B)2.14 

(B)2.15 

(B) 2.15.1 Where a common block is applicable, a Centrex system is defined 
by a single common block or multiple common blocks for a single 
RESELLER within a single Central Office‘ switching system. A 
common block defines the dialing plan for: intercom calling, access 
to Public Switched Network and/or private facilities, station line 
and system restrictions and feature access arrangements and 
functionality. RESELLER may purchase multiple common blocks 
within a single Central Ofice switching system when RESELLER 
requires different dialing plans, feature access arrangements and 
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(B)2.15.2 

station line or system restrictions within a single system operation. 
A Reseller with multiple common blocks within the same Central 
Office switch may have Network Access Register and Private 
Facility trunk groups aggregated across multiple common blocks. 
Centrex system based optional features (i.e. Automatic Route 
Selection) may not be aggregated across multiple common 
blocks. A Centrex system must provide station lines to at least 
one location and may provide station lines to multiple locations. 

Centrex station lines are provisioned and charges are calculated 
based on serving Reseller's location. A location is defined as the 
site where USW facilities (cable plant from the serving Central 
Office switch) meet Reseller facilities (inside wire). In a multi- 
tenant building, USW may bring facilities directly to a single point 
of interconnection with Reseller facilities, typically in a basement 
equipment room, which would be considered a single location for 
this multi-tenant building. Should USW bring service to multiple 
floors or offices within a multi-tenant building each floor or office 
with a separate Reseller facilities termination point is considered a 
location. Multiple buildings within contiguous property (campus) 
will be provisioned and billed as a single location. Contiguous 
property is defined as property owned or leased by a single end 
user and not separated by public thoroughfare, river or railroad 
rights-of-way. Property will be considered contiguous when 
connected via connecting passageways or conduit acceptable to 
USW for its facilities. A Reseller with Centrex station lines from 
multiple Central Office switching systems, within the same USW 
Wire Center, and provisioned to the same location will not be 
charged for service or provisioned as if service was originating 
from a single Centrex system. For example, station lines may 
only be aggregated from a single Centrex Reseller system to a 
single Reseller serving location for rating purposes. RESELLER 
may not specify a USW Central Office as a RESELLER location 
for termination of Centrex station lines. 

(B)2.16 Private Line Service used for Special Access is available for resale but 
not at a discount. 

(B)2.17 DSL Service (such as Megabit Service) is available for resale by 
RESELLER out of USWs Interstate Tariff, but at no wholesale discount. 

(B)3. Rates and Charges 
(B)3.1 The Telecommunications Services identified in Part E are available for resale 

at the wholesale discount percentage shown in Part E. Telecommunications 
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(B)3.2 

(B)3.3 

(B)3.4 

(B)3.5 

(B)3.6 

(B)3.7 

(B)3.8 

(B)3.9 

(B)3.10 

Services available for resale but excluded from the wholesale pricing 
arrangement in this Agreement are available at the retail Tariff rates. 

The Customer Transfer Charges (CTC) as specified in Part E apply when 
transferring services to RESELLER. 

A Subscriber Line Charge (SLC), or any subsequent federally mandated 
charge to end users, will continue to be paid by RESELLER without discount 
for each local exchange line resold under this Agreement. All federal and state 
rules and regulations associated with SLC as found in the applicable Tariffs 
also apply. 

RESELLER will pay to USW the PIC change charge without discount for 
RESELLER end user changes of interexchange or intraLATA carriers. Any 
change in RESELLER's end users' interexchange or intraLATA carrier must be 
requested by RESELLER on behalf of its end user. 

RESELLER agrees to pay USW when its end user activates any services or 
features that are billed on a per use or per activation basis subject to the 
applicable discount in Part E as such may be amended pursuant to this 
Section (e.g., continuous redial, last call return, call back calling, call trace, 
etc.). 

Product specific non-recurring charges, as set forth in USWs applicable Tariffs 
will apply when additional lines, trunks or circuits are added or when the end 
user adds features or services to existing lines or trunks. 

Miscellaneous charges, if applicable, will be consistent with charges for 
equivalent services ordered by USW end users. 

The wholesale discount rates (the "Rates") in Part E were established in 
Docket Nos. U-3021-96-448, et al., Opinion and Order, Decision No. 60635, 
"In the Matter of the Petition of MClMetro Access Transmission Services, Inc. 
for Arbitration of the Rates, Terms, and Conditions of Interconnection with 
U S WEST Communications, Inc. Pursuant to 47 U.S.C. Sec. 252(b) of the 
Telecommunications Act of 1996." The Parties agree that the Rates in this 
Agreement will remain in effect as described below until the exhaustion of all 
appeals, if any, of the final order in this docket. 

If the Rates or the applicability of the Rates to the services in Part E are 
changed by a nonappealable administrative or judicial order following a 
decision on rehearing or appeal or other similar proceeding, such changed 
rate(s) will be available to RESELLER, effective as.of the date of the order. 
No true-up of the Rates will occur unless ordered as a part of the 
nonappealable administrative or judicial order. 

USW shall have a reasonable time necessary to make the system changes 
necessary to implement and bill the changed rates. 
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(B)3.11 If the resold services are purchased pursuant to Tariffs and the Tariff rates 
change, charges billed to RESELLER for such services will be based upon 
the new Tariff rates less the applicable wholesale discount, if any, as agreed 
to herein or as established by Commission order and/or resale Tariff. The 
new rate will be effective upon the Tariff effective date. 

(B)4. Ordering Process 
(B)4.1 RESELLER, or RESELLER’s agent, shall act as the single point of contact for 

its end users’ service needs, including without limitation, sales, service design, 
order taking, provisioning, change orders, training, maintenance, trouble 
reports, repair, post-sale servicing, billing, collection and inquiry. RESELLER 
shall inform its end users that they are end users of RESELLER for resold 
services. RESELLER‘s end users contacting USW will be instructed to contact 
RESELLER; however, nothing in this Agreement, except as provided below, 
shall be deemed to prohibit USW from discussing its products and services 
with RESELLER’s end users who call USW. 

RESELLER shall transmit to USW all information necessary for the ordering 
(billing, listing and other information), installation, repair, maintenance and 
post-installation servicing according to USWs standard procedures, as 
described in the USW Interconnect & Resale Resource Guide available on 
USWs Web site. Information shall be provided using USWs designated Local 
Service Request (LSR) format which may include the LSR, end user and 
resale forms. RESELLER must send USW complete and accurate end user 
listing information for Directory Assistance, Directory Listings, and 91 1 
Emergency Services using USW’s designated resale directory listing order 
forms. When USWs end user or the end user’s new service provider orders 
the discontinuance of the end user’s existing service in anticipation of moving 
to another service provider, USW will render its closing bill to the end user 
effective with the disconnection. If another service provider, RESELLER’s end 
user or RESELLER requests that service be discontinued from RESELLER 
and subsequently USWs service to RESELLER is discontinued USW will issue 
a bill to RESELLER for that portion of the service provided to RESELLER.. 
USW will notify RESELLER by FAX, OSS interface or other agreed upon 
processes, in accordance with the OSS section of this Agreement when an end 
user moves to another service provider. USW will not provide RESELLER with 
the name of the other service provider selected by theend user. 

(B)4.3 RESELLER shall provide USW and USW shall provide RESELLER with points 
of contact for order entry, problem resolution and repair of the resold services. 

(B)4.4 Prior to placing orders on behalf of the end user, RESELLER shall be 
responsible for obtaining and have in its possession Proof of Authorization 
(“POA”), as set forth in Part A of this Agreement. 

(B)4.2 

. 
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(B)4.5 

(B)4.6 

(B)4.7 

(B)4.8 

(B)4.9 

(B)5. Billing 
(B)5.1 

(B)5.2 

Due date interval standards are addressed in the Interconnect & Resale 
Resource Guide. 
Firm Order Confirmation (FOC) guidelines are addressed in the Interconnect & 
Resale Resource Guide. 
USW will provide completion notification that is equal to that provided to USW 
end users. 
USW will provide Design Layout Records when requested under terms and 
conditions consistent with USW end users. 
USW will handle jeopardy orders based upon the same performance standards 
and criteria that USW provides to itself. 

USW shall bill RESELLER and RESELLER is responsible for all applicable 
charges for the resold services as provided herein. RESELLER shall also be 
responsible for all Tariffed charges and charges separately identified in this 
Agreement associated with services that RESELLER resells to an end user 
under this Agreement. 

USW shall provide RESELLER, on a monthly basis, within 7-10 calendar days 
of the lastday of the most recent billing period, in an agreed upon standard 
electronic billing format as detailed in Part. D, billing information including (1) a 
summary bill, and (2) individual end user sub-account information consistent 
with the samples available for RESELLER review. 

, 

(B)6. Maintenance and Repair 
RESELLER and USW will employ the procedures for handling misdirected repair calls as 
specified in the Maintenance and Repair Section of this Agreement. 
(B)6.1 USW will maintain facilities and equipment used to provide RESELLER resold 

services. RESELLER or its end user may not rearrange, move, disconnect, or 
attempt to repair USW facilities or equipment, other than by connection or 
disconnection to any interface between USW and the end user, without written 
consent of USW. 

(B)6.2 Maintenance and repair processes are detailed in the Maintenance and Repair 
Section of this Agreement. 
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PART C -WHITE PAGES DIRECTORY LISTINGS 
Description 

White Pages Listings Service (Listings) consists of USW placing the names, addresses 
and telephone numbers of RESELLER’s end users in USWs listing database, based on 
end user information provided to USW by RESELLER. USW is authorized to use Listings 
in Directory Assistance (DA) and as noted below. 

Terms and Conditions 
(C)2.1 RESELLER will provide in standard, mechanized format, and USW 

will accept at no charge, one primary listing for each main telephone 
number belonging to RESELLER’s end users. Primary listings for 
RESELLER will include the end user Listings for any resold services 
or wireless services and are further defined in USWs general 
exchange Tariffs. RESELLER will be charged for premium and 
privacy listings, (e.g., additional, foreign, cross reference, 
informational, etc.), at USWs general exchange listing Tariff rates, 
less the wholesale discount. If RESELLER utilizes Remote Call 
Forwarding for local number portability, RESELLER can list only one 
number without charge - either the end user’s original telephone 
number or RESELLER-assigned number. The standard discounted 
rate for an additional listing applies to the other number. 

(C)2.2 USW will furnish RESELLER the Listings format specifications. All 
manual requests are considered a project and require coordination 
between RESELLER and USW to determine time frames. 

(C)2.3 RESELLER grants USW a non-exclusive license to incorporate 
Listings information into its Directory Assistance database. With this 
license USW will incorporate Listings in the DA database. 
No prior authorization is needed for USW to release Listings to 
directory publishers or other third parties. USW will incorporate 
Listings information in all existing and future directory assistance 
applications developed by USW. RESELLER authorizes USW to sell 
and otherwise make Listings available to directory publishers. Listings 
shall not be provided or sold in such a manner as to segregate end 
users by carrier. USW will not charge for updating and maintaining 
the Listings database. RESELLER will not receive compensation 
from USW for any sale of Listings by USW. 
To the extent that state Tariffs limit USWs liability with regard to 
Listings, the applicable state Tariff(s) is incorporated herein and 
supersedes the Limitation of Liability section of this Agreement with 
respect to Listings only. 

(C)2.4 

(C)2.5 
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(C)2.6 

(C)2.7 

(C)2.8 

(C)2.9 

(C)2.10 

(C)2.11 

(C)2.12 

(C)2.13 

Part C 
Directory Listings 

USW is responsible for maintaining Listings, including entering, 
changing, correcting, rearranging and removing Listings in 
accordance with RESELLER orders. USW will take reasonable steps 
in accordance with industry practices to accommadate non-published 
and non-listed Listings provided that RESELLER has supplied USW 
the necessary privacy indicators on such Listings. 
USW will include RESELLER Listings in USWs Directory Assistance 
service to ensure that callers to USWs Directory Assistance service 
have non-discriminatory access to RESELLER’s Listings. 

USW will ensure RESELLER Listings provided to USW are included 
in the white pages directory published on USWs behalf. 

RESELLER agrees to provide to USW its end user names, addresses 
and telephone numbers in a standard mechanized format, as 
specified by USW. 
RESELLER will supply its ACNNCIC or CLCC/OCN, as appropriate, 
with each order to provide USW the means of identifying Listings 
ownership. 
Upon request by USW, RESELLER shall submit proof to USW, of 
authorization from each end user for which RESELLER submits a 
change in end user’s Listing. 

RESELLER represents and warrants the end user information 
provided to USW is accurate and correct. RESELLER further 
represents and warrants that it has reviewed all Listings provided to 
USW, including end user requested restrictions on use such as non- 
published and non-listed. RESELLER shall be solely responsible for 
knowing and adhering to state laws or rulings regarding Listings (e.g., 
no solicitation requirements in the states of Arizona and Oregon, 
privacy requirements in Colorado), and for supplying USW with the 
applicable Listing information. 
RESELLER is responsible for all dealings with, and on behalf of, 
RESELLER’s end users, including: 

(C)2.13.1 All end user account activity, (e.g. end user queries and 
complaints). 

(C)2.13.2 All account maintenance activity, (e.g., additions, 
changes, issuance of orders for Listings to USW). 
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(C)2.13.3 Determining privacy requirements and accurately coding 
the privacy indicators for RESELLER’s end user 
information. If end user information provided by 
RESELLER to USW does not contaika privacy indicator, 
no privacy restrictions will apply. 
Any additional services requested by RESELLER’s end 
users. 

(C)2.13.4 
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PART D- MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

(D)I. Network Security 
(D)1.1 Protection of Service and Property - Each Party shall exercise the same degree of 

care to prevent harm or damage to the other Party and any third parties, its 
employees, agents or end users, or their property as it employs to protect its own 
personnel, end users and property, etc. Each Party shall comply at all times with 
USW security and safety procedures and requirements. 

(D)1.2 Revenue Protection - USW shall make available to RESELLER all present and 
future fraud prevention or revenue protection features. These features include, but 
are not limited to screening codes, and 900 numbers. 

(D)1.3.Law Enforcement Interface - USW provides emergency assistance to 91 1 centers 
and law enforcement agencies seven (7) days a week/twenty-four (24) hours a 
day. Assistance includes, but is not limited to release of 91 1 trace and subscriber 
information; in-progress trace requests; establishing emergency trace equipment, 
release of information from an emergency trap/trace or *57 trace; requests for 
emergency subscriber information; assistance to law enforcement agencies in 
hostage/barricade situations, kidnappings, bomb threats, extortion/scams, 
runaways and life threats. 

(D)1.4 USW provides traphrace, pen register and Title Ill assistance directly to law 
enforcement, if such assistance is directed by a court order. This service is 
provided during normal business hours, Monday through Friday. Exceptions are 
addressed in the above paragraph. The charges for these services will be billed 
directly to the law enforcement agency, without involvement of RESELLER, for any 
lines served from USW Wire Centers or cross boxes. 

(D)1.5 In all cases involving telephone lines served from USW Wire Centers or cross 
boxes, USW will perform trap/trace Title Ill and pen register assistance directly 
with law enforcement. RESELLER will not be involved or notified of such actions, 
due to non-disclosure court order considerations, as well as timely response duties 
when law enforcement agencies are involved. Exceptions to the above will be 
those cases, as yet undetermined, where RESELLER must participate due to 
technical reasons wherein its circuitry must be accessed or modified to comply 
with law enforcement, or for legal reasons that may evolve over time. RESELLER 
will provide USW with a 24 hour a day, 7 days a week contact for processing such 
requests, should they occur. 

(D)2. Access To Operational Support Systems (OSS) 
(D)2.1 Description 

(D) 2.1.1 USW has developed and shall continue to provide Operational 
Support Systems OSS interfaces using electronic gateways. These 
gateways act as a mediation or control point between RESELLER’s 

January 17,2000/cW/essential.com, inc. - Your Energy & Communications Superstore 
CDSM)O1117-0037/dp2.3resaieaz.doc 

Page 31 

http://17,2000/cW/essential.com


Part D 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

and USWs OSS. These gateways provide security for the interfaces, 
protecting the integrity of the USW OSS and its databases. USWs 
OSS interfaces have been developed to support Pre-ordering, 
Ordering and Provisioning, Maintenance and Repair and Billing. 
Included below is a description of the products and functions 
supported by USW OSS interfaces and the technology used by each. 
This section describes the interfaces that USW has developed and 
shall provide RESELLER. Additional technical information and details 
shall be provided by USW in training sessions and documentation, 
such as the ”Interconnect Mediated Access User’s Guide”. USW will 
continue to make improvements to the electronic interfaces as 
technology evolves, providing notification to RESELLER consistent 
with the provisions of this Section. 
Through its electronic gateways, USW shall provide RESELLER 
nondiscriminatory access to USWs operational support systems for 
pre-ordering, ordering and provisioning, maintenance and repair, 
and billing for resale. For the pre-ordering, ordering and 
provisioning of resold services, USW shall provide RESELLER 
access to its OSS in substantially the same time and manner as it 
Movides to itself. 

(D)2.1.2 

(D)2.2 OSS Support for Pre-Ordering, Ordering and Provisioning 

(D)2.2.1 LSR (Local Service Request) Ordering Process 

(D)2.2.1 .I RESELLER shall use electronic interfaces for orders 
placed using the LSR Ordering Process for the services 
it supports. The electronic interface gateways include 
both the Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) interface and 
the Interconnect Mediated Access (IMA) Graphical User 
Interface (GUI). 

(D)2.2.1.2 The ED1 interface provides a single interface for Pre- 
Order and Order transactions from RESELLER to USW 
and is transaction based rather than batch based. The 
interface standards for ED1 are based upon the Order & 
Billing Forum (OBF) Local Service Order Guidelines 
(LSOG), the Telecommunication industry Forum (TCIF) 
Customer Service Guideline and the American National 
Standards Institute/Accredited Standards Committee 
(ANSI ASC) XI2 with exceptions as specified in the IMA 
and ED1 disclosure documents which are provided in 
conjunction with the implementation responsibilities 
contained in this Section. 
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(D)2.2.1.3 

(D)2.2.1.4 

Part D 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

The IMA GUI also provides a single interface for Pre- 
Order and Order transactions from RESELLER to USW 
and is browser based The IMA GUI interface is based on 
the LSOG and utilizes a WEB standard technology, 
Hyper Text Markup Language (HTML), JAVA, and the 
Transmission Control Protocol/lnternet Protocol (TCPAP) 
to transmit messages. 

Functions 

(D)2.2.1.4.1 Pre-ordering 

Pre-Ordering refers to the set of activities 
performed in conjunction with placing an order. 
Pre-order consists of the following functions: 
validate address, service availability, review 
Customer Service Record (CSR), check facility 
availability, reserve telephone numbers, and 
schedule an appointment. The electronic 
interface gateways provide on-line capabilities to 
perform these functions. Not all functions apply 
to all products. 

(D)2.2.1.4.1.1 Validate address will verify the end user's 
address. 

(D)2.2.1.1.4.1.2 Service Availability will return the list 
of (1) POTS products and services available 
in the Central office switch serving a 
particular end user address, which will 
indicate to RESELLER, among other things, 
which products and services are authorized 
for resale in the Central Office switch serving 
a particular end user address and (2) non- 
switched-based products and services that 
RESELLER is authorized to provide 
according to its resale agreement with USW. 

(D)2.2.1.1.4.1.3 Review Customer Service Record 
(CSR) gives RESELLER the ability to request 
a display of local exchange services and 
features (CPNI) USW is currently providing to 
an end user. 
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(D)2.2.1.4.1.4 Check Facility Availability will provide an 
indication of whether existing facilities are 
available or if new facilities are required, and if a 
technician must be dispatcbed to provide the 
facilities requested at the end user's address. 
This transaction does not reserve facilities and 
does not guarantee that facilities will or will not be 
available when the order is submitted. 

(D)2.2.1.4.1.5 Reserve Telephone Numbers provides 
RESELLER with the ability to select an end user's 
telephone number. The reservation process is 
further divided into telephone number availability, 
selection, exchange and return functionality. 
Expiration period for selection and submission of 
Telephone Number are: 

0 A period up to thirty (30) minutes in 
which to make a telephone number 
selection. If this time limit is exceeded, 
and no attempt has been made to select 
the telephone numbers, the telephone 
numbers are sent back to the OSS and 
an error message is displayed on the 
LSR. A new query will need to be 
performed for available telephone 
numbers. 
When a telephone number has been 
reserved, there is a twenty-four (24) hour 
business period that the telephone 
number may be included on an LSR. If 
the time limit is exceeded, the telephone 
number is returned to the OSS. 

(D)2.2.1.4.1.6 Schedule Appointment allows RESELLER 
to retrieve a calendar of available appointments 
and to reserve an appointment date and time so 
that a technician can be dispatched for premises 
and/or non-premises work. 

(D)2.2.1.4.1.7 Expiration period for selection and 
submission of Appointment Reservation are: 

0 A selection must be made within a thirty 
(30) minute period. If an appointment 
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has been selected and the time limit 
was exceeded, an error message will 
display. If the error message displays, 
an updated list - of available 
appointments will need to be requested. 
If an appointment has already been 
reserved for this Purchase Order 
Number, the Appointment Confirmation 
window will be displayed and will be pre- 
populated with confirmation number, 
appointment date and time, and after 
and before times. 

0 Appointments are reserved for a 24- 
hour business period. If the 
appointment is not attached to a 
submitted order within 24 business 
hours, the appointment is returned. 
When the appointment is successfully 
reserved, confirmation of the 
appointment will be displayed to 
RESELLER. 

(D)2.2.1.4.2 Ordering and Provisioning 

Submitting an LSR will result in the provisioning 
and installation, if necessary, of an end user’s 
service. The functional set associated with 
ordering is: Create New LSR, Open LSR, Query 
LSR Status and FOC Return. 

(D)2.2.1.4.2.1 Create New LSR allows entry of 
information specific to the LSR, including required 
OBF forms, validates information and submits the 
LSR for processing. 

(D)2.2.1.4.2.2 Open LSR allows RESELLER to save 
LSRs it is not ready to submit for processing as a 
pending status. When’ an LSR is saved as 
pending, all the data in all the forms associated 
with the LSR is saved. This feature permits 
RESELLER to access, edit, submit, re-save, and 
purge pending LSRs. In addition, for issued 
LSRs, RESELLER can issue supplemental LSRs 
and cancellations. 

January 17,2000/cbd/essential.com, inc. - Your Energy & Communications Superstore 
CDS-OOOl 1 l7-0037/dp2.3resaleaz.doc 

Page 35 

http://17,2000/cbd/essential.com


Part D 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

(D)2.2.1.4.2.3 Query LSR Status allows RESELLER to 
obtain the status of the LSR. Status is provided 
to RESELLER upon inquiry. Order status 
functions include the following: Submitted, In 
Review, Issued, Rejected, Erred, Completed and 
Jeopardy. 

(D)2.2.1.4.2.4 FOC Return returns a Firm Order 
Confirmation to RESELLER. The FOC confirms 
that USW has received a SR, issued an order, 
and assigned an order number for tracking. 

(D)2.2.1.5 Forecast of Usage 

(D)2.2.1.5.1 RESELLER shall supply USW with a forecast of 
products and volumes they anticipate ordering 
through the electronic interface gateways on a 
quarterly basis. 

(D)2.2.1.5.2 USW will use RESELLER’s forecast to provide 
RESELLER sufficient capacity to provide the 
services and elements requested. If RESELLER 
exceeds its capacity without notification, to the 
extent that it causes degradation to other users’ 
response times, RESELLER’s use of its capacity 
on the IMA or ED1 server may be discontinued 
until a resolution can be mutually agreed to by 
both Parties. USW will attempt to notify 
RESELLER before discontinuing RESELLER’s 
use of the IMA or ED1 server; however USW 
reserves the right to discontinue use if it is unable 
to contact RESELLER. 

(D)2.2.1.5.3 When RESELLER requests more than twenty 
(20) Secure IDS from USW RESELLER shall use 
a T1 line instead of dial-up capabilities. 

(D)2.2.1.6. Access Service Request (ASR) Ordering Process 

(D)2.2.1.6.1 The Exchange Access Control and Tracking 
(EXACT) system may be used for orders placed 
using the ASR process. EXACT is based upon 
the OBF Access Service Order Guidelines 
(ASOG). The EXACT interface accepts a batch 
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file that is transmitted via a Network Data Mover 
(NDM) connection to USW from RESELLER. It is 
RESELLER's responsibility to obtain the 
appropriate software to interface with USWs 
EXACT system. 

(D)2.2.1.7 Facility Based ED1 Listing Process 
(D)2.2.1.7.1 The Facility Based ED1 Listing Process is a 

single interface from RESELLER to USW. This 
interface is based upon the OBF LSOG and 
ANSI ASC X12 standards, version 4010. This 
interface enables RESELLER listing data to be 
translated and passed into the USW listing 
database. After USWs daily batch processing, 
a Confirmation/Completion record (for every 
PON provided on input) is returned to 
RESELLER via an ED1 855 transaction. 

(D)2.2.2 Maintenance and Repair 

(812.2.2.1 Maintenance and Repair electronic interfaces support 
the tracking and resolution of end users' repair and 
maintenance needs as reported to RESELLER. They 
facilitate the exchange of updated information and 
progress reports between USW and RESELLER while 
the Trouble Report (TR) is open and a USW technician 
is working on the resolution. 

(D)2.2.2.2 RESELLER shall use the electronic interface gateways 
for reporting trouble. The electronic interface gateways 
are comprised of either the Mediated Access System 
Electronic Bonding (MEDIACC EB) interface or the IMA 
GUI interface. 

(D)2.2.2.3 The MEDIACC Electronic Bonding (EB) interface uses 
CMlP protocol over X.25 packet switching network using 
ANS T1 M I  .5 227/228 standards. 

(D)2.2.2.4 The IMA GUI also provides a single interface for trouble 
reporting from RESELLER to * USW and is browser 
based. The IMA GUI interface uses a Berkley Socket 
interface using ANSI TIM1.5'227/228 standards. The 
IMA GUI uses JAVA as the standard. The IMA GUI 
Interface currently supports trouble reporting for resale 
services. 

(D)2.2.2.5 Functions 
January 17, 2000/cbd/essential.com, inc. - Your Energy B Communications Superstore 
CDSM)oIl17-0037/dp2.3resaleaz.doc 

Page 37 



Part D 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

(D)2.2.2.5.1 Maintenance and Repair - The functions, 
processes and systems used in repair are based 
on a Trouble Report (TR), which is an electronic 
document maintained in one 8r more OSS. A TR 
contains information about the end user, the 
trouble, the status of the work on the trouble and 
the results of the investigation and resolution 
efforts. These business processes will be made 
available to RESELLER in the following functional 
set: open a trouble report, modify a trouble 
report, notification of status change, view trouble 
report status, cancel a trouble report, receive a 
trouble report history, resubmiudelete an erred 
trouble report and close a trouble report. 

(D)2.2.2.5.1.1 Open Trouble Report is the 
mechanism that captures information needed to 
resolve the trouble. Once a 1R has been 
opened, if RESELLER is using MEDIACC EB, 
USW sends an electronic transaction to 
RESELLER identifying information about the TR 
(e.g., commitment date and tracking number). 

(D)2.2 2.5.1.2 In IMA for POTS, and in EBTA for 
POTS and designed services, Modify Trouble 
Report allows RESELLER to modify the trouble 
severity (for example; change from "service 
affecting" to "out of service") and trouble narrative 
on a TR until it has been cleared. 

(D)2.2.2.5.1.3 Status Change Notification provides 
notification to RESELLER that the status of a 
previously opened TR has changed. If 
RESELLER is using MEDIACC EB, RESELLER 
will receive this notification via an electronic 
transaction. If RESELLER is using the IMA GUI 
Interface, RESELLER will receive this notification 
via email and/or fax. 

(D)2.2.2.5.1.4 View Trouble Report Statusllrouble 
Report Status Request allows RESELLER to 
view the status of an opened Trouble Report. If 
RESELLER is using MEDIACC EB, USW sends 
an electronic transaction to RESELLER with the 
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status of an opened TR after RESELLER sends 
an electronic transaction to request the status. 

(D)2.2.2.5.1.5 Cancel Trouble Report allows 
RESELLER to request cancellation of a 
previously opened TR. Once a request to cancel 
is received, an orderly cessation of the trouble 
resolution process begins. If USW has 
completed any work before the trouble resolution 
process is stopped, charges to RESELLER may 
apply. 

(D)2.2.2.5.1.6 Trouble Report History provides 
RESELLER with historical information on up to 
the last three trouble reports. For POTS resale, 
the disposition and trouble report date and time 
are provided. For design services resale, the 
trouble report date and time, a text description of 
the disposition, the USW Trouble Report Number, 
and the trouble type are provided. IMA provides 
trouble report history. 

(D)2.2.2.5.1.7 ResubmiUDelete allows trouble 
reports to be resubmitted or deleted via IMA GUI 
if, prior to entering USWs OSS, the transaction 
fails or errors. This transaction is only valid if the 
TR has not entered USWs OSS. This 
transaction is currently only available via IMA 
GUI. 

(D)2.2.5.1.8 Close a Trouble Report for resale, allows USW to 
close the TR once work is complete. For design 
resale services, USW sends RESELLER a 
request for verification to close. RESELLER then 
authorizes or denies the closure. RESELLER 
has twenty-four (24) hours to respond. If a 
response is not received within that time frame, 
the TR wilt automatiwily be closed. USW 
provides notification to RESELLER that a TR has 
been closed because the trouble was resolved. 
Additional information, (e.g., disposition, 
disposition description, outage duration, 
maintenance of service, charge indicator) is also 
included. If RESELLER is using EB, RESELLER 
will receive this response via an electronic 
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Function 
IMA Pre-Order & Order 
Exact Order 
Repair 

transaction. If RESELLER is using the IMA GUI 
Interface, RESELLER will receive this response 
via email and/or fax. 

(D)2.2.2.5.1.9 MLT test results give RESELLER the ability to 
request a loop test for POTS service via EBTA. 
When RESELLER submits a TR through IMA, the 
technician handling the TR will order a MLT test 
in appropriate situations. 

Monday - Friday Saturday Sunday 
06:OO - 20100 
06100 - 19:OO 
02% - 23115 07100 - 21100 13100 - 17:OO 

07:OO - 17:OO 

(D)2.3 Hours of Operation 

USWs electronic interface gateways will be available to Resellers according to the 
following schedule: 

USW shall notify Resellers regarding system downtime through mass facsimile 
distribution and pop-up windows in the IMA GUI. All referenced times are 
Mountain Time. 

The preceding times represent the period when USW commits that its OSS 
interfaces and downstream systems will be functioning (except for unforeseen 
system crashes) and its personnel will be available to assist RESELLER. USWs 
OSS interfaces are typically available 23 hours a day. RESELLER may call any 
maintenance and repair issues to the applicable repair center 24 hours per day, 
seven days per week. USW shall provide RESELLER current repair contact 
numbers. 

(D)2.4 Billing 

(D)2.4.1 For products billed out of the USW lnterexchange Access Billing 
System (IABS), USW will utilize the existing CABS/BOS format and 
technology for the transmission of bills. 

For products billed out of the USW Customer Record Information System 
(CRIS), USW will utilize the existing ED1 standard for the transmission 
of monthly local billing information. ED1 is an established standard 
under the auspices of the American National Standards 
InstituteIAccredited Standards Committee (ANSVASC) X12 
Committee. A proper subset of this speci'fication has been adopted 
by the Telecommunications Industry Forum (TCIF) as the "811 
Guidelines" specifically for the purposes of telecommunications 
billing. 

(D)2.4.2 
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Category 11 
SAGIFAM 

(D)2.5 Outputs 

Facility Based Line Usage Information 
Street Address/Facility Availability Information 

Output information will be provided to RESELLER in the form of bills, files, and 
reports. Bills will capture all regular monthly and incrementalkrsage charges and 
present them in a summarized format. The files and reports delivered to 
RESELLER provide more detailed information than the bills. They come in the 
following categories: 

I Usaae Record File I Line Usaae Information 1 
I Loss and Comdetion I Order Information 1 

(D)2.5.1 Bills 
(D)2.5.1.1 CRIS Summary Bill - The CRlS (Customer Record 

Information System) Summary Bill represents a monthly 
summary of charges for most wholesale products sold by 
USW. This bill includes a total of all charges by entity 
plus a summary of current charges and adjustments on 
each sub-account. Individual sub-accounts are provided 
as billing detail and contain monthly, one time charges 
and incremental/call detail information. The Summary 
provides one bill and one payment document for 
RESELLER. These bills are segmented by state and bill 
cycle. The number of bills received by RESELLER is 
dictated by the product ordered and the USW region in 
which RESELLER is operating. 

(D)2.5.1.2 IABS Bill - The IABS (Interexchange Access Billing 
System) Bill represents a monthly summary of charges. 
This bill includes monthly and one time charges plus a 
summary of any usage charges. These bills are 
segmented by product, LATA, billing account number 
(BAN) and bill cycle. 

(D)2.5.2 Files and Reports 

(D)2.5.2.1 Daily Usage Record File provide3 the accumulated set of 
call information for a given day as captured, or 
“recorded” by the network switches. This file will be 
transmitted Monday through Friday, excluding USW 
holidays. This information is a file of un-rated USW 
originated usage messages and rated RESELLER 
originated usage messages. It. is provided in Alliance for 
Telecommunication Industry Solution (ATIS) standard 
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Electronic Message Interface (EMI) format. This EM1 
format is outlined in the document SR-320; which can be 
obtained directly from ATIS. The Daily Usage Record 
File contains multi-state data for the Data Processing 
Center generating this information. Individual state 
identification information is contained with the message 
detail. USW will provide this data to RESELLER with the 
same level of precision and accuracy it provides itself. 
This file will be provided for Resale services. 

(D)2.5.2.2 

(D)2.5.2.3 

The charge for this Daily Usage Record File is contained 
in Part E of this Agreement. 
Routing of in-region IntraLATA Collect, Calling Card, and 
Third Number Billed Messages - USW will distribute in- 
region intraLATA collect, calling card, and third number 
billed messages to RESELLER and exchange with other 
Co-Providers operating in region in a manner consistent 
with existing inter-company processing agreements. 
Whenever the daily usage information is transmitted to a 
carrier, it will contain these records for these types of 
calls as well. 

Loss Report provides RESELLER with a daily report that 
contains a list of accounts that have had lines and/or 
services disconnected. This may indicate that the end 
user has changed Resellers or removed services from 
an existing account. This report also details the order 
number, service name and address, and date this 
change was made. Individual reports will be provided for 
resale services.: 

(D)2.5.2.4 

(D)2.5.2.5 Completion Report provides RESELLER with a daily 
report. This report is used to advise RESELLER that the 
order(s) for the service(s) requested is complete. It 
details the order number, service name and address and 
date this change was completed. Individual reports will 
be provided for resale services.: 

This report media is described in’Exhibit C. 

(D)2.5.2.6 Category 11 Records are Exchange Message Records 
(EMR) which provide mechanized record formats that 
can be used to exchange access usage information 
between USW and RESELLER. Category 1101 series 
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records are used to exchange detailed access usage 
information. 

(D)2.5.2.7 Category 1150 series records are used to exchange 
summarized Meet Point Billed access’ minutes-of-use. 

These mechanized records are available from USW in 
the following formats: 

NDM (direct connect or dial-up) 
Comet 
Tape 
Cartridge 

(D)2.5.2.8 SAG/FAM Files - The SAG (Street Address Guide)/ FAM 
(Facility Availability Matrix) files contain the following 
information: 

SAG provides: - Address and Serving Central Office 
Information. 

FAM provides USOCs and descriptions by state - (POTS 
services only). USOC availability by NPA-NXX (with the 
exception of Centrex). interLATAlintraLATA carriers by 
NPA-NXX. 

These files are made available via a download process. 
They can be retrieved by ftp (file transfer protocol), NDM 
(Network Data Mover) connectivity, or a Web browser. 

(D)2.6 Modifications to OSS Interfaces 

(D)2.6.1 RESELLER and USW agree to discuss the modification of OSS 
interfaces based upon evolving standards (e.g., data elements, 
protocols, transport networks, etc.) and guidelines issued by or 
referenced by relevant Alliance for Telecommunication Industry 
Solution (ATIS) committees. Establishment of new, or changes to 
industry standards and guidelines will be reviewed semi-annually. The 
review will consider standards and guidelines that have reached final 
closure as well as those published in final form. Both Parties agree to 
evaluate evolving standards and determine the relevant modification to 
be implemented based upon the latest approved version adopted or the 
latest version reflecting final closure by the relevant ATIS committee or 
subcommittee. As a result of the review, USW shall draft appropriate 
interface specifications that shall be made available to RESELLER 
through the electronic gateway disclosure document. Changes shall be 
implemented in the next release after the distribution of the electronic 
gateway disclosure document to the Resellers. 
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(D)2.6.2 

(D)2.6.3 

In the course of establishing operational ready system interfaces 
between USW and RESELLER to support local service delivery, 
RESELLER and USW may need to define and implement system 
interface specifications that are supplemental to -existing standards. 
RESELLER and USW will submit such specifications to the appropriate 
standards committee and will work towards their acceptance as a 
standard. 

Release updates will be based on regulatory obligations as dictated by 
the FCC or Commissions and, as time permits, business requirements. 
USW will provide to RESELLER the features list for modifications to the 
interface. Specifications for interface modifications will be provided to 
RESELLER three (3) weeks prior to the release date. RESELLER is 
required to upgrade to the current release within six (6) months of the 
installation date. 

(D)2.7 Reseller Responsibilities for Implementation of OSS Interfaces 

(D)2.7.1 Before any RESELLER implementation can begin, RESELLER must 
completely and accurately answer the New Customer Questionnaire. 
This questionnaire is provided by the USW account manager and 
details information needed by USW in order to establish service for 
RESELLER. 

’ 

(D)2.7.2 Once USW receives a complete and accurate New Customer 
Questionnaire, USW and RESELLER will mutually agree upon time 
frames for RESELLER implementation. 

If using the ED1 interfaces, USW will provide RESELLER with a copy 
of the Production Readiness Verification document. RESELLER is 
obligated to meet the requirements specified in the Production 
Readiness Verification document regardless of whether RESELLER 
chooses to participate in the Production Readiness Verification Test. 

(D)2.7.3 

(D)2.8 Reseller Responsibilities for Ongoing Support for OSS Interfaces 

(D)2.8.1 If using the IMA GUI interface, RESELLER must work with USW to 
train RESELLER personnel on the IMA GUI functions that RESELLER 
will be using. USW and RESELLER shall concur on which IMA GUI 
functions should be included in RESELLER’S training. USW and 
RESELLER shall make reasonable efforts to schedule training in a 
timely fashion. 

An exchange protocol will be used to transport ED1 formatted content. 
RESELLER must perform certification testing of exchange protocol 
prior to using EDI. 

(D)2.8.2 
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(Q2.8.3 If RESELLER is using EDI, USW shall provide RESELLER with a pre- 
allotted amount of time to complete certification of its business 
scenarios. It is the sole responsibility of RESELLER to schedule an 
appointment with USW for certification of its Business scenarios. 
RESELLER must comply with the agreed upon dates and times 
scheduled for the certification of its business scenarios. If the 
certification of business scenarios is delayed due to RESELLER, it is 
the sole responsibility of RESELLER to schedule new appointments 
for certification of its business scenarios. Conflicts in the schedule 
could result in certification being delayed. If a delay is due to USW, 
USW will honor RESELLER’s schedule through the use of alternative 
hours. 

(D)2.8.4 If RESELLER is using the ED1 interface, RESELLER must work with 
USW to certify the business scenarios that RESELLER will be using 
in order to ensure successful transaction processing. USW and 
RESELLER shall mutually agree to the business scenarios for which 
RESELLER is required to be certified. Certification is granted only for 
a specific release of EDI. New releases of ED1 may require re- 
certification of some or all business scenarios. A determination as to 
the need for re-certification will be made by the USW Coordinator in 
conjunction with the release manager of each ED1 release. Notice of 
the need for re-certification will be provided to RESELLER three (3) 
weeks prior to the release date. 
In the event of Electronic Interface trouble, RESELLER shall use its 
best efforts to isolate and resolve the trouble using the guidelines 
provided in the Production Readiness Verification document. If 
RESELLER cannot resolve the problem, then RESELLER should 
contact the LSP Systems Help Desk. The LSP Systems Help Desk is 
RESELLER’s Single Point of Contact for electronic interface trouble. 

(0)2.8.5 

(D)2.9 Reseller Support 

(D)2.9.1 USW shall provide adequate assistance to RESELLER for 
RESELLER to understand how to implement and use the OSS 
functions for which USW provides access. This assistance will 
include training, documentation, and a LSP Help Desk. The LSP 
Help Desk will provide a single point of entry for RESELLER to gain 
assistance in areas involving connectivity, system availability, and file 
outputs. The LSP Systems Help Desk is ,available Monday through 
Friday, 6:OO a.m. until 8:OO p.m. Mountain Time, excluding USW 
holidays. The Help Desk areas are further described below.. 

(D)2.9.1.1 Connectivity covers trouble with RESELLER’s access to 
the USW system for hardware configuration 
requirements with relevance to ED1 and IMA GUI; 
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software configuration requirements with relevance to 
ED1 and IMA GUI; modem configuration requirements; 
T1 configuration and dial in string requirements; firewall 
access configuration; Secure ID configuration; Profile 
Setup and password verification. 

System availability covers system errors generated 
during an attempt by RESELLER to place orders or open 
trouble reports through ED1 and IMA GUI. These system 
errors are limited to: POTS; Design Services and 
Repair. 

(D)2.9.1.2 

(D)2.9.1.3 File Outputs covers RESELLER’s output files and 
reports produced from its usage and order activity. File 
outputs system errors are limited to: Daily Usage File; 
Loss / Completion File; IABS Bill; CRlS Summary Bill; 
Category 11 Report and SAGIFAM Reports. 

(D)2.9.2 Additional assistance to Resellers is available through various web 
sites. These web sites provide electronic interface training 
information and user documentation and technical specifications. 

(D)2.10 Compensation / Cost Recovery 

On-going and one-time startup charges, as applicable, will be billed at rates to be 
specified by the Commission at the completion of an appropriate cost docket 
hearing. USW shall establish rates for any systems charges not included in 
appropriate cost docket hearings. 

(D)3. U S WEST Dex 
USW and RESELLER agree that certain issues outside the provision of basic white page 
directory listings, such as yellow pages advertising, yellow pages listings, directory 
coverage, directory distribution, access to call guide pages (phone service pages), 
applicable listings criteria, white page enhancements and publication schedules will be the 
subject of negotiations between RESELLER and directory publishers, including 
U S  WEST Dex. USW acknowledges that RESELLER may request USW to facilitate 
discussions between RESELLER and U S WEST Dqx. 

(D)4. Notice Of Changes 
Notice should be written and provide pertinent descriptive information of such changes, 
within the limitations of confidentiality and disclosure, such $hat the other Party can 
evaluate potential effects. Also included with the written notice should be contact names 
and phone numbers for subsequent discussions. 

This represents good faith effort on the part of the Parties and will evolve over time as 
required for the effective provision of resale services and end user service delivery. 
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(D)5. Maintenance and Repair 

Service Levels 

(D)5.1.1 USW will provide repair and maintenance for all services covered by 
this Agreement in a manner equal to that which USW provides for 
itself. 

During the term of this Agreement, USW will provide necessary 
maintenance business process support to allow RESELLER to 
provide similar service quality to that provided by USW to its end 
users. 

USW will perform repair service that is equal in timeliness and quality 
to that which it provides to its own end users. 

.2 

.3 

(D)5.2 Branding 

(D)5.2.1 Should USW need to use various forms for communication with 
RESELLER end users (while out on premises dispatch on behalf of 
RESELLER, for exampie), USW will use unbranded forms. 
If required by RESELLER, USW will use branded forms provided at 
RESELLER's full expense, covering training costs, storage, printing, 
distribution and all other branding-related costs. 

The characteristics and methods of operation of any circuits, facilities 
or equipment of either Party connected with the services, facilities or 
equipment of the other Party pursuant to this Agreement shall not: 1) 
interfere with or impair service over any facilities of the other Party; its 
affiliated companies, or its connecting and concurring carriers 
involved in providing its services; 2) cause damage to their plant; 3) 
violate any applicable law or regulation regarding the invasion of 
privacy of any communications carried over the Party's facilities; or 4) 
create hazards to the employees of either Party or to the public. 
Each of these requirements is hereinafter referred to as an 
"Impairment of Service". 

(D)5.2.2 

- (D)5.3 Service interruptions 

(D) 5.3.1 

(D) 5.3.2 If it is confirmed that either Party is causing an Impairment of Service, 
as set forth in this Section, the Party whose network or service is 
being impaired (the "Impaired Party") shall promptly notify the Party 
causing the Impairment of Service (the "Impairing Party") of the 
nature and location of the problem. The Impaired Party shall advise 
the Impairing Party that, unless promptly rectified, a temporary 
discontinuance of the use of any circuit, facility or equipment may be 
required. The Impairing Party and the Impaired Party agree to work 
together to attempt to promptly resolve the Impairment of Service. If 
the Impairing Party is unable to promptly remedy the Impairment of 
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Service, the Impaired Party may temporarily discontinue use of the 
affected circuit, facility or equipment. 

To facilitate trouble reporting and to coordinate the repair of the 
service provided by each Party to the other under this Agreement, 
each Party shall designate a repair center for such service. 

Each Party shall furnish a trouble reporting telephone number for the 
designated repair center. This number shall give access to the 
location where records are normally located and where current status 
reports on any trouble reports are readily available. If necessary, 
alternative out-of-hours procedures shall be established to ensure 
access to a location that is staffed and has the authority to initiate 
corrective action. 
Before either Party reports a trouble condition, it shall use its best 
efforts to isolate the trouble to the other's facilities 
(D) 5.3.5.1 In cases where a trouble condition affects a significant 

portion of the other's service, the Parties shall assign 
the same priority provided to other Resellers and to 
itself. 

(D) 5.3.3 

(D) 5.3.4 

(D) 5.3.5 

(D) 5.3.5.2 The Parties shall cooperate in isolating trouble 
conditions. 

(D)5.4 Trouble Isolation 
(D)5.4.1 According to applicable state Tariffs, USW will bill appropriate Trouble 

Isolation Charges for dispatched work done by USW where the 
trouble is found to be on the end user's side of the NID or trouble is 
found to be in RESELLER's portion of the network. 

(D)5.4.2 Other Trouble Isolation Charges may also be imposed by USW on 
RESELLER for other internal repair work incurred on behalf of 
RESELLER and later found to be in RESELLER network 
components. 

(D)5.5 Inside Wire Maintenance 

Except where specifically required by state or federal regulatory mandates, USW 
will not perform any maintenance of inside wire (premises wiring beyond the end 
user's NID) for RESELLER or its end users. 

(D)5.6 Testingmest Requests/Coordinated Testing 
(D)5.6.1 USW will make the decision to test an end user's line or circuit. The 

test systems used by USW are finite, and their capacity has been 
designed according to USWs operating standards. 

January 17,20001cW/essential.com. inc. - Your Energy 8 Communications Supentore 
CDs-oOo1117-0037/dp2.3resaleaz.doc 

Page 48 

http://17,20001cW/essential.com


Part D 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

(D)5.6.2 Although some types of trouble reports typically will not require a test, 
USW usually runs certain standard tests on each line on which 
trouble has been reported. 

Prior to any test being conducted on a line, USW must receive a 
trouble report from RESELLER. 
USW end users are not given test results. On manually-reported 
trouble USW will not provide to RESELLER the test results for its 
trouble reports. For electronically-reported trouble, RESELLER may 
see various basic test results. 

USW and RESELLER shall work cooperatively to develop positive, 
close working relationships among corresponding work centers 
involved in the trouble resolution processes.. 

(D)5.6.3 

(D)5.6.4 

(D)5.7 Workcenter Interfaces 
(D)5.7.1 

(D)5.8 Misdirected Repair Calls 
(D)5.8.1 

(D)5.8.2 

RESELLER shall inform its own end users where to report their 
trouble conditions. Persons placing a misdirected repair call will be 
advised to call their own telephone service provider and will be 
provided the correct telephone number for that purpose (this referral 
may occur within a voice response system or other interactive 
systems). 
RESELLER and USW will employ the following procedures for 
handling misdirected repair calls; 

(D)5.8.2.1 RESELLER and USW will provide their respective end 
users with the correct telephone numbers to call for 
access to their respective repair bureaus. 

(D)5.8.2.2 End users of RESELLER shall be instructed to report all 
cases of trouble to RESELLER. End users of USW shall 
be instructed to report all cases of trouble to USW. 

(D)5.8.2.3 To the extent the correct provider can be determined, 
misdirected repair calls will be referred to the proper 
provider of Basic Exchange Telecommunications 
Service. 

(D)5.8.2.4 RESELLER and USW will provide their respective repair 
contact numbers to one another on a reciprocal basis. 

(D)5.8.2.5 In responding to repair calls, neither Party shall make 
disparaging remarks about each other, nor shall they use 
these repair calls as the basis for internal referrals or to 
solicit end users to market services. 
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(D)5.8.2.6 Performance targets for speed of repair call answering 
will be the same as USWs performance targets for its 
own end users. 

(D)5.9 Major Outages/RestoraI/Notification 

(D)5.9.1 USW will notify RESELLER of major network outages as soon as is 
practical. This notification will be via e-mail to RESELLER's identified 
contact. With the minor exception of certain proprietary information, 
USW will utilize the same thresholds and processes for external 
notification as it does for internal purposes. This major outage 
information will be sent via E-mail on the same frequency schedule as 
is provided internally within USW. Service restoration will be non- 
discriminatory, and will be accomplished as quickly as possible 
according to USW and/or industry standards. 
If desired, USW will meet with associated personnel from RESELLER 
to share contact information and review USWs outage restoral 
processes and notification processes. 
USWs emergency restoration process operates on a 7x24 basis. 

(D)5.10 Proactive Maintenance 
USW will perform scheduled maintenance equal in quality to what it 
provides to itself. 
USW will work cooperatively with RESELLER to develop industry- 
wide processes to provide as much notice as possible to RESELLER 
of pending maintenance activity. Such process work will include 
establishment of reasonable thresholds and notification standards. 

(D)5.9.2 

(D)5.9.3 

(D)5.10.1 

(D)5.10.2 

(D)5.11 Hours of Coverage 
(D)5.11.1 USWs repair operation is 7 days a week, 24 hours a day. Not all 

functions or locations are covered with scheduled employees on a 
7x24 basis. Where such 7x24 coverage is not available USWs 
repair operations center (always available 7x24) can call-out 
technicians or other personnel required for the situation. 

(D)5.12 Escalations 
(D)5.12.1 USW will provide trouble escalation procedures to RESELLER. Such 

procedures will be based on the processes USW employs for its own 
end users. USW escalations are manual processes. 

USW repair escalations begin with calls to the up-front trouble 
reporting centers. 

(D)5.12.2 

(D)5.13 Dispatch 

(D)5.13.1 USW will provide maintenance dispatch personnel on the same 
schedule provided for its end users. 
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(D)5.13.2 Upon receipt of a trouble report from RESELLER, USW will do all that 
is reasonable and practical, according to internal and industry 
standards, to resolve the repair condition. USW will dispatch repair 
personnel, if necessary, to repair the condition.- It will be USWs 
decision whether it is necessary to send a technician on a dispatch. 
USW will make this dispatch decision based on the best information 
available in the trouble resolution process. Since it is not always 
necessary to dispatch to resolve trouble; should RESELLER require a 
dispatch when USW believes the dispatch is not necessary, 
appropriate charges may be billed to RESELLER for dispatch-related 
costs. 
For non-designed resale services USW will not request authorization 
from RESELLER prior to dispatch. For lines supported by USWs 
designed services process, USW may accept RESELLER 
authorization to dispatch. USWs operational processes are regularly 
reviewed and may be altered in the future. Should processes be 
changed, RESELLER will be notified. 

(D)5.13.4 USW expects that RESELLER will have performed appropriate 
trouble isolation and screening prior to handing the trouble report off 
to u s w .  

(D)5.14 Electronic Reporting 

(D)5.13.3 

(D)5.14.1 USW will accept repair reports from RESELLER through a 
mechanized system (IMA). 

(D)5.14.2 

(D)5.15 Intervals 

(D)5.15.1 

USW will work cooperatively to develop repair reporting via electronic 
bonding (other than IMA), based on national standards. 

Similar trouble conditions, whether reported by USW end users or on 
behalf of RESELLER end users, will receive similar commitment 
intervals. 

Notification will be given as soon as USW is aware that a trouble 
report interval is likely to be missed. This process will be the same as 
that used by USW for its own end users. 

(D)5.16 Jeopardy Management 

(D)5.16.1 

(D)5.17 Trouble Screening 

(D)5.17.1 RESELLER shall screen and test its end user trouble reports 
completely enough to insure that it sends USW only trouble reports 
that involve USW facilities. 
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(D)5.17.2 If-desired, USW will cooperate with RESELLER to show RESELLER 
how USW screens trouble conditions in its own centers, so that 
RESELLER may employ similar techniques in its centers. 

(D)5.18.1 USW will cooperate with RESELLER to meet the maintenance 
standards outlined in this Agreement. 

(D)5.18.2 For manually-reported trouble, USW will inform RESELLER of repair 
completion as soon as practical after completion. On electronically 
reported trouble reports the electronic system will automatically 
update status information, including trouble completion, across the 
joint electronic gateway. 

RESELLER will be responsible for all interactions with its end users 
including service call handling and notifying end users of trouble 
status and resolution. 

(D)5.18 Maintenance Standards 

(D)5.19 End User Interfaces 

(D)5.19.1 

(D)5.19.2 All USW employees who perform repair service for RESELLER end 
users will be trained in nondiscriminatory behavior. 

(D)5.20 Repair Call Handling 
(D)5.20.1 Manually-reported repair calls by RESELLER to USW will be 

answered with the same quality and speed USW answers calls from 
its own end users. 

(D)5.21 Single Point of Contact 
(D)5.21.1 USW will provide a single point of contact for RESELLER to report 

maintenance issues and trouble reports via electronic interfaces 
seven days a week, twenty-four hours a day. 
For manually-reported trouble reports, a single 7x24 trouble reporting 
telephone number will be provided to RESELLER for each category of 
trouble situation encountered. 

(D)5.21.2 

(D)5.22 Maintenance Windows 

(D)5.22.1 Generally, USW performs major switch maintenance activities during 
off-hours time periods, during certain "maintenance windows" in the 
early morning hours and/or on weekends. 

(D)5.22.2 Generally, the maintenance window is from 1O:OO PM to 6:OO AM 
Monday through Friday and from 1O:OO PM Saturday to 6:OO AM 
Monday. 

(D)5.22.3 Although USW attempts to perform major switch maintenance at 
these times, on some occasions this will not be possible. 
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(D)6. Service Performance 

(D)6.1 General Provisions 
(D)6.1.1 

(D)6.1.2 

USW will provide reports of service indicators tbat will assist in an 
evaluation of the service provided to RESELLER. 
In no instance shall this Agreement be construed to require USW to 
provide superior levels of service to RESELLER in comparison to the 
level of service USW provides to itself or its own end users. 

(D)6.1.3 As further specified in this Section, USW will provide results for the 
list of performance indicators identified for the following Standard 
Service Groupings: Resold Residential Plain Old Telephone Service 
(POTS); Resold Business POTS; Resold ISDN; Resold Centrex 
service; Resold PBX trunks, Resold Direct Inward Dialing (DID) and 
Resold Digital Switched Service (DSS); Resold DS-0, Resold DS-1, 
Resold DS-3. 

following types of Orders: 
(D)6.1.4 As specified in this Section, USW will provide results for the 

C = Change in existing service or billing number 
D = total disconnect of service 
F = From the outward service associated with a transfer (To or 
"T") of service from one address to another 
N = New connection for service 
R = Record order; record change only. (For Resale services, 
service migrations without changes for non-designed services are 
record orders.) 
T = To or transfer of service from one address to another 
X = USW initiated internal work order 

(D)6.2 Service Performance Indicators 
The following Service Performance Indicators will be provided to RESELLER 
when available and upon request, but no more frequently than once per month 
subject to the provisions of this Section. The requests for additional Service 
Performance Indicators during the term of this Agreement shall be considered by 
USW. However, USW is not required to provide additional Service Performance 
Indicators during the term of this Agreement. Service Performance Indicators 
characterized as "Core" indicators measure most directly the service or process 
outcome USW provides to RESELLER. 
Performance Indicators characterized as "Diagnostic", indicators are those that 
measure aspects of service quality that support aspects measured by core 
indicators, that represent sub-process outcomes, or that are otherwise duplicative 
to some degree of aspects measured by "Core" indicators. 

January 17.2000/cW/essential.com. inc. - Your Energy & Communications Superstore 
CDS-00011 l7-0037/dp2.3resaleaz.doc 

Page 53 

http://17.2000/cW/essential.com


Part D 
Miscellaneous Provisions 

(D)6.2.1 Core Performance Indicators 

GA-1 Gateway Availability - via Human-to-.Computer Interface 
(percent). 

GA-2 Gateway Availability - via Computer-to-Computer 
Interface (percent). 

(D)6.2.1.1 Gateway Availability Indicator 

(D)6.2.1.2 Pre-Ordering Indicators 
PO-I Pre-Order10rder Response times 

A. Appointment Scheduling (Due Date Reservation, 
where appointment is required) 

B. Feature Function and Service Availability 
Information 

C. Facility Availability 
D. Street Address Validation 
E. Customer Service Records 
F. Telephone Number 

(D)6.2.1.3 Ordering and Provisioning Indicators 
D P - I  Speed of Answer - Interconnect Provisioning Center 

(average) 
OP-2 Calls Answered within 20 Seconds - Interconnect 

Provisioning Center (percent) 
OP-3 Installation Commitments Met (percent) 
OP-4 Installation Interval (average) 
OP-5 Installation Trouble Reports (percent)l 
OP-6 Delayed Days (average) 

(D)6.2.1.4 Maintenance and Repair Indicators 
MR-1 
MR-2 

MR-3 

MR-4 

MR-5 

MR-6 

MR-7 
MR-8 Trouble Rate (percent) 

Speed of Answer - Interconnect Repair Center (average) 
Percent Calls Answered Within 20 Seconds - Interconnect 
Repair Center (percent) 
Out of Service Cleared Within 24 hours - Non-Designed 
Repair Process (percent) 
All Troubles Cleared Within 48 hours - Non-Designed 
Repair Process (percent) 
All Troubles Cleared Within 4 hours - Designed Repair 
Process (percent) 
Mean Time to Restore - Non-Designed Repair Process 
(average) 
Repair Repeat Report Rate (percent) 
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(D)6.2.1.5 Billing Indicators 
BI-1 

61-2 Mean Time to Deliver Invoices (average)BI-3 Billing 

Mean Time to Provide USW Recorded Usage Records 
((average) 

Accuracy 
(D)6.2.1.6 Emergency Services 

ES-1 ALI Database Updates Completed Within 24 hours 
(percent) 

ES-2 91 1/E911 Emergency Services Trunk Installation Interval 
(average) 

(D)6.2.1.7 Directory Assistance 

DA-1 
DA-2 Calls Answered Within Ten Seconds - Directory 

Speed of Answer - Directory Assistance (average) 

Assistance (percent) 
(D)6.2.1.8 Operator Services 

Speed of Answer - Operator Services (average) 
Calls Answered Within Ten Seconds - Operator Services 
(percent) 

(D)6.2.2 Diagnostic Indicators 

OS-1 
OS-2 

In addition to the performance indicators identified above, USW will 
report the following indicators that do not directly address 
nondiscrimination but may be useful in diagnosing problems or 
improving service: 

(D)6.2.2.1 Pre-Order/Ordering 

DPO-1 Electronic Flow - Through of Local Service Requests 
(LSRs) to the Service Order Processor (percent) 

DPO-2 LSR Rejection Notice Interval (average) 
DPO-3 LSRs Rejection (percent) 
DPO-4 Firm Order Confirmation (FOC) Interval (average) 
DPO-5 Pre-Order/Order Response Times for USW Retail 

Transactions (average) 
DPO-6 Completion Notifications Transmitted Within 24 hours 

(percent) 
DPO-7 Completion Notification Interval (average) 

(D)6.2.2.2 Ordering and Provisioning 

DOP-1 RESELLER or RESELLER’s Customer - Caused 
Installation Misses (percent) 

DOP-2 Delayed Orders Completed equal to greater than 15 
days past the Commitment Date (percent) 
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DOP-3 Delayed Orders Completed equal to or greater than 90 
days past the Commitment Date (percent) 

DOP-4 RESELLER or RESELLER's Customer-Caused 
Coordinated Cutover Misses (percent) . 

DMR-1 RESELLER or RESELLER's Customer-Caused Trouble 
Reports (percent) 

(D)6.2.2.4 Access to OSS Functions: 

(D)6.2.2.3 Maintenance and Repair 

(GA-1) Gateway Availability - Human-to-Computer Interface 

(GA-2) Gateway Availability - Compute r-to-Compute r I nterface 

(PO-1) Per-Order/Order Response Times (average) 
(OP-1 and MR-1)Speed of Answer - Provisioning and Repair 

Centers (average) 
(OP-2 and MR-2) Calls Answered Within 20 Seconds - 

Provisioning and Repair Centers (percent) 
(BI-1) Mean Time to Provide USW - Recorded Usage Records ( 
(81-2) Mean Time to Deliver Invoices 
(81-3) Billing Accuracy 

(ES-1) ALI Database Updates Within 24 Hours (percent) 
(ES-1) 91 1/E911 ES Trunk Installation Intervals (average) 

(DA-1 and OP-1) Speed of Answer (average) 
(DA-2 and OS-2) Calls Answered Within 10 Seconds (percent) 

(OP-3) Installation Commitments Met (percent) 
(OP-4) Installation Interval (average) 
(OP-5) Installation Trouble Reports (percent) 
(OP-6) Delayed Days (average) 

(MR-3) Out of Service Cleared Within 24 Hours - Non-Designed 
Repair Process (percent) 
(MR-4) All Troubles Cleared Within 48 Hours - Non-Designed 
Repair Process (percent) 
(MR-5) All Troubles Cleared Within 4 Hours - Designed Repair 
Process (percent) 
(MR-6) Mean Time to Restore (average) 
(MR-6) Repair Repeated Report Rate (percent) 
(MR-6) Trouble Rate (percent) 

(percent) 

(percent) 

(D)6.2.2.5 Access to Emergency Services 

(D)6.2.2.6 Access to Directory Assistance and Operator Services: 

(D)6.2.2.7 Resale Services Ordering and Provisioning: 

(D)6.2.2.8 Resale Services Maintenance and Repair: 
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(D)6.3 Service Quality Performance Results Reports 

(D)6.3.1 For Resale, USW will provide core service performance results for the 
performance indicators listed above for RESELLER, other Resellers 
in aggregate and USW end users. 

(D)6.4 Performance Results Provided to Reseller 
The performance results provided to RESELLER by USW shall be consistent with 
the current version of the USW Service Performance Indicator Description (PID). 

(D)6.5 The performance results provided under this Agreement are to be used solely for 
the purposes set forth herein, and shall be treated as "Proprietary Information" as 
provided in Section (A)3.14 of this Agreement. 

(D)6.6 Service Performance - Reported Events 
(D)6.6.1 When applicable, USW will report service-related performance results 

for all "events". An "event" is the activity that generates the 
measurement. 

(D)6.6.2 The Parties will report RESELLER results referenced above provided 
that RESELLER has ordered and is utilizing the services reported; 

(D)6.6.3 USW will provide the reports on a calendar monthly basis. These 
reports will be provided within forty-five (45) calendar days of the 
close of the preceding month. 

(D)6.7 Self Executing Remedies 

The purpose and focus of remedies provisions under this Resale Agreement 
shall be to resolve significant differences in service quality that have been 
identified through appropriate comparisons of the service performance results 
reported for the core performance indicators defined above. Self-executing 
remedies are those actions, defined herein, that USW will undertake in good faith 
and in cooperation with RESELLER to respond to such differences immediately, 
without waiting for determination of whether actual discrimination may exist. 
(D)6.7.1 For this purpose, significant differences shall be considered to be 

those that are determined to be statistically, operationally, and 
materially significant in each of three (3) or more consecutive 
months and that reflect a probability that inferior service was 
apparently provided to RESELLER, based on the relevant 
comparison of performance indicator results. Statistical significance 
shall be determined as defined below. Operational and material 
significance shall be established by including for comparison only 
those results that have (a) minimum sample sizes of 30 each, and 
(b) a relevant comparison demonstrating a service performance 
difference of a magnitude that can be reasonably considered to 
have a perceptible effect on end users or RESELLER operations. 
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(D)6.7.2 Determination of the statistical significance of any difference in 
appropriately comparable results shall be based on statistical testing 
for (1) differences in means (where performance indicator results are 
reported as averages) or (2) difference in proportions (where 
performance indicator results are reported as percentages), as 
follows: 

(D)6.7.2.1 Determination of the significance of a difference in 
mean values of each monthly service performance 
indicator results shall be based on a "permutation" test 
using what is commonly referred to as a "Z" statistic 
and a maximum of 1,000 randomly selected 
permutations of the samples. Where sample sizes 
exceed 600, the 7" test using the "modified Z statistic" 
may be used instead of the permutation test. Where 
used, the modified Z statistic will be based on the 
statistical variance associated with USWs retail 
performance results, where applicable, or on the 
variance associated with RESELLER aggregate 
performance results, where there are no retail 
performance results. 

(D)6.7.2.2 The significance of a difference in proportional 
measurements shall be based on direct calculation of 
the probability of the observed difference using the 
binomial distribution with a pooled p value. 
A difference in results by either test type (i.e., differences 
in means or differences in proportions) will be deemed 
statistically significant if the appropriate one tailed test 
indicates, with 99 percent confidence, that the 
performance indicator results being compared appear to 
be from different populations of performance. In other 
words, that service being provided to RESELLER 
appears to be inferior to that represented by the 
comparable results (such as, results representing 
service provided to Resellers in aggregate or to USW 
retail). 

(D)6.7.2.3 

(D)6.7.3 For each case in which a significant difference as defined above 
has occurred, USW shall: 
(D)6.7.3.1 Immediately investigate to determine the cause(s) of 

the difference and, where feasible, begin good-faith 
efforts to resolve the difference; 

(D)6.7.3.2 Within 45 days, provide to RESELLER a written 
explanation of the result of the investigation as to 
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cause(s) and, as applicable, an action plan describing 
(i) what has and will be done to resolve the difference, 
(ii) what cooperative actions and timelines on the part 
of RESELLER are needed to facilitate or expedite 
resolution, and (iii) listing key milestones for use by the 
Parties in tracking progress; 

(D)6.7.3.3 Offer and meet with designated RESELLER 
representatives monthly to discuss progress on 
resolving the difference(s); 

(D)6.7.3.4 Escalate to vice president level any significant 
difference that has or is not projected to be resolved 
within three months of the difference first being 
identified as significant as defined above, with 
commitment at that level to direct due diligence toward 
removing obstacles and expediting resources where 
feasible and necessary to resolve the difference as 
soon as possible. 

If a statistically and operationally significant difference has occurred 
in the trend results for any particular performance indicator, the 
parties shall allow three (3) months to correct the difference in the 
trend results. If the statistically, and operationally significant 
difference in trend results is corrected within the three (3) month 
time, no action, formal or informal, shall be taken by either Party 
with respect to that difference. 
If the statistically and operationally significant difference in trend 
results is not corrected within the three (3) month time frame, the 
Dispute Resolution provision of this Resale Agreement shall apply. 

(D)6.7.4 

. 

(D)6.7.5 

(D)6.8 Delaying Events 

(D)6.8.1 A Party's failure to meet a requirement in this Section of this 
Agreement shall not be included when that failure is a result, directly 
or indirectly, of a Delaying Event. 

(D)6.8.2.1 Failure by either Party to perform any of its obligations 
set forth in this Agreement, 

(D)6.8.2.2 Any delay, act or failure to act by an end user, agent or 
subcontractor of the other Party, or 

(D)6.8.2.3 Any Force Majeure Event. 
If a Delaying Event prevents either Party from performing a measured 
activity, then such measured activity shall be excluded from the 
performance indicator(s). 

(D)6.8.2 A "Delaying Event" means: 

(D)6.8.3 
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(D)6.9 Records Retention for Service Performance Indicators 
USW shall maintain complete and accurate records, for the specified review 
period of its performance under this Agreement for each measured activity. 
USW shall provide such records to RESELLER in a self-reporting format. Such 
records shall be in the format kept in USWs ordinary course of business. The 
Parties agree that such records shall be deemed "Confidential Information." 

The Parties shall jointly and separately advocate and defend the sufficiency of this 
Agreement in addressing the nondlscrimination requirements of the Act and 
wholesale services performance measurements reporting rights, remedies and 
related terms and conditions in any forum in which its sufficiency might be 
challenged. 

(D)6.11 Cost Recovery 

(D)6.10 Joint Defense and Advocacy 

Each Party reserves the right to recover the costs associated with the creation of 
the above measures, indicators, and reports through a future proceeding before 
a regulatory body. Such a proceeding may address a wide range of 
implementation costs not otherwise recovered through charges established 
herein. 
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PART E - ARIZONA RATES 
LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICES RESALE OF SERVICES 

The Parties agree the following charges apply to the Resale of Local Services: 
1. Nonrecurring Charges. 

a. Customer Transfer Charge (CTC): The following nonrecurring charges apply when 
converting a USW account to a RESELLER account or when changing an end user 
from one reseller to another. 

Category of Service 
0 Residence $5.00 
0 Business $5.00 
0 lSDN $5.00 
0 Private Line Transport 

First Circuit $45.08 
Additional Circuit, Same CSR $31.19 

Advanced Comm. Svc., per Circuit $50.48 

Per Line Nonrecurring Charcle 

b. Product Specific Nonrecurring Charge: As set forth in USW tariffs, the product specific 
nonrecurring charges, discounted by 18%, will apply when additional lines or trunks are 
added or when the end user adds features or services to existing lines or trunks. 

2. 
qualified below, all other USW telecommunications services shall be available for resale at an 
18% discount. 

Basic Residential Line service 12%, Basic Business Line Service 18%. Except as 

a. The following services are not available for resale: 
0 

Enhanced Services 
0 

0 USW Calling Card 
0 Concession Service 
0 

Customer Premises Equipment (separately or in a package) 

Inside Wire (including installation, sale or maintenance) 

Promotions of less than 90 days 

b. The following services are available only to the same class of customer eligible to 
purchase that service from USW: 

0 Grandfathered 
0 Residence 
0 Lifeline/Link-up 

c. The following services are available for resale under this Agreement but are not 
included in the wholesale pricing reflected above: 

0 Public Access Lines 
0 

Private Line Used For Special Access 

DSL Services such as Megabit Services 
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d. IntraLATA Toll Charges: RESELLER shall have their choice of obtaining USW provided 
intralATA toll for resale at an 18% discount or, in Arizona, providing their own IntraLATA 
toll, or obtaining their IntraLATA toll from a third party. 

Daily Usage Record File: Recurring Charge - $.0011 per record. 3. 

January 17,2000/cbd/essential.cm, inc. - Your Energy 8 Communications Superstore 
CDS-OOOl 1 17-0037Idp2.3resaleaz.doc 

Page 62 



Part F 
Signature 

PART F - SIGNATURE 
Entire Agreement 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and iupersedes all prior 
oral or written agreements, representations, statements, negotiations, understandings, proposals 
and undertakings with respect to the subject matter hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 
respective duly authorized representatives. 

essential.com, inc. U S WEST Communications, Inc. 

Akhil Gaiand 
Name Print edmy ped 

CEO 
Title 

Date 

Katherine L. Fleming 
Name Printedmyped 

Vice President - Interconnection 
Title 

01- af /67) 
Date 
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PART F - SIGNATURE 

Entire Agreement 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior 
oral or written agreements, representations, statements, negotiations, understandings, proposals 
and undertakings with respect to the subject matter hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 
respective duly authorized representatives. 

essential.com, inc. 
(d.b.a. essentia1.c m, in 
Energy & C mmu icatio Superstore) n F Fyour 

Akhil Garland 
Name Printednyped 

CEO 
Title 

Date 

U S WEST Communications, Inc. 

Katherine L. Fleming 
Name Printednyped 

Vice President - Interconnection 
Title 

Date 
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ATTACHMENT E 

Essential has proven its ability to obtain and maintain significant bank and 
vendor lines of credit as well as strategic alliances with other parties. 

More specifically, the following demonstrates the financial viability of Essential. 
Essential has respectively obtained: (a) a $4,000,000 line of credit (subordinated debt 
funding) from Comdisco Ventures in 1999, a division of Comdisco, Inc. that has 
committed over $1.5 billion in capital to more than 600 venture backed start-up 
companies; (b) approximately $15,000,000 of equity funding from Brand Equity 
Ventures, Bessemer Venture Partners, EnerTech Capital Partners and others, also in 
1999; and approximately $75,000,000 of equity funding (Series C Preferred Stock 
offering, February, 2000) from several financial institutions including those already 
mentioned and, among others, Amerindo Investment Advisors (“Amerindo”). Brand 
Equity Ventures is a venture capital fund that focuses exclusively on financing high- 
growth consumer businesses, having backed successful companies that include Cyberian 
Outpost, Gymboree, and OfficeMax. Bessemer Venture Partners is one of North 
America’s oldest venture capital firms and an early investor in the Internet with such 
investments as eToys, VeriSign, Babycenter, and Mindspring, among others. EnerTech 
Capital Partners is a private equity partnership providing financing and strategic value to 
service and technology companies in the deregulating utility and telecommunications 
marketplace. Amerindo is a leading technology investor. These significant financial 
establishments are also major shareholders in Essential. 

While Essential, as an entrepreneurial start-up is not a subsidiary of an existing 
public company, these facts set forth herein show that Essential has the requisite financial 
strength and resources to operate as a telecommunications services provider in the State 
of Arizona. Essential’s financial statements are set forth as part of this Attachment D. 
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. .  REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of 
essential.com, inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of essential.com, inc. (a Delaware corporation) as 
of December 3 1 , 1998, and the related statements of operations, changes in redeemable convertible preferred 
stock and stockholders' deficit, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. h audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of essential.com, inc. as of December 31,1998, and the results of its operations and its cash 
flows for the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Arthur Andersen LLP 

Boston, Massachusetts 
August 3,1999 
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. .  
ESSENTLAL.COM, INC. 

BALANCE SaEETS 
December 31, September 30, 

1998 1999 
ASSETS (Unaudited) 

Current assets: . 
and cash equivalents ...................................................................................................... $ 14,119 S 9,821,656 

Ac$unts receivable, net of reserves of approximately 526,000 and $31,000 in 1998 and 1999, respectively 21,117 64,498 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1.543 7.263 

..................................................................................................... 36,779 9,893,417 Total current pssets 

............................................................................................. 1 15,060 679,964 Computer and office equipment 
Furniture, fixtures and automobiles ....: 19.237 15.541 

Total property and equipment .................................................................................... 134,297 695,505 

......................................................... 
............................................................................. 

Property and equipment, at cost: 

.................................................................... .............. 

37.828 169.564 
Total net property and equipment .............................................................................. 96,469 525,941 

- 336,651 
............................................................................................................................... 9,580 5 1,325 

- 375.065 

Less-accumulated depreciation ............................................................................................ 

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of 163,900 in 1999 ....................................... 
Other Assets 
Deferred financing costs ............................................................................................................. 

................................................................................................................. Total assets li-JUu- 
LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE 

PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT 
Current liabilities: a - Notes payable to related party ............................................................................................ S 248,560 S .. 

Advance on convekible notes payable .................................................................... : .......... 
Current portion of deferred payments ........ ; 
Accounts payable ............................................................................................................... 
Accrued payroll and related costs .......................... ; ........................................................... 
Accrued other expenses ...................................................................................................... 

- .20,000 ........................................................................ 33,702 .360,153. ' . 
. I  207,679 695,481 

129,356 223,359 
32.2 1 1  451.991 

1.730.984 I .  671.503 Total current liabilities ................................................................. .: ........................ 

Deferred payments, net of current portion ............................................................................. 40.154 

Commitments (Note L) 

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock 
Series A redeemable convertible preferred stock, S.O1 par value 

Authorized-2,830,726 shares in 1999, issued and outstanding-2,830,726 shares in - 2,839,142 

12,193,622 

1999 stated at redemption value, net of unaccreted expenses ........................................ 
Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock, S.01 par value 

Authorized-6,606,867 shares in 1999, issued and 0utstanding-6~332~125 shares in 

Stockholders' deficit: 
Common stock, S.01 par vaIue-authorized-l9,166,45 1 shares, issued and 
outstandmg-5233,897 and 4,482,802 shares in 1998 and 1999, respectively ................ 

warrants ............................................................................................................................ 

52,339 44,828 
16,408 489,975 
- 327,065 

Additional paid-in capital .................................................................................................. 

Defened compensation ...................................................................................................... 
. .  

(45 1,907) L 

Accumulated deficit ........................................................................................................... (637.581) -0 

deficit .................................................................................................................. L = J S € m m  

Total stockholders' deficit ..................................................................................... (568.834) (5.581.349) 

Total liabilities, redeemable convertible, preferred stock and stockholders' 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of thesefinancial statements. 
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ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

c 

Nine Months 
Ended 

September 30,1999 
(Unaudited) 

Three Months 
Ended 

September 30,1999 
(Unaudited) 

$ 79,212 

86.692 

(7,480) 

Year Ended 
December 31,1998 

$ 141,549 $ 165,2 10 

184.208 
(1 8,998) 

Revenue ........................................................ 
165.69 1 
(24,142) 

Cost of revenue ..; ......................................... 
Gross loss ........................................ 

Operating expenses: 
Research and development ....................... 
General and administrative ....................... 
Selling and marketing ................................ 
Customer service ......................... ..! .......... 

. .  
Total operating expenses ................. 

492,454 
1 , 129,842 
1,302,603 
313.197 

3.238.096 

71,459 
338,299 
133,045 

- 

1,023,908 
1,805,525 
1,696,024 
526.045 

5.05 1.502 

(5,070,500) 

122,087 

147.549 

(5,095,962) 

542.803 

’ (3,245,576) (566,945) 

- 
Loss from operations ....................... 

Interest and other income ............................. 79,080 

9.926 Interest expense ............................................ 17.336 

(3 , 176,422) (584,281) 

- 
Net loss ............................................ 

2 5 7.767’ 240.565 - Preferred stock dividends and accretion ....... 

Net loss attributable to common 
stockholders .................................... L,-uwul 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesefinancial statements. 
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Numberof Amount Numberof I 
Shares Shares 

NiZef S.01 Par 
Value 

ESSEMIALCOM, WC. 

SerIesA Redeemable Series B Redeemable 
Coawrrible Prelerred Conwrrlble Prejerred 

Stock Stock TOlJl Additional 

Paid-in 
Capital WVarranb Compensation d Delicit 

Deferred Accumulate Stockholders' 
Deficit 

Common Stock 

L' 

s(16,b.t1 

31.781 

-1 

(568.834) 

87s 

(23.836, 

37.10; 

(257,767 

327.06 

fl.WS.962 

s&sL!2 

S- 

(489,014) 

37.107 

S(53300) 

w 

(637581) 

4,194,287 14 1.943 S(4.977) 

21.385 

16,408 

592 

5- S- S- 

12.042: 

150, 

1 1 1 w c e  of common 
I% k 1.039.6 IO 

5.233.897 

28.612 

079,707) 

10.396 

51339 

286 

0,797) 

Net IOU 

BWm DECEMBER 31, 
I998 

Exercise of common 
stock options 

Repurchase of cnmmOn 
stock (16.039) 

489.014 

Deferred compensation 
on options granted m 
consuluntr 

. Amortizationof 
deferred compensation 

1,997.7 I3 

Iuuiurcc of Serin A 
rcdeemible convertible 
prefernd stock mt Of 
issuance costs of 
s9a.697 2,096.4lO 

Cooversion of notes 10 
Series Aprcfemd stock 734.316 734.3.16 

luuancc of Series B 
redcemible convertible 
preferred stock net of 
issuance costs of 
S57.032 - 6.332.125 

Accretion of 
redeemable convertiilc 
preferred stock 10 
Lquidatioo value 107,113 

W m t s  gnnted in 
connection with 
rubordiitcd loan 327,065 

Net loss 

The accompanyhg notes are M Integral parr of thaejlnonchl atatemenu. 
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. .  ESSENTIAL.COM, INC . 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Cash Aows from operating activities: 
Net loss .................................................................................................................. 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities: 

Interest expense convertible notes ...................................................................... 
Depreciation and amortization ........................................................................... 
Amortization of deferred compensation ............................................................. 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
(Gain) loss from disposal of assets ..................................................................... 

Accounts receivable ..................................................... : ................................. 
Prepaid. expenses and other current assets ...................................................... 
Accounts payable ........................................................................................... 
Accrued expenses ........................................................................................... 

Net cash used in operating activities .......................................................................... 
Cash flows from investing activities: 

Purchases of property and equipment .................................................................... 
Proceeds from sale of equipment ........................................................................... 
Increase in other assets ................................... ....................................................... 

Net cash used in investing activities .......................................................................... 

Proceeds from (paynients on) notes payable to related party .......... A; ................... 
Cash flows from financing activities: 

Repurchase of common stock ................................................................................ 
Proceeds from advances on and issuance of convertible notes payable ................. 
Deferred financing costs ........................................................................................ 
Proceeds from (payments on) deferred payments .................................................. 
Net proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock ................. 
Repayment of convertible notes payable ................................................................ 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock .............................................................. 

Net cash provided by financing activities .................................................................. 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ...................... ; ........................................... 
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period ......................................................... 
Cash and cash equivalents end of period .................................. ; ................................. 

Cash paid for interest ............................................................................................. 
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash information: 
Accretion of preferred stock dividends .................................................................. 

Acquisition of customers ....................................................................................... 
Conversion of notes payable and accrued interest to preferred stock ..................... 

Year Ended 
December 31. 1998 

S (584. 281) 

. 
31. 807 
. 

(651) 

(21. 117) 

169. 607 
153.004 

(252.1 24) 

(493) 

(84. 609) 
8. 184 

(4.159 

(80.58Q 

I 224. 760 

20. 000 
- 
- 

64. 7 15 - 
- 

31.781 

341.256 

8. 552 

5.567 

14.u9 

. .  

Nine Months Ended 
September 30. 1999 

(Unaudited) 

S (5.095. 962) 

119. 

9. 781 

(43. 381) 

(5. 720) 
487. 802 
5 13.783 

(3.8 13.066) 

(599. 561) 
. 

(4 1.745) 

(641.306) 

(248. 560) 
(23. 836) 
690. 000 
(48. 000) 
(54. 254) 

(95. 000) 
14.040. 681 

878 
14.261.909 

9.807. 537 

14.119 

L=isu@i 

5 . 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesefinancial statements . 
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ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

F - 6  
I 

A. Ofganization 
essential.com, inc. (essential or the Company) is a web-based reseller of various services 

O f  including electricity, Internet access and phone services to small businesses and residential 
customers in the northeastern U.S. 

The Company is devoting substantially all of its efforts towards the acquisition of new 
customers, development of its web site and identification of new services to be offered. The 
Company is subject to a number of risks similar to those of other early stage enterprises. Principal 
r isks to the Company include the need to obtain adequate financing to fund future operations, 
dependence on key individuals, requirement to obtain regulatory approval, and reliance on 
successful marketing of services to provide profitable operations. 

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
The accompanying financial statements reflect the application of certain significant 

accounting policies, as described below and elsewhere in the accompanying notes to financial 
statements. 

; 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

Interim Financial Statements 

for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30,1999 and the statements of cash flows 
and changes in redeemable convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ deficit for the nine months 
ended September 30,1999 are unaudited, but, in the opinion of management, include all 
adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of results 
for these interim periods. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in 
financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have 
been omitted, although the Company believes that the disclosures included are adequate to make 
the information presented not misleading. The results of operations for the nine months ended 
September 30, 1999 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the entire fiscal 
year. 

The accompanying balance sheet as of September 30,1999, the statements of operations 

http://ESSENTIAL.COM
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ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) . ., 

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

P Cash Equivalents 
The Company considers all time deposits and short-term investments with original 

maturities of 90 days or less to be cash equivalents. At September 30, 1999, the Company’s cash 
equivalents are comprised of money market mutual funds and are stated at cost, which 
approximates market. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company generates revenue principally fiom the resale of services including Internet 
access and phone services to residential and small business customers. Revenue is recognized as 
the services are performed. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

payable and notes payable. The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments 
approximate their fair values. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Statement of Finazcial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 105, Disclosure of Information 
About Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk and Financial Instruments with 
Concentrations of Credit Risk, requires disclosure of any significant off-balance-sheet and credit 
risk concentrations. Financial instruments that subject the Company to credit risk consist primarily 
of accounts receivable; however, risk is limited to customers to whom the Company makes 
significant sales. The Company maintains an allowance for potential credit losses, but historically 
has not experienced any significant losses related to individual customers or groups of customers in 
any particular industry or geographic area. There are no customers representing greater than 10% 
of total revenues during 1998 or the nine months ended September 30,1999. One customer 
represents greater than 10% of accounts receivable at December 31, 1998 and September 30,1999. 

The Company’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash, accounts receivable, accounts 

- - - -- - -- --f)therds&------------  _ -  - - - _ _  - - __ _ _  _ _  _ _ _ _  _ _  - _ _  -_ _ _ _  
Other assets consist primarily of security deposits at December 3 1, 1998 and September 30, 

1999. 

Advertising Costs 

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. The Company provides for depreciation using 
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, as follows: 

Estimated 
Asset Classification Useful Life 

Computer and office equipment 
Furniture, fNtures and automobiles 

3-5 years 

5 years 

F-7 
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. .  ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
. .  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

B, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Comprehensive Loss 

enterprise during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from nonowner 
sources. The Company's comprehensive loss is equal to net loss for the periods presented. 

Long Lived Assets 

The Company has assessed the realizability of these assets and believes that there is no material 
impairment of these assets to date. 

Deferred Financing Costs 

Ab 

Comprehensive loss includes net loss as well as other changes in the equity of a business 

The Company's long lived assets consist of property and equipment and intangibles assets. 

Deferred financing costs represents the expenses incurred obtaining the subordinated loan . 
discussed in Note H. These costs are being amortized over the life of the related loan commitment. 

C. Income Taxes 

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting 
for Income Taxes. Under the liability method specified by SFAS No. 109, a deferred tax asset or 
liability is determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of 
assets and liabilities, as measured by currently enacted tax rates. 

There are no significant differences between financial statement and tax bases of assets and 
liabilities as of December 31, 1998. As of December 31,1998, the Company had net operating loss 
carryforwards available to offset future taxable income, if any, of approximately $600,000. The 
Company has established a valuation allowance of approximately $250,000 to offset its deferred tax 
asset as its hture realizability is uncertain. The Internal Revenue Code contains provisions that 
limit the use of loss and tax credit carryforwards in the event of certain changes in the ownership, 

D. Intangible Assets 
I In August and September 1999, the Company acquired the performance obligations related 

to two customer lists for $223,554 and $1 17,006, respectively. Under the t e r n  of the agreements, 
the Company is required to pay for the customer lists in three installments through January 2000. 
At September 30,1999, there was $258,541 still payable under these agreements, which is included 
in deferred payments. The Company has recorded the value of these customer lists as an intangible 
asset and is amortizing them over 24 months, the estimated useful life of the asset. 

E. Deferred Payments 
During 1998 and 1999, the Company acquired certain equipment under an arrangement for 

deferred payments arrangement. These are payable in monthly installments of $13,390 through . 
May 2000. At December 31,1998, and September 30,1999, the outstanding principal balances 

F - 8  
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ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
. ,  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

E. Deferred Payments (continued) 
were $73,856 and $101,612, respectively. As of September 30, 1999, this balance, in addition to 

'Ab the amount discussed in Note D, was included in deferred payments in the accompanying balance 
sheet. 

F. Notes Payable to a Related Party 
At December 3 1 , 1998, the Company had a demand note payable to a related party totaling 

$248,560, of which $224,760 and $23,800 were borrowed in 1998 and 1997, respectively. Interest 
accrues at 10% and totaled $17,297 and $16,992 during the year ended December 31,1998 and the 
nine months ended September 30, 1999, respectively, and is included in interest expense in the 
accompanying statement of operations and as an accrued expense in the balance sheet at December 
3 1, 1998. Borrowings were secured by substantially all assets of the Company. This demand note 
payable was repaid in August 1999. 

G. Convertible Promissory Notes 
In January 1999, the Company issued an aggregate of $710,000 of Convertible Promissory 

Notes (the Notes) that accrued interest at a rate of 5% per annum. The Notes were convertible at 
the option of the noteholder, upon the Company receiving additional financing of at least 
$3,000,000 on or before June 30,1999. The conversion price of the Notes was equal to 85% of the 
per share price of the subsequent financing. In May and June 1999, the Company converted 
$615,000 of these Notes plus accrued interest into 734,3 16 shares of Series A convertible preferred 
stock. The remaining $95,000 plus accrued interest was repaid. In December 1998, the Company 
had received an advance of $20,000 towards the purchase of the Notes. In connection with the 
conversion of the Notes, the Company recorded $1 10,150 of interest expense in 1999 as a result of 
the discounted conversion rate. 

H. Subordinated Loan 
On September 24,1999, the Company entered into an agreement with a financing 

Company that provides for a $4 million subordinated loan and a $1 million equipment lease line. 
~ ~ o ~ ~ a t e a ~ ~ ~ s ~ i T t e ~ e ~ t ~ t i ~ ~ - a ~ d i s ~ ~ c ~ e d ~ y ~ u ~ s ~ ~ i a l l ~ a l l ~ €  tksassets-oftke- - - - - 
Company. The subordinated loan provides for borrowings in $250,000 increments over a 12-month 
period. The loan requires interest for the first six months followed by 30 equal installments of 
principal and interest. As of September 30, 1999, there were no borrowings outstanding under this 
arrangement. 

- . - __ - - __ - 

In connection with this financing, the Company issued warrants for the purchase of 
274,741 shares of Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock at an exercise price of $1.91 per 
share, subject to certain defined adjustments. The warrants expire in seven years or three years 
from the effective date of the Company's initial public offering, whichever is earlier. The 
Company has valued these warrants, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, at $327,065 
and has recorded the value of the warrants as a deferred financing cost, which will be amortized as 
interest expense over the life of the commitment. 
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. .  ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. . 

. .  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

I.  Stockholders’ Deficit 
Common Stock 

The Company is authorized to issue 19,166,451 shares of common stock. During 1997, the 
Company issued 4,194,287 shares of common stock to the Company’s founders. During 1998, the 
Company issued 1,039,610 shares of restricted stock to an officer of the Company at $.03 per share 
through the issuance of a promissory note for $3 1,781. This promissory note was repaid in 
November 1998. On March 17, 1999, the Company repurchased and returned to authorized status 
779,707 shares of this restricted common stock for $23,836. 

rb 

Stock Splits and Dividends 

In October 1998, the Company was reorganized as a Delaware corporation. In connection 
with this reorganization, the Company exchanged 10,000 shares of common stock for every share 
outstanding. In March 1999, the Company issued a stock dividend of .79 share for every one share 
of common stock that was issued and outstanding at that date. Additionally, in July 1999, the 
Company effected a stock split of 2 shares for every one share of the Company’s outstanding 
common stock. The above transactions have been reflected retroactively for all periods presented 
in the accompanying financial statements. 

J. Redeemable convertible Preferred Stock 

During 1999, the Company issued 2,830,726 shares of Series A redeemable convertible 
preferred stock (Series A Preferred Stock), $0.01 par value resulting in gross proceeds of 
approximately $2,096,000 and the conversion of $615,000 notes payable (see Note 7). 

During the third quarter of 1999, the Company sold 6,332,125 shares of Series B 
redeemable convertible preferred stock (Series B Preferred Stock), $0.01 par value per share, 
resulting in gross proceeds to the Company of approximately $12,100,000. 

The rights and preferences of the Series A and B Preferred Stock are as follows: 

- -______ _ _ _  _ _ _  Voting 

Each share of Series A and B Preferred Stock is entitled to voting rights equivalent to the number of 
shares of common stock into which each share can be converted into. 

- -  --__ __-- 

Conversion 

Series A and B Preferred stock is convertible at the option of the stockholder into two and one 
shares, respectively, of common stock, subject to certain antidilutive adjustments. Conversion is 
automatic upon the closing of a public offering of the Company’s common stock at a price per 
share of not less than $1.25 per share, for Series A Preferred Stock, (adjusted for any stock dividend 
or stock splits) and aggregate gross proceeds of not less than $15,000,000. Series B Preferred 
Stock is automatically converted upon (i) the closing of a public offering of the common stock with 
gross proceeds of at least $20,000,000 and a pre-money valuation of not less than $100 million or 
(ii) the election of the holders of 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series B preferred stock. 
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ESSENTIA.L.COM, INC. 
NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

J. Redeemable convertible Preferred Stock (continued) 

t 
Liquidation 

In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders of the Series A 
and B Preferred Stock are entitled to $1 .OO and $1.91 per share, respectively, plus all accrued but 
unpaid dividends. In addition, after payment of the liquidation preference described in the 
preceding sentence, the Series A Prefened Stock is entitled to participate on an as-converted basis 
with the Common Stock in the remaining assets of the Company, provided that in no event shall a 
holder of Series A Preferred Stock be entitled to receive more than three times the liquidation 
preference for each share of Series A Preferred Stock. 

Dividend 
The’Series A and B Preferred Stock each earn cumulative dividends of 8% annually. Dividends are 
payable in the event of a liquidation of the Company, as defined, or at the discretion of the Board of 
Directors. Additionally, the preferred stockholders are entitled to receive dividends at the same rate 
as paid to the common stockholders. 

Redemption 

The holders of at least a majority of the series A Preferred Stock and the Series B Preferred Stock 
can demand that the Company redeem its shares for the original purchase price plus any accrued 
and unpaid dividends thereon. Redemption may be demanded after December 31,2003 by the 
holders of the Series A Preferred Stock for the Series A Preferred Stock and after July 3 1,2004 by 
the holders by the holders of the Series B Prefened Stock for the Series B Preferred Stock. The 
Series A preferred stock is redeemable in three equal annual installments. The Series B preferred 
stock is redeemable in one lump-sum payment. 

K. Stock Option Plan 

In December 1998, the Company established the 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the 
1998 Plan), which provides for the grant of incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options 
to purchase up to 2,443,942 shares of the Company’s common stock. The Board of Directors has 
the authority to select the employees and nonemployees to whom options are granted and determine 
the terms of each option, including (i) the number of shares of common stock subject to the option; 
(ii) the date on which the option becomes exercisable; and (iii) the option exercise price. Options 
granted under the 1998 Plan generally vest over four years. 

The following is a summary of the stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 
1998 and for the nine months ended September 30, 1999: 
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ESSENTLAL.COM, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

K. Stock Option Plan (continued) 

A' Weighted 
Exercise Average 

Number of Price per Exercise 
Shares Share Price 

Granted 523.390 $ .03 $ .03 
Outstanding, December 3 1, 1998 523,390 .03 .03 

Granted 848,675 .03-.20 .09 
(BO31 
(.04) 

Exercised (2 8,6 1 2) (.03) 
Terminated (694.41 8) (.03-.05) 

Outstanding, September 30, 1999 649.035 s a03 -a w 
Exercisable, September 30, 1999 - = - u z a u u  

As of September 30, 1999, options to purchase 1,766,295 shares of common stock are 
available for future grant under the 1998 Plan. At September 30,1999, there were 392,124 shares 
outstanding at an exercise price of $0.03 to $0.05 per share and 256,911 shares outstanding at an 
exercise price of $0.19 to $0.20 per share. 

SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, requires the measurement of 
the fair value of stock optiolrrs or warrants to be included in the statement of operations or disclosed 
in the notes to financial statements. The Company has determined that it will account for stock- 
based compensation for employees under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and elect 
the disclosure-only alternative under SFAS No. 123. 

The Company has computed the pro forma disclosures required under SFAS No. 123 for 
stock options granted during 1998 and 1999 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model 
prescribed by SFAS No. 123. The assumptions used for 1998 were as follows: (i) risk-fiee interest 
rates of 4.65%; (ii) expected life of seven years; (iii) no dividend yield and (iv) no volatility. The 
assumptions used for 1999 were as follows: (i) risk free interest rates of 4.99% to 6.1 1%; (ii) 
expected life of seven years; (iii) no dividend yield and (iv) no volatility. The weighted average 
remaining contractual life for outstanding options granted during 1998 and 1999 is 9.2 and 9.7 
years, respectively. The weighted average fair value at the date of grant for options granted during 
1998 and 1999 is $0.01 and $0.02 per Option, respectively. The total charge to operations under 
SFAS No. 123 for options vesting during the year ended December 31,1998 and the nine months 
ended September 30, 1999 would have been'approximately $215 and $2,117, respectively. 
The effect of applying SFAS No. 123 would have been as follows: 

December 31, September 30, 
1998 1999 

(Unaudited) 
Net loss- 

As reported 
Pro forma 

$ (584,281) $ (5,095,962) 
(584,496) (5,098,079) 

During 1999, the Company granted 257,511 options to consultants at a weighted average 
exercise price of %.15 per share. These options have been valued using the Black-Scholes option 

. 
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I . .  ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
I NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

K. Stack Option Plan (continued) 
pricing model and the Company has recorded deferred compensation of $489,014. The deferred 

'"Compensation is being amortized over the vesting periods of the options. During the nine months 
ended September 30,1999, the Company recorded $37,107 of compensation expense. 

L. COMMITMENTS 
The Company has lease agreements for its facilities and certain equipment, which expire at 

various dates through 2003. The future minimum lease payments under these leases at December 
31, 1998 are as follows: 

1999 $ 171,590 

2000 159,395 
200 1 28,632 
2002 28,632 
2003 4.772 

Total future minimum payments 

Rent expense for the year ended December 3 1,1998 and for the nine months ended 
September 30, 1999 was approximately $27,500 and $101,000, respectively. 
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j FORM B 

ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 

Application and Petition for Certificate of Convenience and Necessity to Provide 
Intrastate Telecommunication Services as an Interexchange Reseller 

Mail original plus 10 copies of completed application to: 

Docket Control Center I 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007-2927 I 

Arizoixi Corporation Conllnission 
1200 West Washington Street 

If you have current applications pending in Arizona as I 
an Interexchange reseller, AOS provider, or as the 
provider of other telecommunication services. I 
Type of Service: 
Docket No .: Date: 

Type of Service: 
Docket No.: Date: 

I For Docket Coiitrol Only: 
I (Please Stamp Here) 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

1 Docket No. 

I Date Docketed 

A. Company and Telecommunications Service hlfonnation 

[A-1) The name, address, and telephone number (including area code) of the applicant(company): 

essential.com, inc. 
Three Burlington Woods Drive, 4th Floor, Burlington, M A  01 803 
Telephone (781) 229-9599; Fax (781) 229-9499 

(A-2) If doing business (dba) under a name other tlmi tlie applicant (company) name listed above, specify: 

Essential.com, Inc. - Your Energy & Communications Superstore 

http://essential.com
http://Essential.com


r.4-3) The name, address, telephone number. fricsimile number and email address of the management contact: 

Basil Pallone, Director of FinancelController, Treasurer 

Three Burlington Woods Drive, 4th Floor, Burlington, MA 0 1803 

Telephone (781 ) 229-9599: Fax (781) 299-9499: Email bpallone@essential com 

1.4-4) Tlic name, address, tciepiionc number. fJcsirnilc nuinbcr and cniail address of the Attoiney. i f an ) .  
representing the applicant: 

Eric J. Krathwohl. Esq. 
Rich, May, Bilodeau & Flaherty. P.C.. 176 Federal Street. Boston, MA 02110 
Telephone (61 7) 382-1 360; Fax (61 7) 556-3890; Email ekrathwohl~richmayJaL~f.conl 

(A-5) \Vhac type of legal entity is the applicmt'! 

Sole proprietorsllip 

Foreign Partnership: -1inuttd. -gener;il. - Arizona. - 

Limited liability company 

Corporation: - * S O .  X *c*, __ non-profit. - Arizona. - Foreign 

Other, specify: 0 

(A-6) Include *Attachment A: Attachinciit A must list iianies of all oaners, partners. limited liability company 
managers, or corporation officers ;ind directors {specie), and indicate percentages of ownership. 



(A-7) 1. Is your company currently reselling telecommunication services in Arizona? If yes, provide the 
datc or the approximate datc that you began reselling service in Arizona. 

No. 

2. If the answer to 1. is *yes*, identify the types of telecommunications serviccs you resell; 
whether operator services are provided or resold and whether they are provided or resold to 
traffic aggregatoi-s (as defined in A.A.C. Rule R14-2-1001(3). a copy of which is attxhed): the 
number of customers in Arizona for e;ich type of service; and the total number of intrastate 
niiiiutes resold in the latest 12 month period for which data is available. Note: The Commission 
rules require rhat ;I separate C'C&N. issued under Article 10, be obtained in order to provide 
operator services to traffic aggresators. 

3. If the answer to 1. is *no, whcn does your cornpany plan to bcgin resclling service in Arizona? 

by the fourth quarter of 2000 

(A-8) Include -Attachment B: Attachnient B. your proposed tariff, must include proposcd rates and charges 
for each servicc to be provided, State ( I e tari &and 
state other terms and conditions. including deposits, that will apply to provision of the scrvice(s) by your 
company. 

Thc Cominission provides pricing flexibility by allowing cornpctitive tmcommunications service 
companies to price thcir services at levels equal to or below thc tariff (maximum) rdtes. The prices to be 
charged by the company arc filed with the Conunission in the form of price lists. 
Note: Price list ratc changes that result in rarcs that are lowcr than the tariff rate are effective upon 
concurrent notice to the Commission (See Rule R14-2-1109(B)(2)). See Rule R14-2-1 I 10 forproccdures 
to makc pricc list changes that result in rates that arc higher than the tariff ratc. 

I (A-9) The geographic market to be served is: 

Applicant intends to provide interexchange service 
throughout the entire state of Arizona. 

Statcwdc I 
Other. Dcscribe and provide a map dcprcting the area. I 

(4-11)) List the states in which yoii currently resell services similar to those you intend to resell in Arizona. 
Massachusetts and New York. 

(A-11) Provide the name, address. m d  telephone number of the companys complaint contact person. 
David Wheeler, Vice President, Operations 



:A-1 2) Provide B list of stares in which you have sought authority to resell telecommunications services and in 
which the state granted the a u t h o r i t y w o r  c-s 9 or did not v r u  your 
application for those services. For each state listed. provide a copy of the Commission's decision 
modifying or denying your application for authority to provide telecoininunications scrvices. 

. .  

None. 

:.4-13) Has the company bcen granted authority to providc or resell telecommunications services i n  any  state 
where subsequently the authoritv was revoked'.' If *yes*. provide copics of tlic State Regulatory 
Commission's decision revoking i t b  authority. 

None. 

[A-14) Has the conipany bcen or is the company currently involved in any formal coinplaint proceedings before 
m y  State or Federal Regulatory Commission'! If *yes*. in which states is the company involved in 
proceedings and what is the substance of these complaints. Also, provide copics of Conmission orders 
that have resolved any of these complaints 

No. 

(A-IS) Has the applicant been involved in any civil or criminal investigations related to the delivery of 
telecommunications services within the last five years? If -yes*, in which states has the applicant been 
involved in investigations and why IS the applicant being investigated? 

No. 

(A-16) Has the applicant had judgment entered against it in any civil matter or been convicted of criminal acts 
related to the delivery of telecommunications services within the last five years'? If yes. list the states 
whcre judgment or conviction was en:cred and provide a copy of the court order. 

No. 

B. Techcal Information 

(U-I)  If your company is a switchlcsg resellcr. provide the nunc of the coinpany or coinpanics tvvhose services 
you resell and skip to question (B-2) .  If you are not a switchless rcseilcr, complete the remainder of this 
section. 

Applicant reseBs the interexchange services of MCI WorldCom and Qwest. 

Include -Attachment C:* Attachment C should provide the following infoimation: A diagram ofthc 
applicant's basic call network used to complete Arizona intrastate tclecommunicatioiis traffic. This 
diagram should show how a typical call is routed in both its originating and terminating ends h e .  showr 
tlic acccss network and call completion network). 

Also include on the diagram the carricr(s) used for each major nchvork coinponent and indicate if the 
carrier is facilities-based or not. If the carrier is not facilities-based, indicate who owns the facilities 
(within the State of Arizona) that are used to originate and terminate the applicant's intrastate 

1 (It?(J,Y 9 



telecommunications traffic (Le. provide a list of the Arizona facilities-based long distance carriers whose 
facilities arc used to complctc the applicant’s intrdstate traffic). 

$3-2) Will your customers be able to access altcrnative toll scnice providers or resellers via I +  or IOlXxXX 
access, if your system becomes non-opcrational? 

Yes. 

C. Financial Wormahon 

(C-I) lncludc *Attachment D e ,  Attachmcnt D must include a copy of your Company’s halance sheet, inconic 
statcmcnt, audit report (if auditcd) and all rclatcd notcs to thcsc financial statemcnts for thc t\vo most 
recent ycars your Company has becn i n  business. 

(C-2) If your Company does Rot have financial statements for the IWO most recent years, please give the date 
your Company began operations. 

October 30, 1998 

(C-3) If the balance sheets you submit do not have retained earnings accounts, please provide this account 
information on a scparate sheet. 

(C-4) If your Company is a subsidiary. please provide your Parent Company‘s financial statements. in addition 
to your Company’s financial statements. 

The Applicant is not a subsidiary of any company. 

(C-5) If your Company intcnds to rely on the financid I - ~ S O U T C C S  of its Parent Company, please provide a written 
statement from your Parent Company attesting that i t  will provide complete financial backing if your 
Company expericnccs a net loss or a business failure and that it will guarautee re-payment of customcrs: 
advances, prepayments or deposits held by your Company if, for some reason. your Company cannot 
provide service or repay the deposits. 

(C-6) Will your customers by required 10 (or have the option to) pay advances, prepayments, or deposlts for 
any of your products or services. 



YES- (If yes, provide an explanation of how and when these customer advances prepayments or 
deposits will be applied or reference the terms and conditions section of your Company's tariffs with 
this explanation. If this information IS not explained in the tariff of this application, please provide it on a 
separate sheet.) 

X NO- (Note: If at n later date. your Company decides it wants to offer or require customer advances, 
prepayments or deposits. it must submit financial statements as part of the tariff amendment process.) 



I certify that if the applicant is an Arizona corporation, a current copy of the Articles of 
Incorporation is on file with the Arizona Corporation Commission and the applicant holds a Certificate 
of Good Standing from the Commission. If the company is a foreign corporation or partnershp, I 
certifjr that the company has authority to transact business in Arizona. I certifjr that all appropriate city, 
county andor State agency approvals have been obtained. Upon signmg of this appfication, I attest that 
I have read the Commission’s rules and regulations relating to the regulations of telecommunications 
services (A.A.C. Title 14, Chapter 2, Article 11) and that the company will abide by Arizona State Law 
including the Arizona Corporation Commission Rules and Regulations. I agree that the Commission’s 
rules apply in the event there is a conflict between those rules and the company’s tariff, unless otherwise 
ordered by the Commission. I certifL that to the best of my knowledge the information provided in ttus 
Application and Petition is true and correct. 

1 
(Signature of Authorized Representative) 

/ 7 0  /o* 
(Date) I I 

Basil Pallone 

(Pnnt Name of Authorized Representative) 

Director of FinancelController, Treasurer 

(Title) 

m24? 0 c“ SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this >&’ h day of 3 1 , b y  9 -  . 

I0/20/99 



ATTACHMENT A 

List of Corporation Officers and Directors 

Biographies of Management 

Mr. Akhil Garland, Chairman and CEO 
Mr. Garland has managed MIS departments for the State of Massachusetts and an 
international health care company. He is an entrepreneur, having founded and sold a 
multimedia company. Mr. Garland brings to Essential a long-range vision as well as a 
capacity to manage growth through innovative and leading edge information systems. He 
earned a B.A. in Computer Science and Mathematics from Connecticut College. 

Mr. John Dum,  Senior Vice President, Business Development 
Mr. Duffy comes to Essential from Metromedia International Telecommunications where 
he served as Vice President of Paging Operations. In that capacity, he managed 13 
paging joint ventures located in Eastern Europe, Russia, and Central Asia. Mr. Duffy 
was directly involved in strategic relationships between Metromedia and vendors, 
including Motorola, NEC, and Philips. Previously, he was with Metrocall, Inc. for five 
years in several senior management positions, including Director of Carrier Relations, 
where he oversaw the ongoing relationship between large carriers and resellers 
throughout the country. Mr. Duffy holds a B.A. in Economics from LaSalle University. 

Ms. Libby Curtis, Director of Web Development 
Prior to joining Essential, Libby Curtis was Director, Web Development for Cendant 
Corporation, where she managed a sixteen-person web development group. Ms. Curtis 
managed the development of several complex sites including Ramada, Days Inn, and 
Century 21. Prior to Cendant, Ms. Curtis was Human Factors Designer for The 
NetMarket Company where she designed and integrated user interfaces for several web 
projects including NetMarket, an on-line shopping service. Ms. Curtis received her BS in 
Marketing from Plymouth State College. 

Mr. Ivar Wold, Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer 
Mr. Wold brings over 30 years of experience in engineering, and is one of the Web’s 
leading innovators in eCommerce technology. Prior to joining Essential, Mr. Wold was a 
Senior Vice President at Fidelity Investments Retail Electronic Commerce where he was 
responsible for the Architecture and Development of Fidelity’s Retail Online products. 
Fidelity’s retail Website is one of the busiest in the financial services industry, with more 
than 2.5 million on-line accounts. Earlier in his career, Mr. Wold worked at leading 
corporations, such as Inprise (previously Borland International), Lotus Development and 
Microsoft. He also held senior positions at Analog Devices. Mr. Wold received a B.Sc 
(Eng) in Aeronautics and Astronautics from Southampton University in England where 
he graduated with First Class Honors. He is the holder of multiple patents, and his 
inventions have been manufactured and sold commercially around the world. 



Mr. Basil Pallone, Director of Finance and Controller, Treasurer 
Mr. Pallone has 19 years of financial experience in a diverse group of energy related 

Essential, Mr. Pallone was CFO of Energy Vision, a start up retail marketer of energy and 
energy services which was acquired by Williams Energy. Prior to Energy Vision, he 
served as Executive Vice President for EU4 Cogenex Corporation, a $75 million revenue 
energy management company. Mr. Pallone also spent three years as Assistant Treasurer 
at Eastern Utilities Associates where he was in charge of preparing annual and quarterly 
reports to shareholders and SEC filings. Mr. Pallone spent the first ten years of his career 
in various financial positions at Boston Edison Conipany. 

ventwziand D u b l i f i j o i n i n g  

Mr. Patrick Moran, Vice President, Secretary 
Mr. Moran earned a B.S. in Mass Communications from Emerson College, where he 
focussed on media communications and computer technologies. He has been involved in 
entrepreneurial activities since graduating from Emerson and is currently responsible for 
back office administration at Essential. 

Mr. Ronan Winter, Vice President, Strategic Marketing Alliances 
Mr. Winter was formerly Director of Business Development for Lycos, Inc., where he 
was responsible for the creation for many e-commerce partnerships. During his tenure 
from 1997 through 1999, Mr. Winter negotiated sixteen strategic alliances approved at a 
CEO and Board level, resulting in significant recurring annual revenue. Prior to joining 
Lycos, Mr. Winter served as Manager, Business Development with iChat from 1996 to 
1997, providing communication software to the Internet community. Mr. Winter holds 
an impressive 1 0-year track record in business development and sales and marketing with 
previous employers such as IBM, 1989-91 and Stream International, 1991 -96. A 
graduate of Trinity College, Dublin, Ireland, Mr. Winter was professionally trained in 
sales and marketing management by The Chartered Institute of Marketing, London. 

Mr. David Wheeler, Vice President, Operations 
Mr. Wheeler serves as Essential’s Vice President of Operations. Mr. Wheeler has over 
20 years of experience in managing large customer fulfillment and customer service 
functions. Prior to joining Essential, Mr. Wheeler served as the general manager for Sky 
Subscriber Services, Ltd., a division of Sky Television, the leading satellite television 
broadcaster in the U.K. from 1989 to 1998. In this role, he was responsible for the 
management of over 3.5 million subscribers, collection of revenues exceeding $1.5 
billion, and over 2,500 employees. From 1975 to 1989, Mr. Wheeler was with Book 
Club Associates in U.K. where he was responsible for the design and implementation of 
their customer management computer systems and eventually had general management 
responsibility for all matters relating to customer service. 

Mr. Rajan Kulkarni, Chief Architect 
Mr. Kulkarni brings 18 years experience in engineering, and is one of the web’s leading 
architects. Prior to joining Essential, Mr. Kulkarni was Principal Technical Architect at 
Fidelity Investments. Mr. Kulkarni helped build Fidelity.com into one of the most 

http://Fidelity.com


heavily trafficked sites on the Internet. During his tenure with Fidelity.com, the site 
generated millions of web transactions and web hits each day. Mr. Kulkarni received his 
Engineering Degree from Bombay University, India and his postgraduate certificate in 

P l b  nt T d i a  
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Mr. Christopher Kallaher - Vice President and General Counsel 
Christopher Kallaher joined Essential as our Vice President and General Counsel in 
February, 2000. Mr. Kallaher comes to Essential from Mintz, Levin, Cohn. Ferris, 
Glovsky and Popeo, P.C. where, from 1999 to 2000, he was an associate working on 
regulatory and corporate matters for various clients in the utility sector. Prior to joining 
Mintz, Levin, Mr. Kallaher served as senior counsel at the Massachusetts Department of 
Telecommunications and Energy (DTE) where he presided over major cases in electric 
utility and telecommunications restructuring. Before the DTE, Mr. Kallaher was an 
attorney practicing utility law in Wisconsin where he represented a number of investor 
owned utilities over a nine-year period. Mr. Kallaher holds a J.D. from the University of 
Wisconsin at Madison and a B.S. in Civil Engineering from Stanford University. 

http://Fidelity.com


Officers of 
essential.com, inc. 

Akhil Garland, President 
103 Revolutionary Rd. 
Concord, MA 01742 

Patrick J. Moran, Vice President, Secretary 
75 Downey St. 
Hopkinton, MA 01748 

Basil Pallone, Treasurer 
1 12 Thunder Rd. 
Sudbury, MA 01776 

Linda DeRenzo, Assistant Secretary 
238 Kendrick St. 
Newton, MA 02458 

Mary J. Seldin, Assistant Secretary 
59 Prospect St. 
Newburyport, MA 01 950 

http://essential.com


essentizcom b’ 

essential.com, inc 
Board of Directors 

Akhil Garland 
Essential .corn 
3 Burlington Wood Drive 
Burlington, MA 01 803 
Telephone: 78 1-229-9599 
Fax: 78 1-229-9499 

Patrick Moran 
Essential.com 
3 Burlington Woods Drive 
Burlington, MA 01 803 
Telephone: 78 1-229-9599 
Fax: 78 1-229-9499 

Scott Ungerer 
EnerTech Capital 
435 Devon Park Drive 
700 Building 
Wayne, PA 19087 
Telephone: 6 10-254-4 14 1 
Fax: 610-254-4188 

Rob Soni 
Bessemer Venture Partners 
83 Walnut Street 
Wellesley Hills, MA 02481 
Telephone: 781 -237-6050 
Fax: 781-237-7576 

William Meurer 
Brand Equity Ventures 
Three Pickwick Plaza 
Greenwich, Connecticut 06830 
Telephone: 203-862-5500 
Fax: 203-629-201 9 

Rev. 04/04/00 
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Michael Kolowich 
1 16 Monument Street 

888-635-7758 - phone 
Michael.Kolowich@newsedge.com 

Paul O'Brien 
The O'Brien Group, Inc. 
70 Franklin Street, 3rd Floor 
Boston, MA 02 1 10 
61 7-737-2255 - phone 
61 7-737-3399 - fax 

Rev. 04/04/00 

mailto:Michael.Kolowich@newsedge.com


ATTACHMENT B 



This Tariff contains the descriptions, regulations and rates applicable to the furnishing of 
telecommunications services provided by essential.com, inc. (“Essential.com”) within the State 
of Arizona. This Tariff is on file with the Arizona Corporation Commission (“Commission”). 
Copies may be inspected during normal business hours at the Company’s principal place of 
business: 3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor, Burlington Massachusetts 01 803 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 41h floor 

Burlington MA 0 1 803 
78 1.229.9599 

http://essential.com


essential.com, inc. A.C.C. Tariff No. 2 
Original Sheet No. 2 

CHECK SHEET 

The Sheets 1 through 33 inclusive of this Tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom 
of the respective sheet(s). 

SHEET REV1 S I ON SHEET REVISION 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 

Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 

Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
781.229.9599 
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essential .corn, inc. A.C.C. Tariff No. 2 
Original Sheet No. 3 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

DESCRIPTION 

Title Sheet 
Check Sheet 
Table of Contents 
Explanation of Symbols 
Tariff Format 
Application of Tariff 

Section 

1. Technical Terms and Abbreviations 

2. 
2.1 
2.2 
2.3 
2.4 
2.5 
2.6 
2.7 
2.8 
2.9 
2.10 
2.1 1 
2.12 
2.13 
2.14 
2.15 

Rules and Regulations 
Undertaking of the Company 
Limitations of Service 
Use 
Liabilities of the Company 
Indernni ty 
Full Force and Effect 
Interruption of Service 
Restoration of Service 
Minimum Service Period 
Payments and Billing 
Cancellation by Customer 
Cancellation by Company 
Interconnection 
Credit Limit 
Taxes 

SHEET NUMBER 

8 

10 
10 
10 
11 
12 
16 
16 
17 
18 
18 
18 
20 
21 
23 
24 
24 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4'h floor 

Burlington MA 0 1 803 
78 1.229.9599 



essential.com, inc. A.C.C. Tariff No. 2 
Original Sheet No. 4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS, Continued 

DESCRIPTION 

Section 

3. Description of Service 
3.1 Timing of Calls 
3.2 essential.com, inc. 

3.3 Promotions 
Telecommunications Services 

4. Rates 
4.1 Service Charges 
4.1.1 Switched Access Service 
4.1.2 Travel Card Service 
4.1.3 Individual Case Basis (ICB) Arrangements 

SHEET NUMBER 

25 
25 

25 
26 

27 
27 
27 
27 
27 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4" floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
78 1.229.9599 
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essential .corn, inc. A.C.C. Tariff No. 2 
Original Sheet No. 5 

CONCURRING CARRIERS 

None 

CONNECTING CARRIERS 

None 

OTHER PARTICIPATING CARRIERS 

None 

EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS 

(C) 

(D) 

(I) 

(M) 

(N) 

(R) 

(T) 

To signify changed condition or regulation 

To signify deleted or discontinued rate, regulation or condition 

To signify a change resulting in an increase to a Customer’s bill 

To signify that material has been moved from another Tariff location 

To signify a new rate, regulation condition or sheet 

To signify a change resulting in a reduction to a Customer’s bill 

To signify a change in text but no change to rate or charge 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
781.229.9599 



essential .corn, inc. A.C.C. Tariff No. 2 
Original Sheet No. 6 

TARIFF FORMAT 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

Sheet Numbering - Sheet numbers appear in the heading of each sheet. Sheets are 
numbered sequentially. However, occasionally, when a new sheet is added between 
sheets already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new sheet added between 
sheets 14 and 15 would be 14.1. 

Sheet Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of 
each sheet. These numbers are used to determine the most current sheet version on file 
with the Commission. For example, the 4th revised Sheet 14 cancels the 3rd Revised 
Sheet 14. Because of various suspension periods, deferrals, etc. the Commission follows 
in its Tariff approval process, the most current sheet number on file with the Commission 
is not always the sheet in effect. Consult the Check Sheet for the sheet currently in effect. 

Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each 
level of code is subservient to its next higher level: 

2. 
2.1. 
2.1.1. 
2.1.1 .A. 
2.1.1 .A. 1. 
2.1.1 .A.1 .(a). 
2.1.1 .A.1 .(a).l. 
2.1.1 .A.1 .(a).I.(i). 
2.1 . 1 .A. 1 .( a).I .(i).( 1). 

* 

Check Sheets - When a Tariff filing is made with the Commission, an updated Check 
Sheet accompanies the Tariff filing. The Check Sheet lists the sheets contained in the 
Tariff with a cross reference to the current revision number. When new sheets are added, 
the Check Sheet is changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing 
are designated by an asterisk (*). There will be no other symbols used on this sheet if 
these are the only changes made to it (i.e., the format, etc., remains the same, just revised 
revision levels on some sheets). The Tariff user should refer to the latest Check Sheet to 
find if a particular sheet is the most current on file with the Commission. 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4' floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
78 1.229.9599 



essential.com, inc. A.C.C. Tariff No. 2 
Original Sheet No. 7 

APPLICATION OF TARIFF 

This Tariff contains the rates, terms and conditions applicable to the provision of specialized 
resold intrastate common carrier telecommunications services by essential.com, inc. between 
various locations within the State of Arizona. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

Account Code: 

A numerical code, one or more of which are available to a Customer to enable 
identification of individual users or groups of users on an account and to allocate costs of 
service accordingly. 

Called Station: 

The terminating point of a call (Le., the called number). 

Calling Card: 

A card issued by Company containing such account numbers assigned to its Customer 
which enables the charges for calls made to be properly billed on a pre-arranged basis. 

Commission: 

Arizona Corporation Commission 

Company: 

essential .corn, inc. 

Credit Card: 

A valid bank or financial organization card, representing an account to which the costs of 
products and services purchased by the card holder may be charged for future payment. 
Such cards include those issued by VISA or Mastercard. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, Continued 

Customer: 

The person, firm, corporation or other entity which orders or uses service and is 
responsible for payment of charges and compliance with tariff regulation. 

Debit Card 

A valid bank or financial organization card, representing an account from which the 
costs of products and services purchased by the card holder may be charged. 

Dedicated Access: 

Non-switched access between a Customer’s premises and the point of presence of the 
Company’s underlying carrier. 

Disconnect or Disconnection: 

The termination of a circuit connection between the originating station and the called 
station or the Company’s operator. 

Subscriber: 

See “Customer” definition. 

Travel Card 

See “Calling Card” definition. 

“800” Number: 

An interexchange service offered pursuant to this tariff for which the called party is 
assigned a unique 800-NXX-XXXX or 888-NXX-XXXX or 877-NXX-XXXX number, 
or any other NPA, and is billed for calls terminating at that number. 
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2.1. 

2.1.1. 

2.1.2. 

2.1.3. 

2.1.4. 

2.1.5. 

2.1.6. 

2.2. 

2.2.1. 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS 

UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY 

Company’s services are furnished for telecommunications originating and/or 
terminating in any area within the State of Arizona. 

Company is a non-facilities-based provider of resold interexchange telecommunications 
to Customers for their direct transmission and reception of voice, data, and other types 
of communications. 

Company resells access, switching, transport, and termination services provided by 
interexchange carriers. 

Subject to availability, the Customer may use account codes to identi@ the users or user 
groups on an account. The numerical composition of the codes shall be set by Company 
to assure compatibility with the Company’s accounting and billing systems and to avoid 
the duplication of codes. 

The Company’s services are provided on a monthly basis unless otherwise provided, 
and are available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week. 

Request for service under this Tariff will authorize the Company to conduct a credit 
search on the Customer. The Company reserves the right to refuse service on the basis 
of credit history, and to refuse further service due to late payment or nonpayment by the 
Customer. 

LIMITATIONS OF SERVICE 

Service is offered subject to availability of the necessary facilities andor equipment and 
subject to the provisions of this Tariff. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.2. 

2.2.2. 

2.2.3. 

2.2.4. 

2.2.5. 

2.2.6. 

2.3. 

2.3.1. 

2.3.2. 

LIMITATIONS OF SERVICE, Continued 

Company reserves the right to immediately disconnect service without incurring 
liability when necessitated by conditions beyond the Company's control or when the 
Customer is using the service in violation of either the provisions of this Tariff or the 
Commission rules. 

The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its facilities 
when available, and will not be liable for errors in transmission or for failure to establish 
connections. 

The Customer obtains no property right or interest in the use of any specific type of 
facility, service, equipment, telephone number, process or code. All rights, titles and 
interests remain, at all times, solely with the Company. 

Prior written permission from the Company is required before any assignment or 
transfer. All regulatjons and conditions contained in this Tariff shall apply to all such 
permitted assignees or transferees, as well as all conditions of service. 

The Company reserves the right to refuse an application for service by a present or 
former Customer who is indebted to the Company for service previously rendered 
pursuant to this Tariff until the indebtedness is satisfied. 

USE 

Service may be used for the transmission of communications by the Customer for any 
lawful purpose for which the service is technically suited. 

Service may not be used for any unlawful purpose or for any purpose for which any 
payment or other compensation is received by the Customer, except when the Customer 
is a duly authorized and regulated common carrier. This provision does not prohibit an 
arrangement between the Customer, authorized user or joint user to share the cost of 
service. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.3. 

2.3.3. 

2.3.4. 

2.4. 

2.4.1. 

USE, Continued 

Application for service may be made verbally or in writing. The name(s) of the 
Customer(s) desiring to use the service must be set forth in the application for service. 
Any references to notice or application by writing shall include electronic 
communications 

The Company strictly prohibits use of the Company's services without payment or an 
avoidance of payment by the Customer by fraudulent means or devices including 
providing falsified calling card numbers or invalid calling card numbers to the 
Company, providing falsified or invalid credit card numbers to the Company or in any 
way misrepresenting the identity of the Customer. 

LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY 

The liability of the Company for damages arising out of mistakes, omissions, 
interruptions, delays, errors or defects in transmission occurring in the course of 
h i s h i n g  service or other facilities and not caused by the negligence of the Customer, 
commences upon activation of service and in no event exceeds an amount equivalent to 
the proportionate charge to the Customer for the period of service during which such 
mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors or defects in transmission occur. For 
the purpose of computing such amount, a month is considered to have thirty (30) days. 
To the extent permitted by law, the Company will in no event be responsible for any 
indirect, incidental, consequential, reliance, special, lost revenue, lost savings, lost 
profits, or exemplary or punitive damages, regardless of the form of action, whether in 
contract, tort, negligence of any kind whether active or passive, strict liability or 
otherwise. The terms of this Section shall apply notwithstanding the failure of any 
exclusive remedy. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.4. 

2.4.2. 

I 2.4.3 

2.4.4. 

2.4.5, 

LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY, Continued 

Company is not liable for any act or omission of any other company or companies 
furnishing a portion of the service. 

Except as expressly warranted in writing by Company, Company makes no warranty or 
guarantee, express or implied, and Company expressly disclaims any implied warranties 
of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. 

Company shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Customer against: 

A. Claims for libel, slander, infringement of copyright or unauthorized use of any 
trademark, trade name or service mark arising out of the material, data, 
information or other content transmitted over Company’s facilities; and 

B. Claims for patent infringement arising from combining or connecting Company’s 
facilities with apparatus and systems of the Customer; and 

C. All other claims arising out of any act or omission of the Customer in connection 
with any service provided by Company. 

The Company is not liable for any defacement of, or damage to, the equipment or 
premises of a Customer resulting from the furnishing of services when such defacement 
or damage is not the result of the Company’s negligence. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

I 7 4  I ,IGBJl ,IT- COMPANY, Continued 

2.4.6. Company shall not be liable for and the Customer indemnifies and holds harmless from 
any and all loss claims, demands, suits, or other action or liability whatsoever, whether 
suffered, made instituted or asserted by the Customer or by any other party or person, 
for any personal injury to, death of any person or persons, and for any loss, damage, 
defacement or destruction of the premises of the Customer or any other property. 
whether owned by the Customer or by others, caused or claimed to have been caused 
directly or indirectly by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, 
removal, presence, condition, location or use of equipment or wiring provided by 
Company where such installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, condition, 
location or use is not the direct result of Company's negligence. 

2.4.7. No agents or employees of connecting, concurring or other participating carriers or 
companies shall be deemed to be agents or employees of the Company without written 
authorization. 

2.4.8. The Company is not liable for any failure of performance hereunder due to causes 
beyond its control, including, but not limited to, unavoidable interruption in the working 
of its circuits or those of another common carrier; acts of nature, storms, fire, floods, or 
other catastrophes; any law, order, regulation, direction, action, or request of the United 
States Government, or any other governmental entity having jurisdiction over the 
Company or of any department, agency, commission, bureau, corporation, or other 
instrumentality or any one or more of such instrumentality or any one of more of such 
governmental entities, or of any civil or military authority; national emergencies, 
insurrections, riots, rebellions, wars, strikes, lockouts, work stoppages, or other labor 
difficulties; or notwithstanding anything in this Tariff to the contrary, the unlawful acts 
of the Company's agents and employees, if committed beyond the scope of their 
employment. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.4. LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY, Continued 

2.4.9. The Company shall not be liable for damages or adjustments, refunds, or cancellation of 
charges unless the Customer has notified the Company of any dispute concerning 
charges, or the basis of any claim for damages, after the invoice is rendered by the 
Company for the call giving rise to such dispute or claim, unless ordered by the 
Commission pursuant to Arizona law. The Company shall not be responsible for claims 
made outside the 30 day period. Any such notice must set forth sufficient facts to 
provide the Company with a reasonable basis upon which to evaluate the Customer’s 
claim or demands. 

2.4.10. The Company shall not be liable for any damages, including usage charges, that the 
Customer may incur as a result of the unauthorized use of its communications 
equipment. The unauthorized use of the Customer’s communications equipment 
includes, but is not limited to, the placement of calls from the Customer’s premises and 
the placement of calls through Customer-controlled or Customer-provisioned equipment 
that are transmitted or carried over the Company’s network services without the 
authorization of the Customer. The Customer shall be fully liable for all such charges. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.5. INDEMNITY 

Subject to the limitations of liability set forth in Section 2.4 hereof, the Company and 
the Customer shall defend, indemnify, and hold each other harmless from and against 
any and all claims to the extent that such claims were proximately caused by any 
negligent or willful act or omission by the party from whom indemnity is sought, or by 
the agents, employees, subcontractors or assignees of the party from whom indemnity is 
sought, in connection with use of the Services. The indemnifying party under this 
Section shall defend the other at the other's request against any such claim. The party 
seeking indemnification under this Section must notify the other promptly of written 
claims or demands for which the indemnifying party may be responsible. The 
Company and the Customer, as the case may be, shall cooperate fblly with the other in 
the course of such indemnification, and the indemnifying party shall control such 
defense and the right to litigate, settle, appeal, provided it pays the cost of any required 
appeal bond, compromise or otherwise deals with any such claim or resulting judgment, 
provided that such settlement, compromise or other resolution of said claim does not 
result in any liability to the indemnified party. * 

2.6. FULL FORCE AND EFFECT 

Should any provision or portion of this Tariff be held by a court or administrative 
agency of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Tariff will remain in full force and effect. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.7.1. Credit for Interruptions: When the use of service or facilities furnished by the Company is 
interrupted due to any cause other than the negligence or willful act of the Customer, or 
the operation or failure of the facilities or equipment provided by the Customer, a pro 
rata adjustment of the monthly Recurring Charges subject to interruption will be allowed 
for the service and facilities rendered useless and inoperative by reason of the 
interruption whenever said interruption continues for a period of 24 hours or more from 
the time the interruption is reported to or known to exist by the Company, except as 
otherwise specified in the Company’s tariffs. If the Customer reports a service, facility 
or circuit to be inoperative but declines to release it for testing and repair, it is 
considered to be impaired, but not interrupted. Credit allowance for interruptions of 
service which are not due to Company’s testing or adjusting, to the negligence of the 
Customer, or to the failure of channels, equipment and/or communications equipment 
provided by the Customer, are subject to the general liability provisions set forth in 
Section 2.4., herein. It shall be the obligation of the Customer to notify Company of any 
interruptions of service. Before giving such notice, the Customer shall ascertain that the 
trouble is not being caused by any action or omission of the Customer, not within the 
Customer’s control. 

2.7.2. For purposes of credit computation, every month shall be considered to have 720 hours. 
No credit shall be allowed for an interruption of a continuous duration of less than two 
hours. 

2.7.3. The Customer shall be credited for an interruption of two hours or more at the rate of 
1/720th of the monthly recurring charge for each hour or major fraction thereof that the 
interruption continues. 

Credit formula: Credit = (N720) X B 

A - outage time in hours 

B - total monthly charge for affected utility 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.8. 

2.9. 

2.10. 

2.10.1. 

2.10.2. 

2.10.3. 

RESTORATION OF SERVICE 

The use and restoration of service in emergencies shall be in accordance with part 64, 
Subpart D of the Federal Communications Commission’s Rules and Regulations which 
specifies the priority system for such activities. 

MINIMUM SERVICE PERIOD 

The minimum service period is one month (30 days). 

PAYMENTS AND BILLING 

Charges for service are applied on a recurring basis. Service is provided and billed on a 
monthly (30 day) basis. The billing date is dependent on the billing cycle assigned to 
the Customer. Service continues to be provided until canceled by the Customer. 

The Customer is responsible in all cases for the payment of all charges for services 
furnished to the Customer. Charges are based on actual usage, and are billed monthly in 
arrears. Customer will be billed and is responsible for payment of applicable local, state 
and federal taxes assessed in connection with the services used. It is contemplated that 
payment be done electronically, with payment made by means of the Customer’s credit 
card, debit card, or other similar mechanism approved by the Company. In the sole 
discretion of the Company, payments may be made by check. 

Billing is payable upon receipt and past due thirty (30) days after issuance and posting 
of invoice. Bills not paid within thirty (30) days after the date of posting are subject to a 
1.5 percent late payment charge for the unpaid balance, and may be subject to additional 
collection agency fees. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.10. PAYMENTS AND BILLING, Continued 

2.10.4. A charge of $20.00 or five (5) percent of the amount of the check, whichever is greater, 
will apply whenever a check or draft presented for payment of service is not accepted 
by the institution on which it is written. 

2.10.5. Customers should first seek to resolve billing disputes through the Company’s website, 
www.essential.com/, or by email to the address indicated on the Customer’s most recent 
invoice. Additionally, inquiries may be addressed to Company’s customer service 
organization by mail at Three Burlington Woods Drive Burlington, MA 01 803-4543, or 
by telephone to 888.746.4983. Customer service representatives are available to address 
such inquiries and any inquiries outside of normal business hours will be answered on 
the next business day. In the event of an emergency which threatens Customer service, 
the Company will respond as promptly as possible. 

2.10.6. In the case of a dispute between the Customer and the Company for service fiimished to 
the Customer, which cannot be settled with mutual satisfaction, the Customer can take 
the following course of action: 

A. First, the Customer may request, and the Company will perform, an in-depth 
review of the disputed amount. The undisputed portion and subsequent bills must 
be paid on a timely basis or the service may be subject to disconnection. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.10. PAYMENTS AND BILLING, Continued 

2.10.6., Continued 

B. Second, if there is still disagreement over the disputed amount after the 
investigation and review by a manager of the Company, the Customer may appeal 
to the Arizona Corporation Commission for its investigation and decision. 

The address and telephone number of the Commission are: 

Arizona Corporation Commission 
Consumer Services Section 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Telephone number: 602.542.425 1 
800.222.7000 

2.11. CANCELLATION BY CUSTOMER 

2.1 1.1. Customer may cancel service by providing written notice to Company thirty (30) days 
prior to cancellation. 

2.1 1.2. Customer is responsible for usage charges while still connected to the Company’s 
service, even if the customer utilizes services rendered after the Customers request for 
cancellation has been made notice and the payment of associated local exchange 
company charges, if any, for service charges. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.1 1. CANCELLATION BY CUSTOMER, Continued 

2.1 1.3. Any cost of Company expenditures shall be borne by the Customer i f  

A. The Customer orders service requiring special facilities dedicated to the 
Customer’s use and then cancels the order before such service begins, before 
completion of the minimum period or before completion of some period mutually 
agreed upon with the Customer for the non-recoverable portions of expenditures; 
or 

B. Liabilities are incurred expressly on behalf of the Customer by Company and not 
fblly reimbursed by installation and monthly charges; and 

C. If based on an order for service and construction has either begun or has been 
completed, but no service provided. 

2.12. CANCELLATIONJ3Y COMPANY 

2.12.1. Company reserves the right to immediately discontinue fbrnishing the service to 
Customers without advance written notice and without incurring liability, in accordance 
with Arizona Administrative Code (“A.C.C.”) Rule R14-2-509(B), Termination of 
Service Without Notice: 

A. For the existence of an obvious hazard to the safety or health of the consumer or 
the general population of the Company’s personnel or facilities; or 

B. For the Company has evidence of tampering or evidence of fraud. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.12. CANCELLATION BY COMPANY, Continued 

2.12.2. Company may discontinue service with five (5) day's written notice in accordance with 
A.C.C. Rule R14-2-509(C), Termination of Service with Notice: 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

For Customer violation of any of the Company's tariffs filed with the 
Commission and/or violation of the Commission's rules and regulations; or 

For failure of the customer to provide the Company reasonable access to its 
equipment and property; or 

For Customer breach of contract for service between the Company and Customer; 
or 

When necessary for the Company to comply with an order of any governmental 
agency having jurisdiction; or 

For the unauthorized resale of equipment or service. 

2.12.3. The discontinuance of service(s) by the Company pursuant to this section does not 
relieve the Customer of any obligations to pay the Company for charges due and owing 
for service(s) h i s h e d  up to the time of discontinuance. The remedies available to the 
Company set forth herein shall not be exclusive and the Company shall at all times be 
entitled to all the rights available to it under law or equity. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.12. 

2.12.4. 

2.13. 

2.13.1. 

2.13.2. 

CANCELLATION BY COMPANY, Continued 

The Company may refuse to permit collect calling, calling card and third-number billing 
which it determines to be fraudulent andor may limit the use of these billing options or 
services. 

INTERCONNECTION 

Service furnished by Company may be interconnected with services or facilities of other 
authorized communications common carriers and with private systems, subject to the 
technical limitations established by Company. Any special interface of equipment or 
facilities necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities of Company and other 
participating carriers shall be provided at the Customer’s expense. 

Interconnection between the facilities or services of other carriers shall be under the 
applicable terms and conditions of the other carriers’ tariffs. The Customer is 
responsible for taking all necessary legal steps for interconnecting Customer-provided 
terminal equipment or communications equipment with Company’s facilities. The 
Customer shall secure all licenses, permits, rights-of-way and other such arrangements 
necessary for interconnection. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued 

2.14. CREDIT LIMIT 

The Company may, at any time and at its sole discretion, set a credit limit for any 
Customer's consumption of Services for any monthly period. 

2.15. TAXES 

The Customer is responsible for payment of all federal, state and local taxes, franchise, 
excise and other fees applicable to the Services, including, but not limited to: sales, 
use, excise, franchise, access, universal service, 91 1 services and handicapped services. 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE 

3.1. 

3.1.1. 

3.1.2. 

3.1.3. 

3.1.4. 

3.2. 

3.2.1. 

TIMING OF CALLS 

The Customer’s long-distance usage charge is based on the actual usage of Company’s 
service. The 
moment of the called party’s answer is determined by hardware supervision in which 
the local telephone company sends a signal to the underlying carrier’s switch or the 
software utilizing audio tone detection. The timing of the call occurs when the called 
party answers and terminated when either party hangs up. 

Usage begins when the receiver of the called number is answered. 

The minimum call duration for billing purposes for all services is sixty (60) seconds 
with sixty (60) second billing increments thereafter. 

Any portion of an applicable increment, after the appropriate minimum time for the call, 
will be rounded upward to the next increment. Calls less than the minimum length will 
be rounded to the minimum length. 

There is no billing for incomplete calls. 

essential.com COMMUNICATIONS TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 

The rate for Company’s service is based on the following factors: 

A. The duration of the call; and 

B. The type of service subscribed to. 
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3.2. 

3.2.2. 

3.2.3. 

3.2.4. 

3.3. 

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE 

essential.com, inc TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, Continued 

One Plus Service is a switched or dedicated access service, offering users outbound “1 
plus” long distance telecommunications services from points originating and 
terminating in the state of Arizona. 

800 Service is a switched or dedicated access service, offering users inbound, toll free 
“800” number, long distance telecommunications services from points originating and 
terminating in the state of Arizona. This service enables the caller to contact the 
Customer without incurring toll charges, through the use of an assigned “800” number. 
The Customer pays for the call. 

Travel Card Service permits the caller to charge the principal presubscribed location 
for a call while the caller is away from the principal location. The Customer may place 
calls from any touch tone phone in the United States by dialing a toll free “800” number 
and entering a personal identification code, followed by the desired telephone number. 
Calling card calls are billed at the Applicant’s tariffed rates and appear on the 
Customer’s monthlylong-distance bill. 

PROMOTIONS 

The Company may, from time to time, engage in special promotions of new or existing 
Service offerings of limited duration designed to attract new Customers or to increase 
existing Customer awareness of a particular offering. The promotional offerings are 
subject to the availability of the Services and may be limited to a specific geographical 
area or to a subset of a specific market group; provided, however, all promotional 
offerings shall be offered in accordance with applicable Commission rules or 
regulations. 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Treasurer, Director of Finance & Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4“ floor 

Burlington MA 01 803 
781.229.9599 
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‘ Initial 60 Seconds Additional 60 Seconds 
$0.1990 $0.1990 

PRICE LIST 

4.1. 
~ 

i , 

~ 

~ 

~ 4.1.1. 

4.1.2. 

4.1.3. 

SECTION 4 - RATES 

SERVICE CHARGES 

. Monthly service charges per accmnt are based on the following schedules: 

Switched Access Service (1 “Plus” and “800”) 

I Initial 60 Seconds I Additional 60 Seconds 1 
1$0.149 I $0.149 I 

Travel Card Service 

Surcharge for calls initiated from a pay telephone $0.30 

Individual Case Basis (ICB) Arrangements 

Arrangements will be developed on a case-by-case basis in response to a bona fide 
request from a Customer or prospective Customer to develop a competitive bid for a 
Service offered under this tariff. Rates quoted in response to such competitive 
requests may be different than those specified for such Services in this tariff. ICB 
rates will be offered to the Customer in writing and on a non-discriminatory basis. 

4.1.4 Arizona Universal Service Fund Charge 
I 0.001293% (of charges under this tariff) 

Issued: Effective Date: 
Issued By: Basil Pallone 

Director of Finance/Controller 
3 Burlington Woods Drive, 4* floor 

Burlington MA 0 1 803 
781.229.9599 
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ATTACHMENT C 

- . , .  . . .  
Essential is a n m - m e  1s w b  r e W  

to provide a network diagram. Essential will resell the services of MCIWorldCom and 
Qwest in Arizona. 

ATTACHMENT C 



ATTACHMENT D 

r: 

vendor lines of credit as well as strategic alliances with other parties. 
More specifically, the following demonstrates the financial viability of Essential. 

Essential has respectively obtained: (a) a $4,000,000 line of credit (subordinated debt 
funding) from Comdisco Ventures in 1999, a division of Comdisco, Inc. that has 
committed over $1.5 billion in capital to more than 600 venture backed start-up 
companies; (b) approximately $1  5.000.000 of equity funding from Brand Equity 
Ventures, Bessemer Venture Partners, EnerTech Capital Partners and others, also in 
1999; and approximately $75,000,000 of equit) funding (Series C Preferred Stock 
offering, February, 2000) from several financial institutions including those already 
mentioned and, among others, Amerindo Investment Advisors (“Amerindo”). Brand 
Equity Ventures is a venture capital fund that focuses exclusively on financing high- 
growth consumer businesses, having backed successful companies that include Cyberian 
Outpost, Gymboree, and OfficeMax. Bessemer Venture Partners is one of North 
America’s oldest venture capital firms and an early investor in the Internet with such 
investments as eToys, VeriSign, Babycenter, and Mindspring, among others. EnerTech 
Capital Partners is a private equity partnership providing financing and strategic value to 
service and technology companies in the deregulating utility and telecommunications 
marketplace. Amerindo is a leading technology investor. These significant financial 
establishments are also major shareholders in Essential. 

While Essential, as an entrepreneurial start-up is not a subsidiary of an existing 
public company, these facts set forth herein show that Essential has the requisite financial 
strength and resources to operate as a telecommunications services provider in the State 
of Arizona. Essential’s financial statements are set forth as part of this Attachment D. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

* r e  

I 

I To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of 
i essential.com, inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of essential.com, inc. (a Delaware corporation) as 
of December 31, 1998, and the related statements of operations, changes in redeemable convertible preferred 
stock and stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 
statements based on our audit. 

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of essential.com, inc. as of December 31, 1998, and the results of its operations and its cash 
flows for the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 

Boston, Massachusetts 
August 3,1999 

Arthur Andersen LLP 

I 
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ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31, September 30, 
1998 1999 

ASSETS (Unaudited) 

Current assets: . 
Cyh.and cash equivalents ........... ................................................ 14,119 f 9,821,656 
Accbunts receivable, net of reserves of approximately 

526,000 and $31,000 in 1998 and 1999, respectively 21,117 64,498 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. 1,543 7.263 

.............................. 36,779 3,893,417 

.................................. 
............................................ 

.................................. 

Property and equipment, at cost: 
1 15,060 679,963 
19,237 15.541 

Total property and equipment ........ ........................................ 134,297 695,505 
37,828 169.564 

Total net property and equipment .............................................................................. 96,469 525,941 
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $3,900 in 1999 ....................................... - 336,651 
Other Assets 9,580 5 1,325 

- 375.065 

Computer and offce equipment .......................................... 
Furniture, fixtures and automobiles ............... 

Less-accumulated depreciation ................................................................ 

............................................................................................................................... 
Deferred financing costs ............................................................................................................. 

................................................................................................................. Total assets &-EJ%la- 
LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE 

PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT 
Current liabilities: 

248,560 f - 
20,000 - 

Notes payable to related party ............................................................................................ 5 

Current portion of deferred payments ................................................................................ 

Accrued other expenses ...................................................................................................... 

Advanck on convertible notes payable ................................................................... ; ........... 
33,702 360,153 

Accounts payable ................................................................................................................ 207,679 695,481 
Accrued payroll and related costs 129,356 223,359 

32.21 1 451.991 
...................................................................................... 

1.730.984 Total current liabilities 67 1.508 ........................................................................................... 

- 40.154 Deferred payments, net of current portion ...................................................... : ...................... 

Commitments (Note L) 

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock: 
Series A redeemable convertible preferred stock, f.01 par value 

Authorized-2,830,726 shares in 1999, issued and outstanding-2,830,726 shares in 
1999 stated at redemption value, net of unaccreted expenses ........................................ 

Authorized-6,606,867 shares in 1999, issued and outstanding-6,332,125 shares in 
Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock, S.01 par value 

I 

Stockholders' deficit: 
Comonstock,  f.01 par value-authorized-19,166,45 1 shares, issued and 

Additional paid-jn capital .................................................................................................. 
outstanding-5,233,897 and 4,482,802 shares in 1998 and 1999, respectively ................ 

Warrants ............................................................................................................................. 
Deferred compensation ...................................................................................................... 
Accumulated deficit ........................................................................................................... 

2,839,142 

12,193,622 

52,339 44,828 
16,408 489,975 
- 327,065 
- (45 1,907) 

(637.581) (5.99 1.310) 

(568.834) (5.58 1.349) Total stockholders' deficit ..................................................................................... 
Total liabilities, redeemable convertible, preferred stock and stockholders' 
deficit ................................................................................................................. LaEJAua- 

I The accompanying notes are an integral pari of thesefinancial statements. 

I 
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f 
ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Kevenue ........................................................ 

Cost of revenue ............................................ 
Gross loss ........................................ 

Operating expenses: 
Research and development ....................... 
General and administrative ....................... 
Selling and marketing ............................... 
Customer service ...................................... 

Total operating expenses ................. 

Loss from operations ....................... 

Interest and other income ............................. 

Interest expense ............................................ 

Net loss ............................................ 

Preferred stock dividends and accretion ....... 

Net loss attributable to common 
stockholders .................................... 

Year Ended 
December 31,1998 

$ 141,549 

165,691 

(24,142) 

71,459 

338,299 

133,045 

542,803 

(566,945) 

- 

17.336 

(584,281) 

- 

Nine Months 
Ended 

September 30,1999 
(Unaudited) 

$ 165,2 10 

184.208 

(1 8,998) 

1,023,908 

1,805,525 

1,696,024 

526,045 

5.05 1.502 

(5,070,500) 

122,087 

147.549 

(5,095,962) 

257.767 

Three Months 
Ended 

September 30,1999 
(Unaudited) 

$ 79,2 12 

86,692 

(7,480) 

492,454 

1,129,842 

1,302,603 

313.197 

3.238.096 

(3,245,576) 

79,080 

9.926 

(3,176,422) 

240.565 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesefinancial statements. 
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ESSEMIALCOM, INC. 

STATEWS OF CHANCES IN RmWa Cownnea  PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT 
P~RTHEYEARENDEDDECER~I, 1998 AND 

THE NINE-MOKTH PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.1999 

Scries A Redeemable Series B Redeemable 
Coavertible Prejcrred Convertible PreJerred 

Stock Stoc& Common Stock 

Numtxr of S.01 Par  
Shares Value 

Additional 

Paid-in 
Capital 

S(4.977) 

21.385 

16,408 

592 

(16,039) 

489,014 

Total 

Stockholders' 
Deficit 

s( 1 6 . 3 3 ~ ~  

31.781 

-1 

(568,834) 

87s 

(23.836) 

37.10; 

(257.767 

327.0t 

f5.095.962 

sruaulr 

r' 
Number of 

Shares 
Amount N ~ ~ ~ s o f  Amount 

Deferred 
Compensation 

s- 

(489,014) 

37.107 

Accumulate 
d Deficit 

S(53.300) 

158J.281) 

(637.581) 

Warrants 

s- BLAW L D E C W E R  3 I .  
tpr,- S- 4.194.287 541.943 s- 

1.039.6 10 10,396 

hcc lei, 

B~L4,um. DECEMEER 31, 
1998 

Exercise of common 
stock options 28,612 286 

Repurchase of comm~n 
stock (779,707) (7,797) 

Deferred cornpewtion 
on options granted to 
wnrultlnrr 

Amortization of 
deferred compewtion 

lrsuvlce of Series A 
redeemable convcrtible 
preferred stock, net of 
issuance COSU of 
598,697 2,096,410 

734,316 

1,997.7 13 

734,316 
Cooversion of notes to 
Series A preferred stock 

Issuance of Series B 
redeemable convertible 
preferred stock, net of 
issuance cosu of 
557.032 6.332.125 12.042.968 

Accretion of 
redeemable convertible 
prefened stock to 
liquidation value (257.767) 107.113 - 150.651 

Wamats granted in 
connection with 
subordinated loa 327,065 

SzZm 52839142 

Net loss 

The accompMylnp notes ore an Integral part of rhuejinancioi statemmu. 

, 
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. .  ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Cash Aows from operating activities: 
Net loss ........................................ 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss t 

Interest expense convertible notes 
Depreciation and amortization ........................................................................... 

(Gain) loss ftom disposal of ass 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable ............... 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ........... 

Amortization of deferred compensation ......... ............................... 

Accounts payable ........................................................................................... 
Accrued expenses ........................................................................................... 

Net cash used in operating activities ................................... ................................. 
Cash flows from investing activities: 

Purchases of property and equipment ................................................................... 
Proceeds from sale of equipment ........................................................................... 
Increase in other assets ........................................................................................... 

Net cash used in investing activities .......................................................................... 
Cash flows from financing activities: 

Proceeds from (payments on) notes payable to related party ................................. 
Repurchase of common stock ................................................................................ 
Proceeds from advances on and issuance of convertible notes payable ................. 
Deferred financing costs ........................................................................................ 

Net proceeds ftom issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock ................. 

Proceeds from issuance of common stock .............................................................. 
Net cash provided by financing activities .................................................................. 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents .................................................................. 
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period ......................................................... 
Cash and cash equivalents end of period ................................................................... 
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 

Proceeds from (payments on) deferred payments .................................................. 

Repayment of convertible notes payable ...................................................... :..... .... 

Cash paid for interest ............................................................................................. 
Supplemental disclosure of noncash information: 

Accretion of preferred stock dividends .................................................................. 
Conversion of notes payable and accrued interest to preferred stock ..................... 
Acquisition of customers ....................................................................................... 

Year Ended 
December 31,1998 

S (584,281) 

(21,117) 

169,607 
153.004 

(252.124) 

(493) 

(84,609) 
8,184 

(4.155) 

180.5801 

, 224,760 
- 

20,000 
- 

64,7 15 
- 
- 

31.781 

341.256 

8,552 

5.567 

u 

s- 
s 
s- 

- 

The accompanying notes are an infegralpart of thesefinancial statements. 
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Nine Months Ended 
September 30,1999 

(unauaitea) 

$ (5,095,962) 

119,316 
164,202 
37,107 

9,787 

(43,38 1) 

487,802 
5 13.783 

(5,720) 

(3.8 1 3.066) 

(599,561) 
- 

14 1.745) 

(64 1.306) 

(248,560) 
(23,836) 
690,000 
(48,000) 
(54,254) 

(95,000) 
14,040,68 1 

878 

14.261.909 

9,807,537 

14.1 19 
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ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

~ 

A. Organization 
essential.com, inc. (essential or the Company) is a web-based reseller of various services 

including electricity, Internet access and phone services to small businesses and residential 
customers in the northeastern U.S. 

customers, development of its web site and identification of new services to be offered. The 
Company is subject to a number of risks similar to those of other early stage enterprises. Principal 
risks to the Company include the need to obtain adequate financing to fund fibre operations, 
dependence on key individuals, requirement to obtain regulatory approval, and reliance on 
successful marketing of services to provide profitable operations. 

The Company is devoting substantially all of its efforts towards the acquisition of new 

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

accounting policies, as described below and elsewhere in the accompanying notes to financial 
statements. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 

principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

The accompanying financial statements reflect the application of certain significant 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 

Interim Financial Statements 

for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 1999 and the statements of cash flows 
and changes in redeemable convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ deficit for the nine months 
ended September 30,1999 are unaudited, but, in the opinion of management, include all 
adjustments, consisting of normal recumng adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of results 
for these interim periods. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in 
financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have 
been omitted, although the Company believes that the disclosures included are adequate to make 
the information presented not misleading. The results of operations for the nine months ended 
September 30, 1999 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the entire fiscal 
year. 

The accompanying balance sheet as of September 30, 1999, the statements of operations 

F-6 
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ESSENTIAL.COM, INC, 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

I 
1 

r. Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all time deposits and short-term investments with original 
maturities of 90 days or less to be cash equivalents. At September 30, 1999, the Company’s cash 
equivalents are comprised of money market mutual funds and are stated at cost, which 
approximates market. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company generates revenue principally from the resale of services including Internet 
access and phone services to residential and small business customers. Revenue is recognized as 
the services are performed. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

payable and notes payable. The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments 
approximate their fair values. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 105, Disclosure of Information 
About Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk and Financial Instruments with 
Concentrations of Credit Risk, requires disclosure of any significant off-balance-sheet and credit 
risk concentrations. Financial instruments that subject the Company to credit risk consist primarily 
of accounts receivable; however, risk is limited to customers to whom the Company makes 
significant sales. The Company maintains an allowance for potential credit losses, but historically 
has not experienced any significant losses related to individual customers or groups of customers in 
any particular industry or geographic area. There are no customers representing greater than 10% 
of total revenues during 1998 or the nine months ended September 30, 1999. One customer 
represents greater than 10% of accounts receivable at December 31,1998 and September 30,1999. 

Other Assets 

1999. 

Advertising Costs 

The Company’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash, accounts receivable, accounts 

Other assets consist primariIy of security deposits at December 31, 1998 and September 30, 

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. 

Property and Equipment 

the straight-line method over the estimated use l l  lives, as follows: 
Property and equipment is recorded at cost. The Company provides for depreciation using 

Estimated 
Asset Classification Useful Life 

Computer and office equipment 
Furniture, fixtures and automobiles 

3-5 years 

5 years 
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ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
’ f 

Comprehensive Loss 

enterprise during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from nonowner 
sources. The Company’s comprehensive loss is equal to net loss for the periods presented. 

Long Lived Assets 

The Company has assessed the realizability of these assets and believes that there is no material 
impairment of these assets to date. 

Deferred Financing Costs 

discussed in Note H. These costs are being amortized over the life of the related loan commitment. 

Comprehensive loss includes net loss as well as other changes in the equity of a business 

The Company’s long lived assets consist of property and equipment and intangibles assets. 

Deferred financing costs represents the expenses incurred obtaining the subordinated loan 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Income Taxes 

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting 
for Income Taxes. Under the liability method specified by SFAS No. 109, a deferred tax asset or 
liability is determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of 
assets and liabilities, as measured by currently enacted tax rates. 

There are no significant differences between financial statement and tax bases of assets and 
liabilities as of December 3 1, 1998. As of December 3 1, 1998, the Company had net operating loss 
carryforwards available to offset future taxable income, if any, of approximately $600,000. The 
Company has established a valuation allowance of approximately $250,000 to offset its deferred tax 
asset as its future realizability is uncertain. The Internal Revenue Code contains provisions that 
limit the use of loss and tax credit carryforwards in the event of certain changes in the ownership, 
as defined. These carryforwards expire through 2018 and are subject to review and possible 
adjustment by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Intangible Assets 
In August and September 1999, the Company acquired the performance obligations related 

to two customer lists for $223,554 and $1 17,006, respectively. Under the terms of the agreements, 
the Company is required to pay for the customer lists in three installments through January 2000. 
At September 30, 1999, there was $258,541 still payable under these agreements, which is included 
in deferred payments. The Company has recorded the value of these customer lists as an intangible 
asset and is amortizing them over 24 months, the estimated useful life of the asset. 

Deferred Payments 

deferred payments arrangement. These are payable in monthly installments of $13,390 through 
May 2000. At December 31, 1998, and September 30,1999, the outstanding principal balances 

During 1998 and 1999, the Company acquired certain equipment under an arrangement for 
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ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

E. Deferred Payments (continued) 
were $73,856 and $101,612, respectively. As of September 30, 1999, this balance, in addition to 
the amount discussed in Note D, was included in deferred payments in the accompanying balance 
sheet. 

A* 

F. Notes Payable to a Related Party 

At December 31, 1998, the Company had a demand note payable to a related party totaling 
$248,560, of which $224,760 and $23,800 were borrowed in 1998 and 1997, respectively. Interest 
accrues at 10% and totaled $17,297 and $16,992 during the year ended December 31,1998 and the 
nine months ended September 30, 1999, respectively, and is included in interest expense in the 
accompanying statement of operations and as an accrued expense in the balance sheet at December 
3 1, 1998. Borrowings were secured by substantially all assets of the Company. This demand note 
payable was repaid in August 1999. 

G. Convertible Promissory Notes 
In January 1999, the Company issued an aggregate of $7 10,000 of Convertible Promissory 

Notes (the Notes) that accrued interest at a rate of 5% per annum. The Notes were convertible at 
the option of the noteholder, upon the Company receiving additional financing of at least 
$3,000,000 on or before June 30, 1999. The conversion price of the Notes was equal to 85% of the 
per share price of the subequent financing. In May and June 1999, the Company converted 
$615,000 of these Notes plus accrued interest into 734,3 16 shares of Series A convertible preferred 
stock. The remaining $95,000 plus accrued interest was repaid. In December 1998, the Company 
had received an advance of $20,000 towards the purchase of the Notes. In connection with the 
conversion of the Notes, the Company recorded $1 10,150 of interest expense in 1999 as a result of 
the discounted conversion rate. 

H. Subordinated Loan 
On September 24, 1999, the Company entered into an agreement with a financing 

Company that provides for a $4 million subordinated loan and a $1 million equipment lease line. 
The subordinated loan bears interest at 10% and is secured by substantially all of the assets of the 
Company. The subordinated loan provides for borrowings in $250,000 increments over a 12-month 
period. The loan requires interest for the first six months followed by 30 equal installments of 
principal and interest. As of September 30, 1999, there were no borrowings outstanding under this 
arrangement. 

In connection with this financing, the Company issued warrants for the purchase of 
274,741 shares of Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock at an exercise price of $1.91 per 
share, subject to certain defined adjustments. The warrants expire in seven years or three years 
from the effective date of the Company’s initial public offering, whichever is earlier. The 
Company has valued these warrants, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, at $327,065 
and has recorded the value of the warrants as a deferred financing cost, which will be amortized as 
interest expense over the life of the commitment. 
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ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

I. Stockholders’ Deficit 
Common Stock 

&’ 

The Company is authorized to issue 19,166,451 shares of common stock. During 1997, the 
Company issued 4,194,287 shares of common stock to the Company’s founders. During 1998, the 
Company issued 1,039,610 shares of restricted stock to an officer of the Company at $.03 per share 
through the issuance of a promissory note for $3 1,78 1. This promissory note was repaid in 
November 1998. On March 17, 1999, the Company repurchased and returned to authorized status 
779,707 shares of this restricted common stock for $23,836. 

Stock Splits and Dividends 

In October 1998, the Company was reorganized as a Delaware corporation. In connection 
with this reorganization, the Company exchanged 10,000 shares of common stock for every share 
outstanding. In March 1999, the Company issued a stock dividend of .79 share for every one share 
of common stock that was issued and outstanding at that date. Additionally, in July 1999, the 
Company effected a stock split of 2 shares for every one share of the Company’s outstanding 
common stock. The above transactions have been reflected retroactively for all periods presented 
in the accompanying financial statements. 

, 

J. Redeemable convertible Preferred Stock 

During 1999, the Company issued 2,830,726 shares of Series A redeemable convertible 
preferred stock (Series A Preferred Stock), $0.01 par value resulting in gross proceeds of 
approximately $2,096,000 and the conversion of $615,000 notes payable (see Note 7). 

During the third quarter of 1999, the Company sold 6,332,125 shares of Series B 
redeemable convertible preferred stock (Series B Preferred Stock), $0.01 par value per share, 
resulting in gross proceeds to the Company of approximately $12,100,000. 

The rights and preferences of the Series A and B Preferred Stock are as follows: 

Voting 

Each share of Series A and B Preferred Stock is entitled to voting rights equivalent to the number of 
shares of common stock into which each share can be converted into. 

Conversion 

Series A and B Preferred stock is convertible at the option of the stockholder into two and one 
shares, respectively, of common stock, subject to certain antidilutive adjustments. Conversion is 
automatic upon the closing of a public offering of the Company’s common stock at a price per 
share of not less than $1.25 per share, for Series A Preferred Stock, (adjusted for any stock dividend 
or stock splits) and aggregate gross proceeds of not less than $15,000,000. Series B Preferred 
Stock is automatically converted upon (i) the closing of a public offering of the common stock with 
gross proceeds of at least $20,000,000 and a pre-money valuation of not less than $1 00 million or 
(ii) the election of the holders of 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series B preferred stock. 
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ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

J. Redeemable convertible Preferred Stock (continued) 

t 
Liquidation 

In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders of the Series A 
and B Preferred Stock are entitled to $1 .OO and $1.91 per share, respectively, plus all accrued but 
unpaid dividends. In addition, after payment of the liquidation preference described in the 
preceding sentence, the Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to participate on an as-converted basis 
with the Common Stock in the remaining assets of the Company, provided that in no event shall a 
holder of Series A Preferred Stock be entitled to receive more than three times the liquidation 
preference for each share of Series A Preferred Stock. 

Dividend 
The Series A and B Preferred Stock each earn cumulative dividends of 8% annually. Dividends are 
payable in the event of a liquidation of the Company, as defined, or at the discretion of the Board of 
Directors. Additionally, the preferred stockholders are entitled to receive dividends at the same rate 
as paid to the common stockholders. 

Redemption 

The holders of at least a majority of the series A Preferred Stock and the Series B Preferred Stock 
can demand that the Company redeem its shares for the original purchase price plus any accrued 
and unpaid dividends thereon. Redemption may be demanded after December 31,2003 by the 
holders of the Series A Preferred Stock for the Series A Preferred Stock and after July 3 1 , 2004 by 
the holders by the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock for the Series B Preferred Stock. The 
Series A preferred stock is redeemable in three equal annual installments. The Series B preferred 
stock is redeemable in one lump-sum payment. 

K. Stock Option Plan 

In December 1998, the Company established the 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the 
1998 Plan), which provides for the grant of incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options 
to purchase up to 2,443,942 shares of the Company’s common stock. The Board of Directors has 
the authority to select the employees and nonemployees to whom options are granted and determine 
the terms of each option, including (i) the number of shares of common stock subject to the option; 
(ii) the date on which the option becomes exercisable; and (iii) the option exercise price. Options 
granted under the 1998 Plan generally vest over four years. 

The following is a summary of the stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 
1998 and for the nine months ended September 30,1999: 
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ESSENTLAL.COM, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

I 

I 

K. Sto.ck Option Plan (continued) 

Weighted 
Exercise Average 

Number of Price per Exercise 
Shares Share Price 

Granted 523.390 $ .03 $ .03 
Outstanding, December 3 1, 1998 523,390 .03 .03 

Granted 848,675 .03-.20 .09 
(.03) 
(.04) 

Exercised (28,612) (.03) 
Terminated (694.41 8) (.03-.05) 

Outstanding, September 30, 1999 _649.035$ *03-.2Q s--du 
Exercisable, September 30, 1999 

As of September 30, 1999, options to purchase 1,766,295 shares of common stock are 
available for future grant under the 1998 Plan. At September 30, 1999, there were 392,124 shares 
outstanding at an exercise price of $0.03 to $0.05 per share and 256,911 shares outstanding at an 
exercise price of $0.19 to $0.20 per share. 

SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, requires the measurement of 
the fair value of stock options or warrants to be included in the statement of operations or disclosed 
in the notes to financial statements. The Company has determined that it will account for stock- 
based compensation for employees under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and elect 
the disclosure-only alternative under SFAS No. 123. 

The Company has computed the pro forma disclosures required under SFAS No. 123 for 
stock options granted during 1998 and 1999 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model 
prescribed by SFAS No. 123. The assumptions used for 1998 were as follows: (i) risk-fiee interest 
rates of 4.65%; (ii) expected life of seven years; (iii) no dividend yield and (iv) no volatility. The 
assumptions used for 1999 were as follows: (i) risk free interest rates of 4.99% to 6.1 1%; (ii) 
expected life of seven years; (iii) no dividend yield and (iv) no volatility. The weighted average 
remaining contractual life for outstanding options granted during 1998 and 1999 is 9.2 and 9.7 
years, respectively. The weighted average fair value at the date of grant for options granted during 
1998 and 1999 is $0.01 and $0.02 per option, respectively. The total charge to operations under 
SFAS No. 123 for options vesting during the year ended December 31, 1998 and the nine months 
ended September 30, 1999 would have been’approximately $215 and $2,117, respectively. 
The effect of applying SFAS No. 123 would have been as follows: 

December 31, September 30, 
1998 1999 

(Unaudited) 

$ (584,281) $ (5,095,962) 
Pro forma (584,496) (5,098,079) 

During 1999, the Company granted 2573 11 options to consultants at a weighted average 
exercise price of $ 3  per share. These options have been valued using the Black-Scholes option 
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ESSENTIAL.COM, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

K. Stock Option Plan (continued) 
pricing model and the Company has recorded deferred compensation of $489,014. The deferred 

“‘compensation is being amortized over the vesting periods of the options. During the nine months 
ended September 30,1999, the Company recorded $37,107 of compensation expense. 

L. COMMITMENTS 

The Company has lease agreements for its facilities and certain equipment, which expire at 
various dates through 2003. The future minimum lease payments under these leases at December 
3 1, 1998 are as follows: 

1999 $ 171,590 
2000 159,395 
2001 
2002 
2003 

28,632 
28,632 
4.772 

Total fbture minimum payments $ 393.02L 

Rent expense for the year ended December 3 1,1998 and for the nine months ended 
September 30, 1999 was approximately $27,500 and $101,000, respectively. 
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